
\ 

It • 

• 

- ..... ~ = .--. -"'= - . 

Digitized by the 
New Jersey State Library 

P U B L I C HEARING 

before 

.. 

ASSEMBLY TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 

. I 

on 

PUBLIC UTILITY RATES 

Held: 
August 12, 1976 
Assembly Chamber 
State House 
Trenton, New Jersey 

· • MEMBER OF COMMITTEE PRESENT: 

Assemblyman Michael P. Esposito, Chairman 

* * * * 



' 

' 

• 

• 



II 

.. 

.. 

• 

INDEX -----

Steven P. Perskie, Assemblyman 
2nd District, New Jersey Assembly 

Shirley Moses 
Representing Assemblyman Donald J. Albanese 
15th District, New Jersey Assembly 

Councilwoman Marie Villani 
Newark, New Jersey 

Councilman Anthony J. Guiliano 
Newark, New Jersey 

Edward A. McCool, Deputy Director 
New Jersey Division on Aging 
Department of Community Affairs 

Matthew Feldman, Senator 
37th District, New Jersey Senate 

Dr. Shepard Bartnoff, President 
Jersey Central Power and Light Company 

Thomas Carney, Chairman 
North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 
Task Force on Utilities 

Anthony Gottberg, Secretary 
North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 

John Lamb 
North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 

Lloyd J. Jacobs, Chairman 

p. 1 - 76 -- #3 

2 

4 

4 

6 

8 

10 

11 

19 

21 

25 

26 
Statewide Coalition Against Utility Rate Increase 

Andrew s. Militello, Trustee 
North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 

James Griffin, Vice President 
North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 

Richard B. McGlynn, Commissioner 
Department of Public Utilities 

1 

31 

32 

34 



... 

• 

" 

• 

" 



.. 

.. 

• 

• 

l ! Q § ~ - Continued 

Joseph Dignam 
North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 

Christopher Burdick 
representing 

Congressman Andrew Maguire 
7th Congressional District of New Jersey 

Lee Faggioni, Chairman 
Division of Aging 
Middlesex County, New Jersey 

Jacob Perzley 
Old Bridge Senior Citizens Council 

A. L. Ruefer, President 
Manchester Communities Coordinating Council 

John F. McDonald 
_ Senior Vice President for Government Affairs 

Public Service Electric and Gas Company 

George Clarkson 
General Manager of Rates 
Public Service Electric and Gas Company 

Joseph T. Kelly 
Manager of Economic Services 
Atlantic City Electric Company 

Lois McLain 
Monmouth County Consumers Group 

Joseph Carlin 
Consumer 

Greg Adkins, Consumer Specialist 
United Progress, Inc • 

Ella Lawrence, Chairman 
Citizens Against Rate Increases 

Claire Schiff, President 
Keys to Education for Environment Protection 
Summet, New Jersey 

2 

40 

42 

43 

45 

47 

50 

50 & lx 

60 & 59x 

65 

67 

68 

69 & 76x 

72 & 72x 



.. 

• 



I N D E X - Continued -----

Magnus Nelson 74 
Communist Party of New Jersey 

TESTIMONY SUBMITTED: 

Barbara Ingram 79x 
Community Action Program 
Camden, New Jersey 

Meyer Fine 82x 
Community Relations Committee 
Jewish Community Federation of Metropolitan New Jersey 

Allen Goldberg 85x 

David Grossman, President 87x 
Essex County Council of Senior Citizens 

• 

1 

• 

* * * * 

3 



,. 

• 

' 

.. 

• 



• 

' 

• 

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL P. ESPOSITO (Chairman): As the Chairman of the Assembly 

Transportation and Communications Committee, I am going to insist on absolute decorum 

during the conduct of this hearing. There shall be no outbursts from the gallery. 

There shall not be any applause for any speakers because we are here to get answers. 

We are here to get answers in order to put a lifeline rate in effect in the State of 

New Jersey. I want you all to know, here and now, that I am on your side. I sympa

thize with your problem. And we are here to gather information. So, I must insist 

on absolute quiet. Thank you. 

As I told you before, the purpose of today's public hearing is to gather 

information, recommendations, and expert testimony on lifeline rates. Prior to the 

1973 oil embargo, the price of electricity was not a matter of concern for most 

consumers. Production costs were low and consumers reacted to the rate structure 

and to the relative insignificant budget impact of electricity by increasing purchases 

of electricity-consuming goods. The industry responded by increasing capacity. In 

a similar manner, the prices of fuel oil and natural gas were viewed by most consumers 

as reasonable and these products were avidly purchased. 

Since that time, as we are all so noticeably aware, the situation has changed. 

The energy crisis is,in short, an issue which cuts across all aspects of our lives 

and it affects us in many ways every day. The committee recognizes that we must all 

work together, Federal, State, and local governments, business and industry, individuals, 

young and old, if we are to understand and solve our energy crisis. 

The members of the committee have been concerned over the sharp rise in 

utility rates that has occurred in recent years. More specifically, the committee's 

attention today is focused upon the high and ever-increasing costs for lighting, 

heating and refrigeration that cause hardships for the poor as well as needy senior 

citizens living on fixed incomes. The committee intends to analyze and evaluate the 

information gathered at this hearing and at a second public hearing scheduled for 

August 24, 1976, in the Hudson County Administration Building, 595 Newark Avenue, 

Jersey City, for the purpose of formulating legislation that will provide the poor 

and senior citizens with economic relief in the payment of their utility bills. 

We appreciate that the utility problems we face are eomplex and that there are 

no simple solutions. Our purpose here is not to reiterate time and time again that 

a problem exists. Rather, our goal is to ascertain how we can create a practical, 

effective and equitable program to insure that all persons are supplied with electricity, 

natural gas, and fuel oil, at reasonable price$. 

These hearings are designed so as to enable the committee to hear expert 

testimony in an orderly fashion on a wide range of ~ssible solutions. To this end, 

the committee will investigate the advantages and ~isa~vantages resulting from the 

implementation of approaches such as a lifeline ra~e, a utility stamp program, or a 

rate based upon peak-load pricing • 

Today we will follow the usual procedure for a legislative hearing. If a 

witness has a prepared statement, please make copies available to all members of the 

committee. Prepared statements need not be read in full. The witness may request that 

they be made part of the record for consideration by this committee. After each 

speaker has made his statement, the committee members may ask questions. I request 

that each question be answered in full, to the best ability of the witness. No 

questions from the audience will be permitted. 

I have a list of those persons who have asked to testify. If there is anyone 

else who wishes to testify and has not previously indicated that he wants to testify, 

please come forward and put your full name and the organization that you represent on 
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the roster. I will ask that as each witness testifies, he take the seat in front 

here, speak clearly, give his name, position or title, and the name of the organiza

tion he represents. We have invited many witnesses who have vast knowledge of the 

energy field and who will testify at our hearing this morning and this afternoon. 

We are certain that their expert testimony will be helpful and productive. It will 

be carefully scrutinized and reviewed by this committee. After evaluation, the 

committee hopes to formulate legislation that will provide the poor and senior citizens 

with economic relief in the payment of their utility bills. 

The first witness to testify will be Assemblyman Steven Perski, Chairman of 

the Assembly Taxation Committee. Assemblyman Perski. 

A S S E M B L Y MAN S T EVE N P. P E R S K I E: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. 

I want to thank you very much for your courtesy in affording me the opportunity to make 

a brief statement. I will speak very briefly. If you have any questions, I will be 

glad to answer them. 

My point in coming here today is to make a statement for the purpose of this 

record and for the purpose of this discussion, one that might not otherwise be addressed 

by many of the speakers whom I assume you are going to hear. 

The majority, I assume, will address themselves to the desperate need that 

many, if not most, of the senior citizens in the State of New Jersey face in terms of 

the staggering burden of utilities cost. I share that concern and I support the 

concept and the enactment of the enabling legislation that will implement some effective 

means of providing a subsidy to provide some real measure of relief for the senior 

citizen community of New Jersey in this critically important area. 

But, I appear here today - very frankly - for more than the simple purpose 

of articulating that support, which I have done and which many other individual 

members of the Legislature have done on many occasions. I appear to suggest, for the 

purposes of this committee and for the purposes of the general public who appear 

here, an avenue - perhaps not the only avenue - for the funding of this particular 

program that should be considered. 

One of the major objections that I have encountered in the articulation of a 

lifeline concept -- Nobody, of course is opposed to helping that portion of the 

community - the senior community - but some of the objections have been the cost 

of the program, in terms of the burden on other utilities consumers. 

I suggest that there is an avenue available where a meaningful lifeline 

program can be instituted to help the senior citizen community in this State, who 

so desperately need it, without burdening the remaining utilities consumers. And 

that avenue is an option that has been extended by this Legislature to the people of 

New Jersey in the form of a referendum proposal that appears on the ballot this 

November for their approval in the form of a constitutional amendment to authorize 

the Legislature to establish a system that will generate, we estimate, approximately 

$30 million a year when the system is fully operational, which would be, according to 

the Constitutional amendment, specifically dedicated - specifically dedicated - to the 

reduction and offsetting of the utilities cost for senior citizens in the State of 

New Jersey. I refer, of course, to the Constitutional amendment that would authorize 

the Legislature to establish and provide for and control and regulate a system of 

casinos, located in Atlantic City. 

Now, normally speaking, of course, there would be no connection between that 

referendum and this hearing. But, I emphasize that the referendum was structured, and 

is structured, and is constitutionally dedicated to provide that the State's revenues 
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from the licensing and the taxation of such casinos in Atlantic City would be used for 

exactly this specific purpose - the subsidy of utilities cost, telephone, gas, electric, 

and municipal utilities charges for the senior citizen. community in the State of New 

Jersey, who so desperately need this relief. 

So, my purpose in appearing here today - and I will close with this remar~ -

is not only to endorse, as I assume you will have others endorse, the concept of a 

lifeline that I think is critically necessary for so many thousands of our residents, 

but also to suggest that there is an option available to the citizens of New Jersey 

to implement a lifeline, or a similar proposal, without burdening the rema1n1ng 

utilities consumers in the State, without increasing the burden to any of the tax
payers in the State, and, at the same time, provide a substantial measure of economic 
relief for another substantial section of the community and for the entire tourist 

industry. 
I thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and I appreciate your time. If you have 

any questions, I would be pleased to respond. 

(applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I cautioned you before - no applause after each speaker 

talks. 
Assemblyman Perskie, your recommendatiQn is very, very laudable. I notice 

you are trying to kill two birds with one stone. You are trying to pass casino 

gambling in Atlantic City, which I am in favor of also, but I also see that you 

feel that any monies derived from casino gambling should be dedicated to a lifeline 

rate to help the senior citizens and the poor of this State. 

I think this is a very, very good recommendation because the problem that 
has been facing me right along is, where is the money going to come from to pay a 

lifeline rate. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Chairman, that is why I wanted to appear early, so 

that during the course of your day, as the question, "Where is the money going to 

come from?" is asked - we are not trying to kill the two birds with one stone, we 

are trying to save the two birds with one stone - I hope that the citizens will con
sider the constitutional dedication of these proceeds for this purpose. It is not 
just simply a matter of where Steve Perskie, or any other individual legislator, 

thinks the money from the casinos should go, it is written right into the constitutional 

language and if the referendum is adopted, it would have to go there. It should go 
there. Those are the people in the State who need the help. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Steve, one more question. How much money do you think 

casino gambling could raise? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Our estimates are - which will be documented during the 

course of the Fall debate on the referendum - that after the system becomes fully 
operational, which we would estimate would take a couple of years, between the con

struction of the new hotels, etc., that the State yield from the licensing and taxation 

of the casinos would reliably be estimated, based on what governmental authorities 
get in other areas of the world, in the neighborhood of $30 million - at least at the 

outset. And, that money, as I said, would exclusively be used for the purpose of 

providing subsidies for utilities rates, telephone, gas, electric, and municipal 

utilities charges for the senior citizens and disabled. 

ASSEMB~YMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. 

Our next witness will be Assemblyman Albanese's Aide, who wants to read a 

3 



statement into the record. 

Would you please state your name and who you represent? 

S H I R LEY M 0 S E S: Yes. My name is Shirley Moses. I represent Donald J. 

Albanese of the 15th District. He has a statement he wishes read into the minutes. 

Honorable Chairman and Committee Members: With your permission, I would like 

to offer the following statement as part of the permanent record of the hearing 

regarding energy needs. 

A very important aspect of energy needs is the problem of energy cost. In 

this respect, my comments are directed toward energy costs of the consumer, and an 

approach I believe a viable solution to these soaring costs. 

That approach is documented in Assembly Bill No 1830 in your Committee, 

commonly known as the Lifeline bill. This bill will establish a minimum, basic gas 

and electric need for survival of residential consumers in New Jersey. Correspondingly, 

a low, fixed price for this need shall be fixed by law and charged to all qualifying 

customers. This bill will benefit all segments of residential society in this State, 

and accordingly will provide relief for our senior citizens at a time when their fixed 

incomes can be stretched no further. 

This concept has been adopted by Vermont, Maine and California which much 

success. I believe New Jersey should seriously work toward this enactment, and it can 

become a reality with the bold leadership of your committee. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you Ms. Moses. 

Councilperson Marie Villani will be the next speaker. Councilperson Villani 

is from Newark, New Jersey. 

M A R I E v I L L A N I: My name is Councilwoman Marie Villani from the City of 

Newark. Ladies and gentlemen, I welcome this opportunity to come before you today 

to state my feelings regarding the much talked about lifeline utility rates which 

has been a topic of discussion by members of the State Legislature and Public Utilities 

Commission for almost a year. 

First let me say that I am totally in favor of the lifeline rate. I have made 

my position known publicly in statements to the media, a communication to Mr. Joel 

Jacobson, Chairman of the PUC, and its membership, and in addresses before numerous 

senior citizen groups. The elderly represent nearly 20% of our population .Ln Newark. 

Secondly, I would like to explain that it is the concept of the lifeline 

rate which I favor, not a blanket discount for all utility users. This latter pro

posal is something I consider impractical and unrealistic. I believe the State 

Legislature and the PUC should endorse a lifeline rate f'or small-user customers. 

This is a category in which most of our senior citizens would be included. 

I would take this one step further by urging that the lifeline rates be 

applied to small users within a defined income category so as to exclude high income 

residents from receiving the discount benefit deserved by the less affluent. 

Statistics show that most of our senior citizens use between 350 and 450 

kilowatt-hours per month. I think this would be a realistic ceiling up to which 

discounts could be granted to users within a defined income group. However, I would 

hope the formula would be flexible enough at the maximum level to allow those persons 

who are elderly, disabled, or handicapped, and whose income is below poverty level, 

to enjoy the lifeline rate discount, even if they use up to 500 kilowatt-hours of 

electricity a month. But, by the same token, I would argue against proposals advocat

ing unlimited useage of electricity. I take this position on the basis of information 

furnished by the PUC which disputes the commonly-held belief that the elderly, because 

of the afflictions that accompany old age, spend more time at home and, thus, use more 
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electricity and gas. 
On the contrary, statistics tell us that mD't of the elderly, forced to live 

on a modest income, are very conservative in the amDU4t o~ electricity and gas that 
they use. Most of us in this room, if we are fortunate enough to have parents, will 
verify the fact that none of our parents who are living on a modest or fixed income 
would ever leave a room without jiggling the switch, on and off. They would never 
think of leaving a television blaring all day. Automatically they shut the t.v. off 
and shut the electricity off. I find this to be so. 

It is my understanding that it would be considered highly impractical to grant 
discounts on unlimited useage, as the loss would have to borne by commercial users 
who contribute the major share of the utility company's revenues. 

If the PUC were to grant an unlimited discount to residential users, then the 
loss would have to be made up by industry, a factor which might drive many large 
businesses out of the State to neighboring states and regions where the cost of 
maintaining basic services is far less cost.1} . 

Presently, Newark is troubled by a impending reevaluation of its 49,000 

taxable properties. Unless something is done to change the current property tax 
structure, this reevaluation will have a devastating effect on the City's homeowners. 

Five of my colleagues on the Municipal Council, including myself, have risked 
going to jail by opposing this court ordered reassessment. I bring this matter up to 
point out to you that Newark is faced with a dilemma conmon to many old cities, a 
diminishing tax base and increaaing cost. Businesses, hit with increasing costs, poor 
services and maintenance, have moved to outlying suburban areas where it is less 
expensive to conduct an effective operation. Aa a result, the tax burden has shifted 
to the homeowners. 

Many of the residential property owners, who could afford to, have moved out 
of Newark. Others have merely abandoned their property, since they would no longer 
afford to pay the taxes on it. Newark needs its middle class, as do all cities, 
but it also needs the industrial ratables to help lessen the tax burden of its 
residents. We cannot afford to lc.3• any more industrial ratables. Industry not only 
helps strengthen our tax 1.ase, it. also provides jobs for our citizens. 

For this reason, I woul.:l not support an unlimited utility discount rate, which 
might be the key to the Pando.t·o.' ~ box. A civilized society must live within certain 
limitations. I think we should also limit ou1· discounts. Our utility companies must 
make financial allowances to senior citizens, but in doing so they should not be 

forced to abolish the incentive presently offered to business and industry, for it is 
these conmercial ratables which pay a substantial portion of our city's tax dollars 
and, thus, enables us to give a. t 

and other low income individuals. 
t>naa:.C to .s.:o,'Ji.or citizens, the disabled, handicapped, 

In conclusion, I believ,. our seniors have earned certain benefits and one of 
them is a discount in utility rates. However, we mu~t be realistic and try not to 
cut off our nose to spite our face. I beliave in a lif~line rate for small users, 
such as seniors, but, by the same token, our large industrial users should not be 
denied certain benefits which are made up in the taxes they pay, the very same taxes 
which enable us to grant tax exemptions to senior citizens. 

Ladies and gentlemen, I tha.1k you. 

(applause) 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Please. please, no applause. If we continue to have 

applause You see, we have stenographers wcrk.ing here and we can't have any 
applause because everything has to be put into the reco" 1 in an orderly fashion. 
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So, please, no applause because you an' not helping the stenographers here. No 

applause. 
our next witness will be Councllman Guiliano of Newark, New Jersey. 

You know, you people are not familiar with the procedures of legislative 

hearings. The panel here hopes to ask questions of 'the witnesses. When you applaud 

you disrupt everything. So, please, no applause. If we continue to have applause 
then I will have to clear the gallery. No applause. You are not helping us. I told 

you at the outset of this hearing that I am on your side. 

want to help you. The applause is not going to help you. 

hearing. 
Proceed, Councilman Guiliano. 

I know your problems. I 
It is going to disrupt the 

ANTHONY J. G U I L I A N 0: 'My name is Anthony J-. Guiliano, Councilman-at-

Large, City of Newark. 
Distinguished members of the Transportation and Cotnmlinications Committee: I 

speak before you today not to cite facts and figures surrounding the needs of our 

citizens who are losing their buying power due to the cost of living increases, but to 

give you some insight into the human side of the problem faced by these people, the 

elderly and the handicapped, day after day, week in and week out. 

Newark residents turn to me and to other members of !the Municipal Council of 

the City of Newark to plead for their lives - "How can we keep out heads above water?" 

They do not ask, "How can we take a vacation trip?·" or "How can we buy a new car?" 

They do not ask, "Where shall we go out to dinner tonight?" They ask, "How can I 

pay my rent, my medical bills, and food costs?" 

I see the laborer fearful of being laid off, one who has a family of five to 

support. I see the senior citizen with terror in her eyes and who can barely manage 

and who wonders, "What is going to happen to me when I can no longer take care of 

myself and there is no one else to take care of me?" As a matter of fact, we are 

all becoming senior citizens and that is one thing the good Lord did, make sure we 

all reach there. You~e in the position to ease the burden for these needy citizens 
by limiting how much they are required to pay for a vital necessity, household 

utilities. This is not a luxury. 
I am not an expert and I do not have all the answers but I must present to 

you the plight of those who cry for relief. Economists talk about double digit 
inflation and recession but what do these terms mean for the person who lives in 

fear of having his electricity turned off for non payment? In the City of Newark 
alone there are nearly 7,000 senior citizens living in projects. Many of them, this 

month, were hit with rent increases because their social security payments have gone 

up. Our Federal Government, which mandated the rent increases as incomes rose, gave 

with one hand and took away with the other. Why give them the ihcrease in social 

security at all if they are forced to turn their money over imlilediatel.y in rent and 

utility payments? 

While some few lucky senior citizens have condominiums in Florida or homes 

at the Shore, the majority are hurting and they are hurting badly. Harrison Williams, 

our distinguished New Jersey Senator, recently revealed that the job situation for 

older people is bordering on near poverty for many of thoSe over 55 years of age. 

Here we have people who are anxious to put their dkill to use with the 

dignity of labor, but there is no place for them. On top Of that, WS saddle them 

with skyrocketing utility, rent, and food costs. Can society afford t6 turn our 

backs on these elderly and handicapped and other poor, and, at the same time, offer 

huge tax incentives to large corporations. What are our social priorities? We .cannot 
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say to these older citizens, "You have served your purpose and now we abandon you." 

Instead, we must fashion a plan where those who have contributed to the benefit of 

succeeding generations can live out their remaining years free from the fear of 

degradation and poverty. 

In April, members of the New Jersey Federqtion of Senior Citizens came to 

speak to me about the lifeline rate for electricity and gas. I was pleased to sponsor 

a motion in the City Council, at their request, urging the State Assembly to pass the 

bill requiring utilities to provide consumers with energy sufficient for basic human 

needs, at the lowest rate the utilities charge any consumer. 

Since that time; I have had many meetings with the Federation and I have 

become acutely aware of the problems facing the elderly, especially the poor elderly. 

The Newark Council, in recent months, asked the Legislature for a moratorium on the 

reevaluation of our city property to avoid aggravating the situation. An unfair 

tax burden exists on Newark's middle class. The Legislature granted a six-month delay 

in this reevaluation. 
In conclusion, gentlemen, today I am asking the Legislature to listen to my 

pleas on behalf of those who cannot bear the burden of ever-increasing utility costs. 

Thank you, gentlemen, for giving me this time to express my views. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I would like to ask you a few questions, Councilman. 

COUNCILMAN GUILANO: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I know you are a Councilman in the largest City of 

the State - Newark. How many people in Newark are living in projects where their 

cost of electricity and gas is included in their rent? 

COUNCILMAN GUILANO: Well, I know there are at least 7,000 elderly. What 

percentage there is -- there must be at least 30% in the City of Newark who are 

living in projects where the rents have been increased, according to their Social 

Security upgrading. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, but their rents have been increased because 

the utility bills have increased, right? 

COUNCILMAN GUILANO: Not only because of the cost of the utilities but because 

of Social Security. When the government feeds them with one hand, they take away 

with the other. Now they are going to be burdened with the utilities. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Are their utility bills included in their rent? 
COUNCILMAN GUILANO: I believe they are. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: They are? 
COUNCILMAN GUILANO: I belive they are. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You see, now we face a problem with that. It has been 

argued that lifeline rate reductions would not reach those poor whose utility costs 

are included in their rent payments because then they would come under commercial 

rates. You see, we have a problem there. 
COUNCILMAN GUILANO: I haven't done any research on that but I will, Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Where is the money going to come from? 

COUNCILMAN GUILANO: Well, as you said before, you are for the gambling and I 

am too and so are the majority of the Council. We said it when the Lottery started -

"Let's get the Lottery going. Let's get the race tracks going. Let's get 'this' going", 

but everything seems to disappear. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Then you feel that casino gambling money should be 

dedicated to lifeline rates for the poor and the senior citizens? 

COUNCILMAN GUILANO: The poor, senior citizens, and the handicapped, and for 

everyone, at a certain percentage, especially the middle class. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You see, I think your problems in Newark are the same 

as they are in Jersey City. 

COUNCILMAN GUILIANO: I believe so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We have a big problem in Jersey City. Most of our 

senior citizens don't have the senior citizens projects, ,like other cities have. We 

have, maybe, about three senior citizen projects in Jersey City. Most of our senior 

citizens live in flats. 

COUNCILMAN GUILIANO: Which is good. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: No. They are flats that are not insulated and some

times they have to go to space heaters. Sometimes they burn gas on gas. They go 

above the low figure of 300 Kilowatt-hours. So, they woundn't benefit by this type 

of a lifeline rate. 

COUNCILMAN GUILIANO: No, they wouldn't. Well, the worst thing that ever 

happened was the high-rise. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Councilman. 

COUNCILMAN GUILIANO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Our next witness will be Edward A. McCool, representing 

the Department of Community Affairs. He is the Deputy Director of the New Jersey 

Division of Aging. Mr. McColl. 

E D W A R D A. M C C 0 0 L: Mr. Chairman, my name is Edward McCool. I am 

Deputy Director for the New Jersey Division on Aging in the Department of Community 

Affairs. 

Before I begin - and I will keep my remarks brief because it is extremely 

hot in here, as we all know - I was wondering if it might be possible for the 

Chairman and the Committee to exercise some officers to obtain a few additional 

chairs for the people in the back. Having stood back there myself, I know there are 

several people in serious need of some seats. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I don't think they have the chairs - the additional 

chairs. 

MR. MC COOL: All right. I would just like to ask, for my own point of infor

mation, has the Utilities Commission decided that there shall be some form of assist

ance, relief, or what have you, for the elderly, or for people below a certain income? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I think it was the intention of theUtilities Commissioner -

the Chairman of the Commission - to come up with a lifeline rate by regulation. I 

think the two commissioners are not in agreement and they have not come up with the 

regulation. 

MR. MC COOL: Okay. All I would like to do is, on behalf of the Division, 

indicate that we are in favo~ of, and do endorse the concept of a lifeline, the 

concept of some type of system wherby we can guarantee, as best as practical, that no 

one will have their vital utilities cut off because of non-payment. 

I would further like to extend - to the extent that you would like to use them -

the talents and services of the Division on Aging,in whatever way you would see it best 

used, and the knowledge we have from the State's perspective. I know that some of the 

problems that have come up in whatever system is adopted - if there is one - are, how 

do we certify people: how do we determine who is eligible: how does the actual day-to-day 

operation of this begin and what agencies will we use: who is going to pay for it? 

We do have a large amount of knowledge of the existing delivery systems and service 

areas already in place that affects the lives of the senior citizens of the State and 

we feel that perhaps some of our information might be most useful to you in this area. 

That is all I have to say. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. McCool, as I said - and I am going to say this 

over and over again - our Committee wants answers and one of the answers we would like 

is where the money is going to come from. You see, this is what is bothering us. I 

think we can put a lifeline rate program in effect in the State of New Jersey, but . 
where is the money going to come from? Do you have any ideas, suggestions, recommendations -? 

MR. MC COOL: No, I don't. I didn't come prepared with a concrete suggestion as 

to where the dollars are going to flow from. 

I find that in the time I have worked for·government, once government makes up 

its mind it is going to do something, it gets done. It finds a way of doing it. It may 

not always be the most equitable method in the beginning and it may require reform later 

on as it is done, but I would like to see the determination made that there is going to 

be some type of structure to provide some type of assistance, that structure implemented 

and in place and some area of support started, whether it is to spread out the additional 

cost among all existing consumers or what have you - at least get it started. 

We don't know what other things need to be changed until we have something 

already working. We don't have anything right now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. McCool, the only way we can be guided is by 

statistics. Do you have any statistics of how many people are faced with non-payment 

of gas and electric bills? 
MR. MC COOL: I would think the utility companies would have information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Your Department hasn't done anything along those lines? 

MR. MC COOL: I said I think the utility companies would be better able to 

provide you with the statistics since they are the ones who cut the service. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: And you don't know how serious the problem is, do you? 

MR. MC COOL: Well, that is the other thing - I think the presence of all 

these people is one indication of how serious the problem is to them. The second thing 

is, if one person dies or a hundred persons die, I don't know - what do we mean when 

we get into the numbers game? I think we are all aware of the fact that heat, electricity, 

and gas are not luxuries. I think we are all aware of the fact that we have a common 

commitment to try and guarantee as much as we can that nobody is going to lose those 

items. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. McCool, are there any on-going programs in your 
Department, now, to try to help these people? 

MR. MC COOL: Last winter we allocated approximately $4,000 to 9 counties, 
which we determined to have the highest ratio of elderly citizens and homeowners. We 

gave them this money to use to subsidize fuel payments, where necessary, and to provide 
for emergency short-term repair for heating units. Unfortunately, there is not an 

awful lot of State funds that we have to administer for this area and there is not 

an awful lot coming from the Federal Government for this area. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You say most of this was done with Federal money? 

MR. MC COOL: No. These were State funds that I just mentioned. The Federal 

monies go to the Community Services Administration, primarily through the Community 

Action agencies. We use State funds to compliment that effort through the county 

offices on aging. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Another thing is to control a program such as this. 

How do you select these people who are eligible for this type of relief? How do you 

select them? Do you have guidelines, or what? 

MR. MC COOL: Do you mean for our effort? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: For your effort, yes. 

MR. MC COOL: It was not by income; it was f~r senior citizens. We relied on 
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the expertise of the county offices to determine this. Certainly, priority should be 

given to the lower-income senior citizen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Do you check with the welfare department of that county 

or what? 

MR. MC COOL: No. I am not completely familiar with this in every case. In 

most cases the county office would ask the individual requesting assistance for some 

statement of income. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Have you any idea of the percentage of senior citizens 

who are below the poverty line? 

MR. MC COOL: Well, we estimate there are roughly about--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You see, the only way we can legislate is by the 

information you give us. I hope and pray that in the future - we have a staff man 

here who is working on lifeline rates - you will supply him with information. We 

will gladly accept it. 

MR. MC COOL: That is why I am here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, but I mean even in the future. We want statistics 

too. 

MR. MC COOL: Okay. My number is 4833 if your staff man wants to write it 

down. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: All right. Thank you, Mr. McCool. 

I would now like to introduce the President of the Senate, who has graced 

us with his presence here this morning and he will be the next speaker. Senator 

Matthew Feldman, President of the Senate from Bergen County. 

S E N A T 0 R M A T T H E W F E L D M A N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Assemblyman 

Esposito, Chairman of the Assembly Transportation and Communications Committee, deserves 

a second'~hank you"because he has been working hard all week and he knows that the 

problem before us today is something that we have to look at with priority. We must 

secure low cost power, not temporarily but for life. And so, Mr. Chairman, I want to 

commend you for Chairing this meeting today and for the activity you have certainly 

exercised on behalf of this type of power. 

I am pleased to have the opportunity to contribute to your much needed review 

and discussion of energy conservation. As the principal sponsor of Senate Bill No. 1447, 

which would establish a lifeline billing program for utility costs, to reduce the 

burden on the poor and the elderly for life-sustaining gas and electricity, it is 

indicative that I, as you, share more than a passing interest in this area. 

Ever since the Arab oil embargo in 1973, utility prices have risen dramatically. 

Between 1973 and 1974 alone, fuel costs rose a staggering 89.5%. It seems that we 

are deluged monthly by utility companies seeking still larger rate increases. The 

human impact of these increases have been critical, and at times somber, for it has 

hit hardest at those least able to pay - namely, the poor and elderly. Every 

legislator has been confronted by constituents living on fixed incomes - and many 

people in this Chamber today live on fixed incomes - whose gas and electric bills have 

doubled and tripled despite their enormous efforts to reduce consumption. 

OVer the last three years, the so-called lifeline concept of billing consumers 

of utilities has arisen. It has taken many different shapes, but a common thread of 

every proposal is that it is unconscionable for us to allow any member of our society 

to be unable to purchase at least a minimum amount of life-sustaining gas and electricity. 

The other concern that we have is,the present utility rate structure,by charging lower 

rates for larger users, encourages even more consumption at precisely the same time 

we should be conserving energy. 

10 

• 

l 

• 

• 



.. 

• 

As you know, in April of this year, I introduced S-1447 because I believed 

it was a highly commendable proposal and because the PUC had not, and still has not, 
acted favorably on its proposal to adopt a lifeline pricing mechanism. 

Senator Bill 1447 would require the PUC to designate a minimum amount of gas 

and electricity that is absolutely necessary to sustain the energy needs of the 

average residential user. The PUC would then require each public utility to charge 

a lifeline rate for those energy needs which would be at a rate that would not exceed 
the lowest rate per kilowatt-hour at which electricity or gas is sold to any customer. 

However, the PUC could reduce the rate even lower for special classes of users. 

Since the need for electricity is so prominent throughout our nation, any rate 

increase can have a pervasive impact on the American economy and can severely affect 

the lives of the poor and elderly. 
Most utilities structure their rates in such a way that the more you use, the 

lower the price. For example, the first 100 kilowatts might cost 5¢ per kilowatt and 

the next 100 kilowatts cost 4¢ per kilowatt. While such a structure was undoubtedly 
desirable during the energy-plentiful 1950's and 1960's, it is inappropriate and, may 

I add, immoral in the 1970's. 
A lifeline rate structure would make a minimal amount of gas and electricity 

available to everyone at a reasonable price. As the consumption increased, the rate 

would increase at a graduated level. Marketplace economics would dictate that as the 

use increases, the customer would conserve energy because the cost would increase. 

Under such a structure, the higher income user would subsidize the lifeline rate being 

offered to the small, and nearly always, low-income user. 

Interestingly enough, a Rand Study back in 1970 of the Los Angeles area 

utility customers documented the fact that under the present rate structure, lower income 

customers were actually subsidizing higher income users. A user of lOOKWH pe.r month 

who had an income of under $5,000 - was paying 5.1¢ per KWH, while the user of 584 

KWH - who had an income of over $15,000 - was paying 3.1¢ per KWH, a 26% difference • 

Similar results were found in Boston where a user of 100 KWH paid an average of 

5.6¢ per KWH, whereas a user of 300 KWH paid an average of 3.9¢ per KWH, and a user 

of 1,700 KWH paid an average of 1.9¢ per KWH. 
I submit to you, respectfully and rather strongly, that this rate structure 

is unfair, inequitable and wasteful of our scarce energy resources. 
I would respectfully suggest that the committe review the lifeline proposal 

as a mechanism with great potential for conserving energy. I believe the lifeline 
will conserve energy while at the same time offer relief to consumers who are over

whelmed by spiraling fuel costs and be a first step toward a more equitable rate 

structure. 
I commend you for calling this hearing, as I commend the people who are here 

and who are showing a very strong interst in this very difficult problem • 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Senator Feldman, for your expert testimony. 

I assure you that your statement and your bill will be thorougly scrutinized by this 

committee. Thank you. 
The next speaker is Doctor Shepard Bartnoff, President of the Jersey Central 

Power and Light Company. Doctor Bartnoff. 

S H E P A R D B A R T N 0 F F: Assemblyman Esposito, my name is Shepard Bartnoff. 

I am President of Jersey Central Power and Light Company, .a subsidiary of General Public 

Utilities Corporation. My business address is Madison Avenue at Punchbowl Road, 

Morristown, New Jersey. 

I appreciate the invitation to appear before your committee. I am a little 
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bit honored. I notice, here at the witness seat, that I am sitting in the seat of 

my own Assemblyman, Assemblyman Al Burstein, and I hope I can bring to the delibera

tions of your committee the wisdom and competence that he brings to the deliberations 

of the Assembly. 

My own educational background consists of a Bachelor of Arts Degree in 

Mathematics from Syracuse University, a Master of Arts Degree in Physics from Syracuse 

University, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Physics from Massachusetts Institute 

of Technology. 

My employment background consists of successive positions as Instructor, 

Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, and Executive Officer in the Physics Depart

ment of Tufts University from 1949 to 1955. 

In 1955 I entered private industry when I joined the Westinghouse Atomic Power 

Division, working on the design of nuclear reactors and reactor systems. Later, I 

was manager of in-house sponsored research and development and then reliability manager 

of the Westinghouse Advanced Reactor Division. I am also a registered professional 

engineer. 

I joined General Public Utilites Corporation in 1968 as a nuclear fuels manager 

and later was manager of engineering and then director of environmental affairs. I 

was elected President of Jersey Central Power and Light in September of 1972. 

Today I have two purposes in making a statement. First, I would like to put 

the issues involved in this hearing in the context of the overall goal of our company, 

which we believe is to render safe, adequate, and reliable electric service to our 

customers at the lowest possible cost consistent with a fair return to our investors -

which, incidentally, is also one of our costs- and with the distribution of our 

charges allocated among customer classes on a cost of service basis. 

Second, I would like to explore with you some of the ways we believe it would 

be permissible for Jersey Central, under the terms of our charter, to provide assistance 

to the needy. And, Assemblyman, this is a problem to which we are very sensitive. 

We are aware of the problems of those customers in our service territory who are 

in need, who are at the poverty level, who are handicapped, who are on fixed incomes. 

To begin with, I would like to point out that for the average family, the cost 

of electric service is less than 2% of family income - it is 1.92% - and for Jersey 

Central customers this is even lower, about 1.71%. This is despite the fact that 

our customers, in our territory, consume more than the average amount per family of 

electric energy as compared to the entire nation. 

However, we realize that averages do not tell the story facing many families 

in New Jersey who live below the poverty level. Many have fixed incomes. Many are 

unemployed. Energy prices, in general, have risen dramatically. Oil has gone up 

95% for residential heating from January of 1973 to June of 1975 in New Jersey. And 

Jersey Central uses oil to produce power. Our electric costs have risen. One saving 

gr~ce for Jersey Central is our Oyster Creek Nuclear Station and the power we receive 

from the Three Mile Island nuclear station in Pennsylvania, a station where we own 

25%. If we had to purchase additional power from neighboring utilities, our average 

total charges to customers in 1975 would have been substantially higher than they were. 

Natural gas energy costs have also risen close to 50% over the same period, and 

further substantial increases are anticipated. 

Now, at the same time the cost of living has gone up, benefits haven't gone 

up proportionately. New Jersey's Social Security benefits for the retired wage 

earner only increased 16% from December 1972 to December 1974. There has been a 

slight further increase since, but as the Councilman from Newark pointed out, some 
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of this has been taken away through other costs that have been tied to Social Security. 

Public assistance for a household of four increased only 10% from January 1973 to 
June 1975. And, for the same period, the consumer price index for the New York-New 

Jersey area rose 25%. 

What this means is that many people are feeling the pinch and most of all those 

on fixed incomes or those who are living below or near the poverty level. The only 

public assistance program that kept pace in allowances for the period we have been 

talking about was the Food Stamp Program, which went up 85% in allowances for a house

hold of four. 

Now, there have been a number of methods proposed for alleviating the cost 

price squeeze for the needy. The approaches which have been put forward as at least 

partial solutions to this problem are - for utility customers - the adoption of 

lifeline rates, that we have heard discussed at some length today, and the use of 

energy stamps, which is a proposal I have not heard discussed as yet this morning. 

The most widely publicized program is the lifeline rate proposal. Under this concept, 

the first several hundred kilowatt-hours consumed monthly by each residential customer 

are provided at a low, uniform charge per kilowatt-hour. This would serve, it 

supporters claim, to meet the needs of the customer who has only the basic "no frills" 

appliances and who does not have electric space heating, water heating, cooking, or 

air conditioning. Lifeline thus assures the residential customer that he can get, 
at a low, fixed rate, his minimum necessary electric requirements. 

The revenues lost by lower rates would be recovered by increased rates for high 

use customers who consume beyond the lifeline level. This is a proposal that was 

just discussed by my own representative in the State Senate, Senate President Matt 

Feldman. Incidentally, this presents us with a basic problem at Jersey Central since 

we strongly believe that no class of customer should be given special consideration 

on rates when it throws an additional burden on other customers. 

However, lifeline rates are easy to understand. They can be placed in effect 

with little delay and they call for no new tax revenues. Lifeline rates also are 

said to encourage conservation and to help the poor and elderly. However, there are 

some drawbacks to the program. Lifeline rate reductions would not reach those poor 

whose utility costs are included in their rent payments, a point, Assemblyman 

Esposito, which you made when you were questioning one of the previous witnesses. 
Also, a significant additional group of poor customers are, in fact, not small users 
of electricity, while many affluent customers are small users. There is really no 

direct relation between income and electrical consumption. 

For example, an electric water heater alone will consume at least 500 kilowatt

hours per month and in our charter territory the poor are as likely to have electric 

water heating as the more affluent. Farmers who are far from affluent may account for 
high electric use. The poor often turn to electric space heating to supplement poor 

heating systems in their current homes .. - those homes, Assemblyman, that you mentioned 

are in your own territory around Jersey City. 

These are just some of the problems faced in identifying and assisting the 

needy person through a lifeline system. Now, we are not opposed, necessarily, to 

lifeline rates, though we do feel that we should point out to this committee, for 

its deliberation, what the drawbacks are. We truly believe that there are 

many, many cases where the imposition of a lifeline rate structure would have 

accomplished the purposes to which we feel the people who have spoken here so far 

this morning are very legitimately addressing themselves to - that main purpose being 
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assistance to those who need assistance. We are not convinced that a lifeline rate 

structure would accomplish this purpose. We have extensive data on customer usage 

and anything that we can supply you, or the staff of your committee, with, from our 

own files, we would be happy to make available to the committee for its use. 

I would like to discuss another proposal. Perhaps the most promising proposal 

which is now receiving increased consideration as a means of assisting the poor and the 

needy in coping with the energy crisis is a system of energy stamps. Two experimental 

energy stamp programs have already been conducted, one in Colorado and one in 

Pennsylvania. 

In the Pennsylvania experiment, those eligible for food stamps were also eli

gible for energy stamps. Books containing $75 worth of stamps were distributed for 

$25 each to low-income families and this was done through a community action committee. 

These stamps were used to pay energy bills, that meant either fuel utility - electric 

or gas - or fuel oil bills. 

The advantage of energy stamps are many. First, since the eligibility 

standards parallel existing food stamp standards, the cost of administering the program 

should be low. Second, the poor are identified directly and assisted directly instead 

of relying on electrical use as a basis of measurement. Where utility costs are in

cluded in rent, energy stamps can be used as a portion of the rent payment. Also, since 

energy stamps can be used to pay gas or fuel oil bills, as well as electrical bills, they 

do not discriminate against the poor and needy who happen to use electricity for cook

ing or hot water or space heating. In addition, they present a much more meaningful 

savings in total amount compared to proposed lifeline rate savings. 

Another advantage of the energy stamp program is that it fits into a current 

social service program already being administered by the government. The utilities 

should not be a social agency and in this case they would not be. In addition to 

the ethical considerations, I can tell you, first-hand, as President of a major 

utility in New Jersey, that utilities neither have access to the necessary information 

nor do they have the staff and the competence to develop and administer social programs. 

Theoretically, an energy stamp program is feasible at the state level. Energy 

stamps, like lifeline rates, are not without some drawbacks, however. There is a 

problem that receipt of energy stamps would tend to diminish food stamps dnd possibly 

other assistance - the type of thing the Councilman from Newark spoke about when he 

talked about the government giving with one hand and taking with another. This would 

require special care by the Legislature so that in the legislative remedies that would 

encompass the energy stamp program, there would not be such a diminution. 

Also, tax revenues are required to pay for the stamps. But if the State were 

to conclude, and your committee were to propose in the Legislature, that an energy stamp 

program was feasible and desirable, it would require additional taxes. We have heard 

this morning some proposals on the cost coming from the taxation of a possible hypothetical 

establishment of gambling casinos in one part of the State. We believe that the cost 

of such a program could also be met by a special tax on energy suppliers. But, here 

we would caution that such a tax should be imposed on all energy suppliers, including 

the electric utilities, but also including gas suppliers and, above all, suppliers of 

fuel oil which furnish a major portion of the home heating energy source for the 

residents of the State. These suppliers are not, as are the gas and the electric 

utilities, currently under State regulation, put this should not inhibit the Legis-

lature, if it so chooses, from providing for taxation of these sources - and this 

should be, I think, since all of the forms of energy, including fuel oil, enter into 
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the total cost of energy that the customer must bear. 

Another lesser drawback to an energy stamp program is that although the 

stamps can be offered to the poor and elderly, there is no assurance they will be taken. 

The food stamp program, our experience has shown, has had only 50% of those eligible 

apply for stamps. Participation, then, does not necessarily include everyone. Never

theless, the opportunity would be there for people who really need help to get assistance 

in coping with the rising costs of energy. 

In conclusion, the problems the poor, the needy, the handicapped and the 

elderly have in coping with rising energy costs are just part of a bigger problem. 

All of us have had difficulty in dealing with rising costs of food, shelter, transporta

tion, and clothing - of every facet of life. Although in the long run it is probably 

more desirable to supplement the income of low income groups through unemployment, 

social security, and public assistance programs and allow them to decide how they will 

spend that additional income, in the current energy crisis, of all the alternatives 

under consideration, the energy stamp program appears to me to be the most effective 

support to the needy in our society. 

As a final remark, I wish to reiterate what I said earlier, that we as a 

company are aware of the difficulties that some of the residents in our service 

territory have. We think the work of your committee in persuing these hardships and 

in looking for solutions is a most laudable endeavor. We pledge to you our cooperation 

in the work of your committee and our cooperation in any solution, be it a lifeline 

rate, be it an energy stamp program, be it whatever you, as legislators, decide is the 

most effective, the most just, the most equitable, and the best for the entire State 

of New Jersey, and the one which can best alleaviate the problems of those of our 

citizens who need this help. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Dr. Bartnoff, I have listened intently to your suggestion 

regarding an energy stamp program. You then tell me. th~re fs a drawback to the energy 

stamp program - most of the people would not be eligible, almost 50%. 

DR. BARTNOFF: No, I didn't say that, sir. l believe what I said was, some, 

since this is a voluntary program, do not volunt~er to participate. But, the opportunity 

is there. It is not a question of eligibility. The eligibility is there 100%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But, what concerns me is this: I know the senior citizens 

of this State. They are proud people. They don't want any assistance which is like 

a food stamp program or an energy stamp progam. They are not that type of people. 

(applause) 

No applause, please. 

DR. BARTINOFF: I understand, Assemblyman. I see this. I know our people 

are proud. I have had discussions with some of our old retirees and pensioners and 

I know this. I think, though, that it is incumbent upon us all, who perhaps are more 

affluent, to make it understood that an energy stamp program, or a food stamp program, 

is a right to which these people are entitled, the same as they are entitled to Social 

Security, and whether the dollars come here from an energy stamp program or whether 

they come from imposing taxes on another segment of the population, it still remains 

that the cost of the program is borne by the rest of society. And, in a lifeline 

program, which would be supported by taxation, it is not immediately apparent that it 

comes not from charity but from a legitimate claim,by those who require it, upon the 

resources of society. It is not as apparent that it comes from that society as it is 

apparent when it is given directly through an energy stamp program. However, the source 

of the funding still is the same and we, I think, must emphasize in anything we do, that 
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an energy stamp is not a charitable distribution but a right to which the recipients 

are entitled. It has the advantage of going directly to those who need it the most 

and not the disadvantage which a lifeline rate - as I have heard it proposed - would 

encounter, namely that it would benefit many who do not need the benefit and it would 

fail to benefit many of those who do need it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You formed a committee and recommend that such a program 

could be met by a special tax on energy suppliers. Do you have an idea of how much 

money could be raised by this special tax? 

DR. BARTNOFF: It isn't an idea of how much money could be raised. I think 

that what should be raised by this tax, distributed amongst the suppliers - I would 

suggest - in measure to which those suppliers furnish energy should be whatever 

is needed to cover the cost of the program to the recipients of the benefits. 

Now, I don't have,at the top of my head, numbers in thousands or hundreds of 

thousands of dollars that this would require. I could, however, request those people 

in our company who have made studies of this to supplement my testimony this morning 

by some suggestions as to dollar amounts that might be required and supply them to 

the staff of your committee if you so desire. Would you like this information, sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, I would like this information supplied to the 

committee. 

DR. BARTNOFF: I will make sure that this is done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You say the lifeline rate can be put into effect without 

dealy. You made such a statement. 

DR. BARTNOFF: Well, I'd amend that statement by saying-

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: By adoption of an energy stamp program? 

DR. BARTNOFF: No, the lifeline rate, which is, of course, separate from the 

energy stamp program, could be put into effect without additional legislation, by 

action of the Public Utilities Commission, which is ultimately responsible for the 

rate structure of the utilities it regulates. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I thought it was the attempt of the Commissioner to 

do it by regulation, but I think he has been stymied. 

DR. BARTNOFF: Well, I do know that there are, currently, hearings underway 

by the Public Utilites Commission in which all of the utilities of the State, including 

ours, are participating to supply information to the Commission of the very nature 

your committee is studying. 

·AsSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Have you considered raising the cost per kilowatt-hour 

of high users of electricity in industry? And, what effect do you see this will have? 

DR. BARTNOFF: Okay. Let me digress from answering that immediately by saying 

that under our latest rate structure, we now have for the bulk of our residential 

customers - those without all electric homes and electric heat - a flat rate structure. 

We have a structure which at any one time of year, charges the same per kilowatt-hour 

no matter whether it is a big user or a small user. There is a flat service charge, 

you might say, of five dollars and some cents, plus so much per kilowatt-hour for 

usage, no matter what the usage is. 

Now, with our industrial customers, we were asked at the last revision of our 

rate structure, by the Public Utilities Commission, to propose several rate structures 

which dealt in different levels with a shifting from the very, very low usage 

customer- I won't say low income, it is not necessarily low income - to the industrial 

sector, and to the remainder of the residential sector. We provided these rates. The 

Public Utilities Commission, in its wisdom, choose to use the rate structure which 

was not too far different in its distribution from what had been done up to that point. 
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As to our own feelings, I feel that this becomes a social problem, in a way, 

because in putting additional cost on the industrial user, we are not really removing 

them from the citizens - the residential user.· This only gets passed on in the cost 

of the product and the consumer is the same consumer who is the consumer of electric 

power. I am afraid this might even be passed on with the usual mark-up for a profit 

margin which is based upon an initial cost. 

We do encounter some dangers. We already have in the State of New Jersey, for 

industrial customers, a rate structure which is not competitive with other states 

and an industry which depends upon a basic cost to compete with other industries, either 

in allied or in the same field, who feel that this is a cost burden. We already have 

evidence of some major industries who, although. they have not moved out of New Jersey, 

have chosen to expand their activities in other states rather than in New Jersey. 

This, then, is a social problem and it is a problem which, I feel, cannot be 

met by addressing itself to any one small section, geographically. Certainly, our 

own service territory is too small a section to be considered. The State of New Jersey 

may be too small a section. I really believe that this is a problem that must be 

met on a national level because any one geographical area is too small to meet this 

problem adequately. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Dr. Bartnoff, I refuse to believe what you just said. 

If we were to pass the cost to the high users, wouldn't they pass that cost on to the 

consumer? You tell me they might move out of the State. 

DR. BARTNOFF: If we run across a manufacturer - a large industrial concern -

who depends, for his remaining in business, upon income from the sale of his product 

and enough of a margin over basic cost to pay those who invest in his production 

facilities, and who now finds his costs are raised-- if he cannot compete, he cannot 

stay in business. He must raise the price of his product. The answer for him is 

either move someplace else or cease doing business. He has no other alternative. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Well, ultimately, wouldn't he pass it on to the 

consumer - the cost? 

DR. BARTNOFF: Ultimately, I see no other way in which this cost can be 

covered. We see this in our own company. The price of oil goes up. The only way 

we can continue to provide our product to our customers is to increase the price to 

the customers to compensate for the increase in the cost to us. 

AssEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What do you think about putting the burden of the cost 

onto the residential customer? 

DR. BARTNOFF: This, of course, is an alternative. Now, as I pointed out, the 

high-user is not necessarily the high-income customer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I agree with you. 

DR. BARTNOFF: You have low income families with large families, living in a 

home with poor insulation, and they are pretty high users. 

This is an alternative. The ultimate cost is going to be spread over the 

users anyway. The answers that your committe(' has to como up with are, to what 

extent can this be done, how much of a cost burden would be shifted, and do we really 

want this kind of cost burden placed upon high, residential, users of electricity? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I interrupted you and I said I agree with you because 

I feel there are a lot of low-income people who are high users, due to the fact that 

they live in homes that are not insulated. What percentage of the poor and elderly 

depend upon electric water heaters? 

DR. BARTNOFF: I can't answer that question with any precision for two reasons, 
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one, although we have a good idea - and I can find out these numbers for your committee -

as to the customers we have in our service territory who do depend for electricity on 

water heating, we do not have a good measure of the economic status of these customers. 

You see, we cannot - we feel we should not - probe into the private matters of our 

customers with questions on family income and so forth. We have made some surveys 

where we have asked for a general range of income with the customer being told that 

this is a question they can answer or not answer as they see fit because it is a 

private matter. We have some correlation. I can't give them to you now but I will 

make sure your committee is provided with such information as we have. 

I believe that one of the other utilities in this State - Public Service 

Electric and Gas - has made more thorough studies of this matter and our results would 

probably not be much different from theirs. They will be testifying on this same 

subject, I believe, later today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What are the advantages and disadvantages of using 

income or age tests to determine those persons who require economic relief in the 

payment of their fuel bills? 

DR. BARTNOFF: I think the biggest advantage here is in using a needs test. 

If the need is an income need, let that be the test. I think age, per se, is not 

necessarily a criteria for assistance. Age can be accompanied - and often is in many 

cases - by a fixed income status and the income doesn't change as the cost of living 

goes up and, therefore, we find many elderly people, senior citizens, retired indi

viduals, who do need assistance. And the percentage, the fraction of citizens needing 

assistance in this senior age category, may, indeed- I would.guess, without having 

any personal knowledge of statistics- be, probably, larger than that~fraction in the 

general population. 

But, there are senior citizens who do not need assistance and, therefore, I 

would not look on age, Assemblyman, as the primary criterion. I would look on need 

as the primary criterion. 

We already heard,today, testimony from a young man from one of the State 

Agencies, who volunteered the assistance of that Agency in the determination of this 

need. 

you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Dr. Bartnoff, one other question I would like to ask 

In regard to the homes of the poor and elderly, what percentage of such homes 

are poorly insulated, do you know? Do you have any statistics? 

DR. BARTNOFF: I do not know. I do know that in our company, in those days 

when we were promoting the use of electricity, which we haven't been doing for several 

years now, and when we were encouraging all electric homes, we had a program which 

involved a certification of an all-electric home as having suitable insulation standards. 

But, this was for electric homes only. I believe that you will find those homes are 

suitably insulated but we no longer have that control since we no longer encourage this 

type of structure and I would not even vouch for new all-electric homes that are now 

' being built. 

You see, we have no inspectors who inspect insulation. This is outside our 

realm of I won't say competence, we have competent people -- but outside our 

realm of assigned responsibility by the Public Utilities Commission. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Dr. Bartnoff, do you have any suggestions on how to 

conserve energy and reduce the cost to the customers by properly insulating homes? 

I have here an article which was in the Star Ledger on August 12th - "Ross 

Wants Utility Financing For Home Insulation." Did you read that? 
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DR. BARTNOFF: I have seen that article and I am aware of, again, the Public 

Utilities Commission's investigation into the overall problem in this case. I do 

believe that there is a lot to be gained by proper insulation of homes, not so much 

in terms of use of electricity - although some in the use of electricity as well. I 

say this for the use of electricity because we encounter many homes which are not 

heated electrically, although where, because of diffioulty in maintaining proper 

temperature, there is an augmentation of the heating system through electric space 

heaters. This uses a lot of electric energy. 

I think there is a lot to be gained. What I question here is this: Here we· 

are an electric utility. Home heating is a very, very small portion of our 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Dr. Bartnoff I don't want to cut you off but (addressing 

audience) we must have absolute quiet because she (indicating stenographer) has trouble 

hearing the witness. Now, you are going to disrupt this hearing and we are not going 

to get the information we seek and we are not going to be able to help you. So, please, 

please cooperate. I am begging you. Please go along with me. 
MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: Mr. Chairman, I respectfully ask for your consideration, 

consideration for the many senior citizens that are in this Chamber today, who have 

come a long way. Many of them have been up since six o'clock this morning. They 

deserve the right to listen to the testimony that is going to be presented by the 

five speakers from the New Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens. I ask you to 

alleviate this uncomfortable condition that these senior citizens are going through. 

(applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It is the intent of this committee to hear everyone. 

We intend to hold another public hearing in Jersey City and if we need a third hearing, 

we are going to have it. It is very, very important that we listen to the testimony 

of the experts. I assure you --

hearing. 

(interruption from audience) 

I assure you that you will be called next. 

(interruption from audience) 

Dr. Bartnoff, I don't want to cut you off but we will invite you to another 

DR. BARTNOFF: I will be very happy to come whenever that hearing is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Dr. Bartnoff. 

Who represents the Federation of Senior Citizens? 
(interruption from audience) 

This is the last time -- If you do not stop, I am going to adjourn the hearing 
and you are going to defeat the purpose you came down here for. You came down here 
for relief and we intend to help you. I told you that five times already now. So, 

if you continue to applaud and if you continue to disrupt this hearing, I am going 
to adjourn it. So, please, please cooperate. 

T H 0 M A S C A R N E Y: My name is Tom Carney. I reside at 12 Montclair Avenue, 

Montclair. I am the Chairman of the North Jersey Federation's Task force on Utilities. 

Today we are here to present to you a rate reform structure known as lifeline. Through 

our testimony we will urge you to adopt this concept and authorize its implementation 

as a first step in fostering an equitable and sane power policy in our State. 

As you are aware, there is lifeline legislation before this committee at present. 

However, we want to make clear that the lifeline reform concept can take many concrete 

forms insofar as discount levels and per energy unit prices. Do not be misled to 

think that the concept can take only the shape of the present bills. Terms are 
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negotiable, but the concept of lifeline reform should be their framework. 

We are determined to convey to you our belief that every household in the 

State of New Jersey is entitled to a livable amount of gas and electricity at a low 

fixed cost. Basic energy necessities of modern life, such as lighting, heating, 

refrigeration, cooking, and cooling, should be available to all as a right, not as a 

market-variable luxury. 
Thus, the lifeline concept mandates that every residential customer be afforded 

a quantity of electric and gas at a fixed low price established either through this 

legislature and/or its extension, the Public Utilities Commission. 

A program implemented according to the lifeline concept applies to all residential 

consumers, but will benefit only those who follow a conservation policy and stay within 

the affected range of conswnption of energy units per month. 

As we will show, it will best benefit the low-income person whose ratio of 

savings to income will be much higher than those who are better off financially. 

We, as seniors, living on low, fixed incomes in a state which has the second 

highest energy costs in the nation are among those most oppressed as captive consumers 

of New Jersey's energy providers. Like other low-income persons, we can adjust to market 

fluctuations in food prices by eating less or eating cheaper. But we cannot avoid 

the need to purchase survival quantities of electricity and gas. We cannot switch 

to "Grandma's wood-burning stove" to cut our power costs. We can't trade in the 

refrigerator for an ice box because the ice man no longer cometh. Lifeline guarantees 

affordable survival power quantities to us and to all New Jersey's consumers. 

In fact, we, and our supporters, believe that lifeline can be the foundation 

for a sound State Energy Program since it will, one, stabilize residential utility 

rates~ two, more equitably distribute energy costs~ and, three, promote conservation 

by all consumers. 

I want to underline the last of these major reasons for promoting a lifeline 

program. If a lifeline program were established and publicized, residential users 

would become more aware of their monthly consumption and, if the cost of energy is higher 

for usage beyond the lifeline amount, then consumers will have an incentive to conserve. 

With wide distribution of information that after the lifeline amount the price goes up, 
consumers would consciously attempt to reduce usage to stay within the lifeline amount. 

Similarly, slightly higher costs for large non-residential users would move 

them to conserve, perhaps for the first time. 

So, the lifeline rate concept will have a beneficial effect on the conserva

tion of energy. This will help lower usage and slow the demand to build ever more 

costly new nuclear power plants. 

Thus, our proposal for relief to residential consumers can be stated briefly. 

We would propose that residential consumers be able to use up to the prevailing average 

usage in a service area, at a low cost per unit. We propose that the charge for this 

service be a low rate that the Public Utilities Commission would set under mandate 

from you, its parent body. 

We propose further that the revenue lost to the utilities be recovered by 

charging large residential users and commercial and industrial users a small additional 

charge. 

For those consumers with electric hot water heaters and/or electric space 

heating, we would propose that they not be penalized by a lifeline program. These 

consumers installed electric facilities because they were told they could get electricity 

at a lower rate. We would propose that either the present rate schedule for those 

consumers be maintained or that the lifeline program be augmented to include these 
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residential users at an equitable cost. As they are protected now, they can be pro

tected under lifeline. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: One question I would like to ask you is, do you believe 

that a lifeline rate will help the poor, the senior citizens, and all residential 

low users? 

MR. CARNEY: I certainly do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Now, do you think it is fair for a residential low 

user, who can afford to pay, to be put into the same category? 

MR. CARNEY: Yes, I certainly do. I think we need an energy policy whereby 

everybody in this State is entitled to a basic amount of electricity at a reasonable 

cost. That is why the Public Utilities Commission was created. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Now, how would you determine a low user - up to so 

many kilowatt-hours? 

MR. CARNEY: They have the figures themselves. We have brought no figures 

with us. But, in the Public Service area it is something like 471 hours per month. 

In the Jersey Central Power and Light area, it was over 600 hours. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But, would it be fair to the senior citizens or the 

poor who consume over 471 kilowatt-hours? 

MR. CARNEY: Yes, they would get a break on it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But, once he is above that 471 kilowatts-

MR. CARNEY: Then he pays. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: He pays? 

MR. CARNEY: He has to pay a higher rate. That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But, do you think it is fair to make him pay the 

higher rate if he lives in a home that is not insulated? Are you really helping him? 

MR. CARNEY: I think we are because his bills would be much, much lower. He 

cannot continue to go on with these escalating rates • 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Don't you feel that there might be other alternatives 

whereby we could help them? 

MR. CARNEY: No. We don't want any welfare program. We don't want energy 

stamps. I don't think that is the way to go because within a lifeline concept, the 

utilities would lose no money. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What about the person who uses less than 40 Kilowatt

hours and who has a second home down the Shore? 
MR. CARNEY: What's wrong with that if he has worked hard enough for it? I 

know that is Joel Jacobson's hangup. I know that. But, as far as I am concerned, every 

person who owns a home in this State is entitled to the same fair treatment. We are 

talking about holding down the rising cost of utilities. We Qave no control over it. 

The Public Utilities Commission can do more than they are doing because of the law 

under which they work, which guarantees the utility ~ they have to guarantee them a 

fair return on their invested equity. What do they guarantee us? Nothing - only 

high utility costs. And, these costs are only for;one:purpose- nuclear construction. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Carney. 

We will now hear the next speaker from the New Jersey Federation of Senior 

Citizens. 

I am made to understand that there will be five speakers from the Federation 

and we are supposed to allow them three minutes each. Please stay within the required 

tine. 

ANTHONY G 0 T T B E R G: Well, I promise not to take any more than the President 
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of the utility company did. 

My name is Anthony Gottberg. I reside at 67 Highwood Drive, Dumont, New Jersey. 

I am President of the Senior Citizens Clubs of Bergen County and I am the Secretary 

of the Federation. My purpose is to state some of the reasons why lifeline is the 

best program to provide relief to over-burdened residential energy consumers. 

The North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens, a coalition of 210 senior groups, 

a member of the New Jersey Citizen Action Alliance, has led the fight for lifeline. 

We are convinced that this program is the best program to give consumers relief and, 

at the same time, provide a stimulus to conserve energy. Let me take the point about 

conserving power first. 

Lifeline would set up a fixed amount of electricity and gas to be available 

at a low cost. Residential usage above the lifeline amount would be charged a higher 

rate. This creates an incentive for the consumer to limit his uage. In turn, this 

helps lower the demand for energy, which then helps reduce the demand for new power 

facilities. Today, the utility companies and government t8ll us we ought to reduce 

our use of power. If we are going to get serious about this, then we have to create 

an incentive. As legislators, you know that one of the biggest incentives you can 

create is a monetary one. Offer people reduced charges for holding their energy 

usage down, and they will have a real interest in self-dicipline. By the way, 

industry could also participate and save up to 20% of energy cost that is wasted 

because of low cost. You have buildings in the metropolitan area that keep everything 

on for 24 hours a day. This is absolutely unnecessary between the hours of eight P.M. 

and eight A.M. You have buildings in the City of New York that have no means of 

cutting off the electricity and no switches - a complete waste of electric power. 

Now, let us turn to how best provide relief to hard-pressed consumers, 

especially families with low incomes and seniors on fixed income. Today, a large 

majority of consumers are having difficulty making income match expenses for essentials. 

Many consumers currently employed in low-paying jobs are having just as much difficulty 

making ends meet as that group you have called the poor and the elderly. Lifeline 

provides an opportunity to help all residential consumers, especially those at,or 

just barely above, the poverty level. 

The point I would like to make is, seniors, young couples with growing families, 

minority groups, and all others living on low incomes, cannot live under a system 

that forces them to pay ever-increasing living costs for their health, rent, food, 

as well as the ever-rising gas and electric bills. Lifeline will do a much better 

job of reaching the poor and the elderly than any other program that we have heard 

of. 

The New Jersey Department of Institutions and Agencies told us recently 

that approximately 70% of the elderly who are eligible for food stamps are not 

participating in the program. One of the principal reasons for this low partici

pation is the fact that seniors have an aversion to welfare programs and to means 

tests. It is simply too degrading and as a result, seniors are suffering. 

The fact is, even if you do succeed in forcing another means test program on 

us, it won't do what you expect it to do. We may not be utility experts and we may 

not be financial wizards, but we are experts in the kind of programs that will really 

benefit that large number of seniors in our State. 

If you pass legislation that is supposed to benefit the elderly and put a 

means test on it, large numbers of needy elderly won't sign up. Will any of you sit 

there and tell us we ought to swallow our pride? I am telling you that the reality is 

that argue all you will, any plan entailing means-tests just will not work. 
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I have two particular instances I would like to cite for you. One is about 

a person that I only met a week ago and I do not even know his name. Just in an 

off-hand manner, he started talking about his troubles. He spends his full week 

down at the lunch program getting the 60¢ lunches. That is the meal that he eats 

for the day. In an off-hand manner he said, "You know, I spend $100 a month on 

drugs." How is a person spending that much money on drugs going to live on Social 

Security and very little else? The man had a disability and could not possibly 

work and he was over 65. He had Social Security. I don't think he had a pension. 

How is he going to pay his rent and buy food also? If it weren't for that 60¢ food 

program, the man would be dead. 

When we talk about seniors not wanting welfare, I have a friend in Hackensack 

who, when I talked about helping her because her income after all expenses are taken 

out is about $7.00 a week, said to me, "I hope, Mr. Gottberg, that you are not talking 

about welfare." That is the attitude of people of our age. We have gone through too 

much over the years and we do not intend to end our lives as welfare recipients. 

There will be other people, and they said so here today, that will tell you 

that you ought to go with a plan known as "peak load pricing." The idea is that if 

you use electricity during periods of high demand it will cost you more than usage 

during low demand times. Just stop and think about that plan and what it will do to 

us who are seniors. We are simply not able to be active early in the morning nor late 

at night, when electric charges would be lowest. For health reasons, many seniors 

would be hurt by this program because they are not--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Gottberg7-

MR. GOTTBERG: Yes, sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It was agreed that there would be five people represent

ing the Federation of Senior Citizens and they would be allowed three minutes each. 

Now, please make your statement short. 

MR. GOTTBERG: I am finishing up my statement now • . ,, 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Please. 

MR. GOTTBERG: I wish you would have made that statement before, when the 

first speaker spoke. We would have been all through and out of here by this time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It was agreed, with your people. 

MR. GOTTBERG: For health reasons, many seniors would be hurt by this program 

because they are not able to be active at those times when electricity would be cheaper. 

If you take that program, you are trying to force us .to change our life style. Don't 

ask us to do our wash at midnight, don't dabble in social engineering. 

Let me sum it up by saying simply that when you weigh the pros and cons of the 

various programs that could lower our energy bills, you have to see that lifeline is 

the way to go. We know you are sympathetic to our problems. You have said so. Do 

the right thing for us and your other constituents. I beg of you to move for lifeline 

now. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Gottberg, there are a couple of questions I would 

like to ask you. What percentage of senior citizens rent, and would lifeline help them? 

MR. GOTTBERG: I would say that most seniors in our area, in Bergen County, 

are tenants instead of homeowners. The great majority of them rent an apartment. 

We would expect that some of this lifeline would, most certainly, help the seniors 

who rent their dwelling. There aren't that many senior citizen housing developments 

in Bergen County. They have them in two or three towns. There may be some in others. 

But, we do not, in our particular area - which I know something about - have too many 

senior citizen dwellings. They are slightly better off than the others, of course, but 



their rent is also predicated upon the cost of electricity and the cost of operating 

the particular housing that they are living in. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Would you say there are about 80% that rent? 

MR. GOTTBERG: I would say that would be at least the figure. Eighty percent, 

or better, of the people in the area I know most about - and that is Bergen County

rent and do not own their own home. I would say there are some 130 thousand people 

who are seniors in Bergen County. I can say definitely that there are some 21 thousand 

homeowners out of that figure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In terms of dollars, how much would the lifeline program 

help the senior citizens? 

MR. GOTTBERG: I would hope that it would be anywhere from $5.00 to $10.00 

per month. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I hope it would be that much - $5.00 to $10.00 per month. 

MR. GOTTBERG: Well, the figure, of course, would be predicated upon what the 

Assembly does with the bill and what would happen, finally, as far as the total amount 

of kilowatts are concerned - whether it be 300 or 500 kilowatts. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Your last spokesman for the senior citizen group said 

that he felt the man who owned a second house and who didn't need help to pay his 

utility bills should also benefit by a lifeline rate. Now, I personally believe -

why should government intervene in cases where people have no difficulty in paying 

their utility bills? 

MR. GOTTBERG: Well, that, of course, was, possibly, a personal opinion of the 

man to whom you addressed that question. If you asked that question of me, I would say 

that anyone having a second home should not be under the unbrella of low prices. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What about a fellow who owns a second home? 

MR. GOTTBERG: I am saying that a man who owns a second home, in my estimation, 

should not be able to avail himself of this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What about the wealthy man who lives in a home? He 

has a well insulated home. He has his energy cost down to a minimum. Should he benefit? 

MR. GOTTBERG: What you are doing now is talking about 10% of people who are 

possibly wealthy and not using up to 400 Kilowatts. I rather doubt that there are that 

many. But, the main problem -- the problem is one that is with us and it has to be 

handled one way or the other. I think that the method we are proposing - the lifeline 

method - is the best. 

Now, if you can -- I don't know the percentages, but it seems to me that there 

is a good deal of nit picking going on when they try and say, "Well, there are 5%", or 

they don't mention any percentage, they just say, "Some senior citizens have money." 

But, the great majority - I ~uld say probably everyone here - does not have that 

money. The average person lives on his income. He lives on his Social Security and 

probably a small pension, or his bank account, and he is taking not only the interest 

on his bank account, but he is probably using - from what I gather - the main amount. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Gottberg. 

MR. GOTTBERG: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: The next spokesman for the Federation of Senior Citizens, 

John Lamb. 

We intend to recess at 1:00. I want to put on one more speaker after this 

group so I am begging you and I am urging you to please limit your remarks to one 

or two minutes - please. 

MR. LAMB: I will try to do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Because we only have 15 minutes. 
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MR. LAMB: I've only got a few pages. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: All right. 

J 0 H N L A M B: Mr. Chai~an, my name is John J. Lamb and I reside at 146 Knicker

bocker Avenue, Hillsdale, Bergen County. At the outset, I would like to inform the 

Chai~an that the current legislation under consideration provides that benefits under 

lifeline will be restricted to the principal residence. A person who has more than one 

residence could only get the benefits at the principal residence. 

Now, I want to provide this committee with the results of our surveys about 

electrical usage by seniors. The utility companies and the Public Utilities Commis

sion have stated in other hearings that the elderly may use more than the average amount 

of electricity. The following is offered to argue against that idea and in support 

of a lifeline program aimed at the average consumer. 

In January, 1976, the Federation took a mail survey of seniors in urban, sub

urban, and rural areas. Two sets of requests were sent out. The first requested 400 

senior residents from throughout the eight-county region of the Federation to send 

three months' bills to the Federation office. We received 334 responses. The average 

usage for retirees responding was 340 Kilowatt-hours per month. 

The second mailing was to 100 different retirees, the majority of whom were 

suburbanite. Responses numbered 73 and the average monthly usage was 247 Kilowatt

hours monthly. 

Instances of greater usage were found in the rural areas and in some scattered 

instances in the urban areas. Although the majority of those who had all-electric 

homes were in the suburbs, the overall usage average in the suburbs was below the average 

of the first urban and rural survey. 

We tried to be representative in the samplings. They indicate that while the 

lifeline proposal as submitted by the Federation will aid the vast majority of retirees, 

special consideration should be given to the problems of the senior who is not living 

in a multi-fuel residence - that is, a residence in which gas, oil, or coal is the 

principal fuel source, with electricity as a supplemental source. 

Some of the Federation seniors who own all-electric homes have indicated, 

however, that their preliminary surveys of their own residences lead them to believe 

that they are not doing badly in comparison to the costs accrued by those who use 

various fuels. I live in an all-electric horne. It is recognized that electricity 

is a premium fuel. Ten to fifteen years ago, when the utility companies were 
soliciting electricity customers, we were assured that the cost of heating would be 
approximately 10% more than gas or oil. We found such to be the case at that time 
and accepted. However, in an all-electric horne, electricity is not a luxury but a 
necessity. Therefore, it is imperative that care be taken in legislation so these 
people will not end up being penalized. 

In November, 1975, the Retirees Chapter of the United Auto Workers #906 made 

a survey of employees at the Ford Motor Company Mahwah Plant. Employees sent utility 

bills to the union office for study. The committee that undertook this effort con

sidered over 1,000 utility bills. The results supported the Federation's position that 

lifeline will benefit both the retiree and the ~king man. The average bills did not 

exceed 400 kilowatt-hours per month from either working persons or retirees. Only four 

bills showed an average usage of over 450 kilowatt-hours per month. Of these, only 

two showed an average usage of over 500 kilowatt-hours per month. 

Recently, Commissioner Joel Jacobson, President of the Public Utilities Corn

mission, undertook his own informal survey in a few selected geographical areas to 
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measure the impact of his variation of lifeline.on different lifeline groups. His 

conclusion supports the contention that lifeline will benefit the majority of low

income consumers. 

The results of those surveys confirm that lifeline is the best overall program 

to aid all, the working man, the poor, and the seniors. If this committee is concerned 

about those on low incomes who might be penalized by higher electric bills because 

they use more than the lifeline amount, due to an unusual circumstance, we would suggest 

that you consider subsequent legislation to provide relief to that small group of 

people so affected. If a lifeline program sets the reduced charge quota at, or near, 

the average residential usage in a service area, we are convinced that those few needy 

consumers so affected can be assisted by a companion program. 

Lifeline is the best basic program for relief. Enact a lifeline program that 

will give us the help we need with our energy bills. Energy stamp programs are not 

realistic in view of the previous speakers. 

Although I have testified as a member of the North Jersey Federation of 

Senior Citizens, the lifeline concept under A-1830 would benefit all residents of 

New Jersey and they appreciate the opportunity to make this plea for the lifeline 

rate. I thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Lamb. 

I have to honor my commitments. Mr. Jacobs will be the next speaker because 

you have gone for 25 minutes already. Mr. Jacobs. Mr. Lloyd J. Jacobs is the 

Chairman of the Statewide Coalition Against Utility Rate Increase. Mr. Jacobs. 

L L 0 Y D J. J A C 0 B S: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I am happy to be 

here today. I am particularly happy with the fact that this committee is finally 

holding hearings on the subject of energy. 

There is presently an urgent need, in the State of New Jersey, for the 

Legislature to take positive and effective action to relieve consumers of the over-

burdening cost of energy. I feel that by concentrating merely on the poor, low income, 

or senior citizens, we are making a mistake. We are being very short-sighted. These 

people need relief and are probably on the top of the list. But, what we must do, 

in addition to this, is look at the source of the problem. I, at times, ~eel that 

we are bailing out the boat - a sinking boat - without looking at the source of the 

problem. 

The source of the problem here is tremendously high cost for gas and electricity 

in this State which is affecting everyone, including the middle class, including small 

businesses. The poor are the poor because at one time they could have been middle class 

and were ignored. There are many families today - many individuals with large families 

and many small businesses that are hanging by a shoestring and if we continue to ignore 

them, we are going to find them in that class of poor people and we are going to find 

the taxpayers in this State with increased welfare cost to take care of them. 

In addition to trying to protect our senior citizen, low income families, and 

the poor, let's also try to keep those who are in the middle class in the middle class 

and let's try to keep those successful businesses in business. We can only do that by 

looking at the total problem. 

We have all seen fancy advertising, dazzling statistics, and press releases 

by giant utility companies and certain regulatory agencies who would have us all 

believing that the high cost of gas and electric are the result of problems at the 

national level and solely beyond our control - problems such as the high cost of 

fuel and raw materials. While this type of information, which is being fed to all of 
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us, is true, to a partial extent, it is primarily window dressing by the utility 

companies for the purpose of distorting the issues and misleading consumers and 

legislators. The fact of the matter is - and this is the bottom line to all that 

we must face - the State of New Jersey has the highest statewide rate for gas and 

electric in the country. And, if the cost of raw materials and federal problems 

were the cause of this, we must ask ourselves, "Why aren't other states experiencing 

the same problem?" We have a very big problem here in New Jersey and it rests, in 

large part, with us to resolve. 

Another fact of the matter is, in spite of all the statistics, the Public 

Service Electric and Gas Company's profits and dividends have been rising steadily 

since January of 1976, during a time when many - old people and others - were saying 

that they were experiencing very severe problems because of the high cost of fuel and 

raw materials. 
I bring this up, Mr. Chairman, to say that this is the proof of the pudding. 

The problems are not there. The problems are elsewhere. Where are the problems? 

There has been a lack of real control and regulation in this State of utility companies. 

We have listened to them. We have looked at their statistics. And we have listened 

to the dreadful things that would happen if we didn't do what they said should be done. 

We have the results: The highest rates in the country and utility companies 

whose profits are rising while people are goirig on welfare rolls because of the utility 

bills, for one reason. 

What is the answer? The answer is, extreme concern, in-depth investigation, 

and action by this Legislature. The lifeline proposal is a good place to start. But, 

I want to emphasize that it is only a start. This is progressive legislation. In 

spite of all the dancing and the fancy footwork, a relatively simple fundamental of 

economics is that if you want people to buy in quantity, you reduce the cost the more 
they buy. If you don't want people to buy in quantity, you increase the cost as they 

purchase more. 
We are presently, Mr. Chairman, working under the former system, where the 

more you use, the less you pay. And, with that present system, there is no way that 

you nor I, nor anyone else, are going to meet the national as well as the statewide 

commitment to conserve. 

The present system discriminates against the poor and it rewards the rich. 

It penalizes those who conserve and provides discounts to those who use and waste 
energy. 

The Legislature must change this and it will change this through instituting, 
as a start, the lifeline bill, which will guarantee a minimum life-sustaining quantity 

of energy at a minimum cost. And, by quantity, we are not only talking about 500 
kilowatt-hours, or 300, we can be talking of between 500 kilowatt-hours and 800. And 
it can be a graduated rate, not just a low rate fo~ 300 kilowatt-hours and below, but 
a graduated rate, which is geared truly to providing individuals and industries with 

an incentive to conserve. 

The opponents of the lifeline proposal, Mr. Chairman, you will recall from 

what you heard earlier today - and you will h~ar this for the remainder of your 

hearing - point out a number of problems. I want to say, at the outset, when they 

point out problems, this is not to say that the lifeline bill is not good because 

I know of no proposal that does not have problems. We have one that has been in 

existence for years and it has created severe problems. Lifeline is not the answer 

to everything, but it certainly would give us a better system than we have today. 
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It is a system that has been used in a number of states and it is gaining overwhelming 

momentum, nationwide. 

Some of the testimony here today said that there should be no special con

sideration, and this is why the lifeline bill is not good. Mr. Chairman, you and I 

know, and we all know, that at the present time there is special consideration being 

given to large industrial users, consideration which inhibits our persuing a national 

as well as statewide goal of conservation. 

Another problem they say we will have is that industry will move out. Industry 

is not going to move out. People are already moving out. People are already moving 

from homes into low income dwellings because they can't afford the costs. The u.s. 
Census of Manufacturers reports that electricity cost amounts to a mere eighty-five 

hundreths of one percent of the total non-tax expenses of American industry. 

A representative of a utility company indicated earlier that for consumers 

utility bills represent approximately 2%. So, the impact on consumers will be much 

greater than on industry. 

They have also indicated that the cost will be passed on and I think we all 

know the cost will not be passed on. Industry, which has the greatest capability of 

conserving, will be the first to do it because they are in a competitive situation 

with industries in this State and other states. They can do it. People cannot 

conserve the way industry can and they need this incentive. 

Let me give you an example of what can be done by way of conservation. Ohio 

State University, with an initial investment of $30 thousand, retrofitted a medical 

building which reduced their natural gas consumption, Mr. Chairman, by 78%. It 

reduced their electric consumption by 43%. And it paid for itself in fuel savings 

in six months. The University now is netting more than $60 thousand a year as a 

result. This is progress. This is conservation. And the end result is less expense 

for everybody, including the students who have had to pay for this through tuition 

in the past. 

The lifeline rate, I would say, does not and will not affect the utilities 

overall revenue. It only changes the amount collected from particular classes. Why 

then do utility companies oppose it? Like any profit-making business, they are 

dependent upon growth and profit. The more they sell, the more they make. The more 

they build, the more they make. This is why they are opposed to lifeline. 

You will recall that one of the representatives, earlier, did not, once, mention 

conservation. in spite of tremendous amounts of money that are spent on advertising 

that conservation is what they want. 

The lifeline bill will provide that true incentive, again for conservation, 

and at the same time it will provide individuals in this State with lower utility 

rates. 

In conclusion, let me say that electricity no longer is a luxury, but it is 

a necessity of life - more than that, it is a basic human right, Mr. Chairman. This 

right to a basic amount of electricity, at the lowest rate, is a right which this 

Body must guarantee to every consumer in this State. Rate reform, such as lifeline, 

will provide this guarantee. It behooves the Legislature, therefore, to rise above 

the tremendous pressure it will receive from giant utility companies and large 

industries across this State and rally behind the consumers in this State and pass 

progressive legislation, such as the lifeline bill, in the interst of human welfare 

and energy conservation. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Jacobs, I would like to ask you a couple of questions. 
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If a customer can purchase, let us say, about BOO kilowatt-hours a month at a lower 

price than he now pays because of the stablishment of a lifeline rate, what incentive 

would there be to conserve? I don't see any incentive to conserve. 
MR. JACOBS: This is correct, Mr. Chairman, if this individual is presently 

using 800 kilowatt-hours. The 800 kilowatt-hours, for many, is a very minimum rate. 

The State of California has has a variance of 500 kilowatt-hours. My average is well 

above BOO. For other users it is well above BOO. If you are using, for example, 

1200 or 1500 kilowatt-hours, the incentive, then, would be -- For you, the minimum 

rate would be that BOO kilowatt-hours, so you would have incentive to conserve. 
Now, this is not to say that you need a variable of 500 to BOO. If you find 

through your investigation, and through your use of consultants, that a flat rate 

is best, this will be better than what we have. But, the whole idea is, the more 

you use, the more you pay. And this should apply for everybody. This is fair and 

everybody knows, at the outset, that this is what they are confronted with. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Wouldn't you benefit even if it went above 800 

kilowatt-hours? You would still benefit. 

MR. JACOBS: Excuse me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You would benefit if you go above BOO kilowatt-hours. 

MR. JACOBS: Yes, we would benefit, but we would all have that incentive, for 

economic reasons, to bring our consumption down to that BOO kilowatt-hour level. 

And, Mr. ChaiDnan, I don't think any of us, right now, are talking about just 

having two rates - one below 500 kilowatt-hours and one above 500 kilowatt-hours. 

You may find that a flat rate for all users would be the most equitable way. You 

may find that a graduated rate - so much below 500 and so much between 500 and l,OOO,etc.

is the best way to go. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: One other question I would like to ask you about is the 

burden of implementing a lifeline program. Would you shift it to the large users? 

Did you say that? 
MR. JACOBS: Yes, Mr. Chairman, some of it would be. I say to you that the 

cost that would be saved, in effect, by the lifeline rate -- all of it is not going 

to be passed on. You are going to find, immediately - by industry, for example - that 

instead of leaving lights on all night, they will shut them off. They will start doing 

what Ohio State University did. So, you are automatically going to start to get into 
conservation. Your use of energy is going to fall. The small amount of extra cost 
that is left over- part of it will be borne by industry, through somewhat higher rates. 

But, it won't all be borne by them. 

A basic fundamental problem we have in the State of New Jersey - and lifeline 
is not the cause of it - is that to begin with we have a higher rate, even without 

lifeline, Mr. Chairman. We have to do something to bring that down. 
What lifeline will do is, it will help the overall energy problem in the State 

by truly providing an incentive for conservation. All costs will not be passed on. 

Other states are doing this and they are finding t~s uo be true. Utility companies 

don't want it for obvious reasons. If people were to conserve -- the utility companies 

don't want this anymore than General Motors wants people to stop buying automobiles. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Jacobs, I would like to accept some of your state

ments, but one of the statements you made here this morning were that industry would 

not move. Now, this is not the first time we have had hearings and meetings on the high 

cost of gas and electric. We had one meeting because an Assemblyman introduced a bill 

to shift the cost to the high-users. We had a meeting and we were swamped by the 

largest industrial companies in the State of New Jersey. Almost every one of the 
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people that represent those companies said they would definitely move. 

Now, I know in my city, industry has moved out of my city and the reason they 

moved is because of high taxation. Now, if they can go to Pennsylvania and pay less 

for their energy, they are going to move, definitely. 

MR. JACOBS: Yes. Mr. Chairman, I didn't say that they would not move. What 

I said - or what I would like to say - is that the lifeline proposal alone will not 

be the reason why industry is leaving. They have already left. The glassmaking 

industry in South Jersey moved out, not because of a lifeline proposal, but because 

existing rates are so high. 

We are presently in a trap. The reason for the trap is much broader than the 

lifeline proposal. It concerns the energy rates in Jersey, in general. They are 

already too high and the question we have before us is, "How can we bring them lower?" 

We have the highest rates in the country, here in New Jerse~ on a statewide basis, 

even without lifeline. 

So, we have to have a means here of having people conserve. At the present 

time, we are doing nothing in this State. The Legislature has not moved to give 

industry a reason to conserve energy. The people in this State are also telling you 

that they are moving out. I had a woman in my office who is moving to Florida and 

she is not moving to Florida because that is where she wants to be, it is because 

of taxes and, of course, utilities. She gave me a list of what has happened to her 

cost of utilities. 

You have small businesses that are going out of business because of the cost 

of utilities. And, while we are speaking of large industry, what are we going to do 

about the consumers, the seniors, and small businesses that are leaving their comfortable 

homes and going to smaller homes: that are leaving businesses and going to work: that 

are leaving employment and going on the welfare rolls? We have that problem to face 

as well, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Jacobs, did you ever stop to think that the cost 

of utilities to the average family is only about 1.92%, as Dr. Bartnoff indicated? 

MR. JACOBS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: How does that figure compare to a man's salary that 

he takes home every week if he has no job to go to? 

MR. JACOBS: How does that compare with salary, sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. That is 100% of his income. That is the money 

he has to use to exist. 

MR. JACOBS: Who is this? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Any man. Any man who works in industry. So, if we 

are going to see an exit of industry out of the State of New Jersey because of 

shifting the burden onto the large users, how is that going to help the average 

family? 

MR. JACOBS: I appreciate that question and I know you will be getting this 

in some of your testimony. Mr. Chairman, let me say, I don't believe there are any 

conclusive studies to date to demonstrate and confirm that the lifeline proposal will, 

in fact, make industry move out of this State, or force, or increase, the unemployment 

rate. These are all assumptions. These are all things fhat some people are saying 

could happen. But, what we know is happening right now is that we have problems 

right now to deal with. Conservation, as you know from everytime you turn on the 

radio or open a newspaper, is something that all the utility companies want. They 

want conservation, so I say let's help them along. The more you use, the more you 
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pay. Then you·. will conserve. 
Mr. Chairman, I hope that before this committee puts too much credence 

into the fact that the lifeline proposal is going to force industry out of this 

State - they are already moving out of the State - I hope you will have very con

clusive evidence of that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I am not saying that the lifeline program will force 

industry out of the State. I said it will help to force industry out of the State, if 

we shift the burden onto the large user. That is all I said. 
MR. JACOBS: We won't shift it all to the large users. In addition, it won't 

be shifted tothem, Mr. Chairman, because of the conservation measures they will take. 

It also costs money to move. What industry will have to do is to perform an economic 

analysis. At the present time when they perform an economic analysis, they are 
doing it at a rate of one and one-half or two cents a kilowatt-hour, which makes it 

very favorable to them not to conserve but to continue to use, keeping the utility 

companies happy and having the middle class - which is part of your constituency -

senior citizens and the poor foot the bill for them. 
I can turn around and say, "Why should an individual, or residential users, 

pay more than industry?" 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I am going to cut you off now. Thank you very much, 

Mr. Jacobs. 

MR. JACOBS: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Our next speaker wil11 be Mr. Militello. 

ANDREW s. M I L I T E L L 0: My name is Andrew S. Militello. I live at 

13 Oakly Way in Wayne, New Jersey. I am a Trustee for the North Jersey Federation of 

Senior Citizens. I also represent the Golden Age Circle of Wayne. I also· feel that 

I represent all of the senior citizens who are in this Chamber today, senior citizens 

who have helped to pay for this very Chamber and the rest of the State, county, and 

local institutions, and who have largely contributed to the vast holdings of the 

utility companies in New Jersey who, in most cases, have achieved astronomical profits. 

We are not asking you for a hand-out to senior citizens, rich or poor. We 

are, however, asking that your correct the inequities that presently exist between 

the large corporate high-users and the little residential users who are burdened with 

paying an unfair share of the skyrocketing cost of the electric and gas rates. 

We are also asking for your positive consideration to correct these inequities 
through the passage of the lifeline concept, thus correcting all inequities for all 
residential users in the State. 

I have further documentation in support of the concept of lifeline. This 
letter is addressed to Assemblyman Michael Esposito, Chairman of the Transportation 
and Communications Committee, State House, Trenton, New Jersey. Gentlemen: A 
resolution endorsing the concept of lifeline utility rates was passed by our committee 

at its meeting on June 14, 1976. We are concerned not only by constantly rising cost 

but also that any action that will promote conservation of our energy resources be 

taken immediately. 

We believe the lifeline concept will provide an incentive toward lower usage, 

which, under current rate structures, is totally absent. 

We are pleased to join with the North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens 

in urging your prompt and favorable action towards instituting lifeline rates in 

our State. 

Sincerely yours, Edward Roeloffs, Wayne Township Democratic Municipal Committee, 

Wayne, New Jersey. 
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I would also like to read into the record a resolution that has been adopted 

by the Wayne Council. The resolution reads as follows: SENIOR CITIZENS "LIFELINE" 

ELECTRIC SERVICE. 

Whereas, the North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens had prepared legislation 

known as A 1830, which will mandate a rate reform on electric and gas pricing for New 

Jersey; and 

Whereas, this will mean dollar savings to a great majority of New Jersey 

residential consumers, and "insurance against future large and arbitrary increase"; and 

Whereas, the Lifeline Utility Rate Reform Bill A 1830 has been filed as 

advocated and prepared by the North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens in conjunction 

with the Office of the Public Advocate of New Jersey; and 

Whereas, this bill will equitably distribute the costs to the residential 

consumer. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Mayor and Council of the Township of 

Wayne hereby endorse the implementation of the Rate Reform Program known as "Lifeline" 

Electric Service. 

This resolution was endorsed by all eight Councilman, except for one. We had 

one abstention and the reason for the abstention is understandable. He happened to 

an employee of the Public Service Gas and Electric Company. 

I thank you, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. 

Mr. Griffin will be our next speaker. 

J AM E s G R I F F I N: My name is James Griffin. I reside at 177 Spring Street, 

Passaic, New Jersey. I want to thank the Chairman for his patience,and the members 

of the committee who have been very patient. 

I am a Vice President of the North Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens. 

My purpose here is to give our response to some of the criticism you will hear about 

lifeline. You will hear from some of our opponents, for example, that lifeline will 

benefit the rich as well as the poor and therefore it is a bad program. Let's back 

up and look at that. Studies by the Federal Energy Administration document that 

electrical usage is directly proportional to income. Simply stated this means that 

the greater the income, the greater the electrical usage. While there are some excep

tions to this, our own studies and the informal surveys of Commissioner Joel Jacobson 

of the Public Utilities Commission support this conclusion. 

We do not deny that a few high income consumers may benefit from lifeline. 

We also know that many middle-income customers,who may be using a bit more than the 

average residential usage, will try to lower their usage to benefit from lifeline. 

But, if one of the purposes of lifeline is to help lower the demand for electricity, 

why shouldn't those people benefit from that incentive? 

The experts tell us we ought to decrease usage to decrease the cost of 

electricity. If middle income people and even a few wealthy people keep their usage 

down, why not give them the benefit too? Why should so many of us who need relief 

be denied that assistance through lifeline just because a few higher income people 

might benefit also? It doesn't make sense to us. Why throw the baby out with the 

bath? 

You will be told that we need a means test so that only those low-income 

and elderly persons will benefit. Other people can tell you in greater detail that 

means tests and special sign-ups for lifeline will not benefit the large numbers who 

need help the most. Many people who need help the most will refuse to sign up. 
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Let me just add to that the question about who will pay to administer a means 

test and special sign-up program. The genius of the lifeline program is that it. re

quires very little additional cost to administer. No special offices havP to bt> s~t 

up, no big staff has to be hired, no forms have to be reviewed. No investigators 

have to be employed. 

If, in an election year, you are prepared to tell us that you want to increase 

government bureaucracy, multiply the red tape, hit us with higher taxes and, at the 

same time, limit the benefits to a relatively small number of seniors, let's hear, 

along with it some darn good reasons. 

But, if you want to keep the cost of government down at the same time providing 

real relief to consumers, then we say to you, give us lifeline. You should understand 

that the cost to government for administering lifeline is virtually nil. With taxes 

being what they are in this State, we would hope you would find this fact illuminating. 

Why should you spend large sums of our tax-paying dollars to administer a 

program that is not going to do the job for us? Why not set up lifeline that will cost 

the utilities relatively little to administer and provide the greatest relief? What 

it comes down to is this: We are proposing you adopt the program that offers relief 

to the greatest numbers of those who need it most, at the lowest administrative cost. 

How can you turn that down? 

Now, you will hear from some,who want to whisper in your ear, that lifeline 

will increase industry's utility bill and force them out of New Jersey. We stand 

with those who want to keep industry in New Jersey. Obviously, taxes, labor costs, 

contribute more to industry's problems than energy costs. If it is necessary to take 

steps to keep industry in New Jersey, then we propose the Legislature act to provide 

appropriate direct forms of relief, rather than rely on indirect subsidies,such as 

artificially low energy costs. Would those whispering in your ear about industry's 

problems argue that the hard-pressed residential consumer provide the subsidy in the 

form of higher residential rates? We hope not. We hope we would all agree that if 

subsidies are needed, then this matter be handled directly, openly, and thoroughly. 

But, there is a larger consideration involved in rate setting that should 

affect industry. Years ago, when electricity was first made available, the utility 

sought to expand rapidly. Electricity was offered to industry with discounts for large 

volume users. If fact, it could be demonstrated that there were cost benefits to the 

utility for increasing its production capacity. In recent years, that has changed 

and, in fact, may be the reverse today. There is a body of expert opinion that now 

argues that our present system of rates with provides discounts to large volume users 

should be reversed so that the discounts are given to the lowest users. We believe 

the PUC will have to investigate carefully this matter to determine if a reversal in the 

rate structure is now necessary. 

But, we need immediate relief. We believe we offer you the best possible program 

for relief to residential electric consumers. That program is lifeline. Act now, 

vote for lifeline. 

In addition, I would like to say to the Chairman, that I had been employed 

with a company for 40 years and the company took off and moved. And that company 

spent $13 million just to move out of the State of New Jersey and not one word was 

said about the high utility rates. The only thing that was mentioned was the cost 

of labor and the cost of taxes. And they moved out of this State and left 800 people 

holding the bag without a pension. I thank you very kindly, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. We will recess until 2:00. We will 

reconvene at 2:00. 
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AFTERNOON SESSION 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: The public hearing on lifeline rates will now come to 

order. The first speaker this afternoon will be Commissioner Richard McGlynn, 

Commissioner of the Board of Public Utility Commissioners. 

R I C H A R D B. M C G L Y N N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Richard B. McGlynn, 

Commissioner of the Department of Public Utilities. First of all, I consider it a 

privilege to appear before you, Mr. Chairman, this afternoon and I thank you for 

extending the invitation to me. 

I consider it to be entirely appropriate and proper for me to appear an 

Assembly Committee because,in my capacity as a Commissioner of the Department of 

Public Utilities, I serve in a body that was created by the Legislature. My nomi

nation was confirmed by one of the Houses of the Legislature. And, I think it is 

particularly appropriate that I appear before you to discuss the critical area of 

what has been called lifeline rates, some way, that is, of providing relief to those 

of our citizens upon whom the burden of rising utility costs has fallen most severely. 

It is in the area of lifeline rates and matters akin to lifeline that 

cooperation between our two departments, in my judgment, is essential. Since you 

created us, I think it behooves us to present to you our views and our recommendations 

on how to deal with this difficult task. 

Your letter to me made the following statement as to the reason for these 

hearings: "It is the intention of the committee to focus upon alternative approaches 

to the existing rate structure for utilities and to consider the possible advantages 

and disadvantages that would result from the implementation of a lifeline rate, a 

utility stamp program, or a rate based upon peak load pricing." 

I want you to know that I, as a Commissioner, share your concern for these 

subjects and I want to report to you the progress that the Public Utilities Commission 

has made and is making in attempting to deal with it. There is presently pending 

before the Public Utilities Commission a docket, the purpose of which is to study and 

make recommendations and to take positive action, if possible, on the implementation 

of a so-called lifeline rate. That docket has been pending for some period of time. 

It has been activated and is active at the present time and I anticipate that it will 

be concluded and there will be some resolution on it some time during the Fall. 

We have also instituted an experiment in the concept of peak load pricing. 

Jersey Central Power and Light Company will begin to engage in an experiment involving 

the use of time-of-day metering, which may, indeed, be another way in which we can 

assist residential consumers in meeting these terribly high costs. 

Included in our lifeline study is the question of whether a utility stamp 

program is an appropriate way to meet the burden that falls upon those least able to 

afford it. 

So, I reiterate then that we share your concern, we are actively involved in 

studying the question and have been so for a period of time and I anticipate we will 

be for a period of time. 

The question that arises, as I see it in this proceeding, is whether legislation 

is now necessary or desirable, or even appropriate, to solve these problems, given the 

fact that the Public Utilities Commission is actively studying the matter. 

In order for me to begin to answer that question, I must trace some of the 

history of what has been decided and what has not been decided by the Commission, thus 

far. 

I am told that there have been witnesses who appeared before you who indicated 
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that there is a split of opinion in the Public Utilities Commission on whether we 

ought to afford relief to senior citizens and low income citizens from rising utility 

bills. 
I state once and for all, for the record, that there is no split of opinion 

in that regard. The Pulbic Utilities Commission, both of its members, are vitally 

concerned with this problem and are committed to reaching some solution, either through 

the administrative level of our own ability to set rates, or through making specific 

recommendations to the Legislature for the providing of this relief in such a way so 

as to equitably spread the cost of providing this relief over the widest number of 

persons and in the fairest way. 

Unfortunately, the impression may have been spread that there was this division 

of opinion as a result of the Jersey Central Power and Light case, which was decided 

recently by the Public Utilities Commission. In that case, we asked the company, 

based upon data which had been presented in the lifeline docket, to provide us with 

certain proposals which would embody the lifeline concept in rates. It was only 

that proposal in that company's rate schedule that was acted upon and rejected because 

of a disagreement by the Commissioners. 
I have before me the remarks that I made when I announced my reasons for being 

unable to support that specific proposal and I think it important that they be reflected 

in this proceeding. I said, in part, the following: "At the outset, I must make clear 

that I totally support legitimate efforts to provide assistance to all our citizens 

in meeting the rising cost of utility bills. No one can be insensitive to the 

inflationary effects which rising utility bills have inflicted upon those least able 

to withstand such increases, our senior citizens on fixed incomes and those New 

Jerseyans who are otherwise economically deprived or disadvantaged. 

"I have agonized at length as to whether the proposals before us ~qui tably 

provide such relief and, reluctantly, I conclude that they do not. Also, I am firmly 

convinced that were we to adopt the lifeline proposal, based on the data given to us 

in this case, we would be creating more problems and possibly causing more inequities 

than we would cure. " 
That is the end of the quotation, which is,~art of the very lengthy remarks 

I made, stating my reasons for rejecting that propos~. 

The proposal set forth in the Jersey Central Power and Light case was akin 

to that set forth in some of the legislation which is presently pending in the hopper 
of this House. 

My analysis of the data that was presented to us in the Jersey Central Power 

and Light case convinced me of the following: Of all of the persons who would have 
benefited from the so-called lifeline proposal in that case, only 24% were low income 

persons, while 76% were non low income persons. In other words, based on the data 
that we had for the lifeline proposal in that case, only one out every four persons who 

would have been assisted. by a lifeline was a low income person. Three out of four 

persons assisted by such a rate would be non low income persons. 

Similar data was developed for the senior citizen category and it indicated 

that of the total group benefitted by the lifeline, only one out of five persons 

would have been a senior citizen. Whereas, interestingly enough, of those persons 

who would have been harmed by the lifeline proposal in that case - that is, those 

persons who would have had to subsidize other persons - one out of ten would have 

been a senior citizen, the very person we wanted to benefit by such a rate, and 
one out of five would have been a low income person. 
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For those reasons,! said in that case, those lifeline rates could not be 

supported. 

Let me give to you my conclusions which were reached in that case and the 

questions that I set forth in that case which I perceive to be still unanswered, but 

which I hope and which I expect will be answered by the Public Utilities Commission. 

Again, I quote: 

data alone. I 

"I must reiterate that my conclusions apply to this case and this 

concur with all parties in the case that the generic docket should 

be reactivated so that answers could be sought to a number of questions. For example, 

one, what is an adequate definition of a class of persons who genuinely need assistance 

in paying utility bills? Is senior citizen status alone sufficient to qualify without 

regard to income? What is the level of income which ought to determine qualification 

for assistance? 

"Two, Is there an economic justification from a cost point of view to support 

a rate which would give recognition and benefit to those users who do not contribute 

materially to the peak and whose demand is inelastic? Such rates might truly foster 

conservation which would have the effect of curbing the need for greater base load 

generation capacity. If so, they might not be subject to the same criticisms as to 

inclusivity that troubled me here. 

"Three, what would be the cost of identifying those persons needing assistance 

and designing a discounted rate for them alone for a subsistence level of electricity? 

How would such a discount be funded? Can it be funded by a group broader than merely 

the customers of one company and, if so, how?" 

Finally,"four, what effective legislation can be designed, if necessary, to 

fund such assistance from existing revenues without any new state taxes?" 

It is those questions, Mr. Chairman, that I believe will be answered by the 

Public Utilities Commission in the course of its lifeline proceedings and which I 

believe must be answered for a responsible position to be taken on the lifeline question. 

To return to the question that I posed earlier - should there be a legislative 

response now to the lifeline issue? In my judgment, the answer to that ought to be, 

"Not yet." 

I read in Time Magazine that Sam Rayburn, who was not an undistinguished 

legislator, once said that the three most important words in the English language 

are "wait a minute." I believe that is good advice to this Legislature at this time. 

I firmly believe that if we are given a chance to find a proper solution at the 

Commission, that we can do it. And, if we cannot do it administratively, then we can 

make specific legislative proposals which will provide relief for those who need it 

and will impose the cost in an equitable way on those who ought to bear it. 

Now, I must say that I was very uncomfortable as a new regulator, taking a 

position which apparently has been interpreted as opposed to the lifeline concept. 

I hope that by these remarks I have convinced you that I am not opposed to the concept 

but that my position in one case was a rejection of only that specific proposal there. 

I was happy to see that the Star Ledger at least supported me, to some extent, 

editorially, in my position in their lead editorial which followed our decision. They 

also set forth what I believe is good advice to the Legislature at this time. The 

editorial said as follows: 

"Rejection of the lifeline rates by the PUC has triggered action among members 

of the Legislature. In the Senate and.Assembly, bills are being readied for intro

duction to implement the concept of lifeline rates. It is ironic that the legislators 

who so very recently were attacking the State Supreme Court for usurping the Legislature's 

Constitutional authority in the school finding case, are now willing to muscle in on 
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an administrative matter. Lifeline rates can only be put into effect by incorporating 
them into existing rate structures and this is the provence of the PUC. Developing 
the best possible rate design is not an easy matter. Mr. McGlynn has pointed to the 

possible shortcomings in a specific case. The concept of lifeline rates is a good 

one and should be implemented, but the details must be worked out carefully to insure 

that the rate schedule does not become a windfall for those who do not need help, 

while failing to benefit great numbers of those it is intended to help. 

I believe, with all due respect, Mr. Chairman, that it is that failing that 

is embodied in the bills presently before the Assembly. I ask that they not be 
passed. I ask that the PUC be given an opportunity to further examine the problem 

and to come up with a specific proposal, if not administratively from within our 

confines, then for us to make a specific legislative proposal which would do the job 

in an effective and fair way. 

I ask you, then, to let us be the fingers of your legislative hands. We 

were created to be these fingers. We can best mold the clay that exists before us, 

in my judgment, to come up with a fair and a responsive answer to this difficult 

problem. I thank you very much for the opportunity to appear before you this after-

noon. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Commissioner McGlynn, you talked about the three most 

often-used words, "wait a minute." Now, I think this Committee can wait a minute 

but I would like to know how long a time that minute is going to be? Is it going to 

be one year or one month or three months? 

MR. McGLYNN: Mr. Chairman, I would anticipate that we will have completed 

our lifeline docket by sometime in mid Fall. We are, right now, in the throws of 

vacation schedules in August. This is something that will come before us in September. 

I would hope that by the end of October or early in November we will have some definite 

answers as to this problem. I hope that is not too long a minute in the legislative 

sense. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You see, I believe there should be a lifeline rate 

program. I firmly believe it. There has been one bill in my committee and extreme 

pressure has been exerted on me to release that bill and the reason I did not release 

the bill is because I discussed it with my committee and after making a visit to 

Joel Jacobson, at your offices, he said he would do it by regulation. He did attempt 

to do it by regulation and they claimed that there was disagreement, or a difference 
of opinion, between you and him and he couldn't get the second vote. 

MR. McGLYNN: That was only after the specific proposal in the Jersey Central 
Power and Light Case. As I indicated at that time - and I say to you, Mr. Chairman.

! am firmly in favor of identifying those senior citizens and low income people, if we 

can do it, who need help and giving them the benefit of a discounted rate. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Ironically, I agree with your disagreements with that 

one particular proposal. 

MR. McGLYNN: I am in good company. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: That's right. You say one out of five people in the 

low income group would benefit by a lifeline rate program. How were these figures 
developed? Where did you get them? 

MR. McGLYNN: Jersey Central Power and Light conducted a survey of its 

customers. It involved a class of customers who represented the largest residential 

class that they served - some 457 thousand, plus, customers. Of course, the Jersey 

Central Power and Light territory takes in the northwestern section of the State and 
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a good part of the shore area. 

I believe that they used a break-even point of 65 and over for the senior 

citizens and a low income classification of $7,000. Frankly, I question whether 

$7,000 ought to be the break-point for deciding low-income and non-low-income status. 

But, those are the only figures we had before us. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Is it your opinion that the lifeline would create 

problems for a utility to recover payments from residential customers for services 

provided? 

MR. McGLYNN: Well, there is no question but that the utilities are going to 

have to find some means of recouping whatever revenues are lost by a subsidization 

for any class of customer. Traditionally, rates have been based upon cost of service. 

If we implemented a lifeline rate, we would be saying that for social reasons, a certain 

class of customer is entitled to lower rates. 

Now, one of the things I have learned in the short time I have been a Commis

sioner is the economic adage that there is no such thing as a "free lunch", somebody 

is going to have to pay for those rates from somewhere. 

Some of the things that we have been thinking about are - and I reveal these 

to you, although I am not, in any sense, saying that this is what is going to come 

out of our deliberations - whether we can implement some sort of a surcharge on other 

customers - an energy surcharge which can be used to create a fund for which the 

utilities would be adequately compensated for all of the monies that they need to 

provide safe and adequate and proper service and still have the subsidized rates for 

a certain class of customer. That is one possibility. 

But, certainly, the utilities must be guaranteed an adequate return on their 

investment. If they aren't then we are going to face the prospect, ten or fifteen years 

down the road, of people walking to the wall, throwing a switch, and having nothing 

happen. That is a definite concern. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: If a lifeline rate were established, is there any 

evidence to indicate whether or not consumers would be consciously attempting to 

reduce usage to stay within the low price block? 

MR. McGLYNN: I would think that if the lifeline rate is established based 

on usage alone, as the legislation proposes, of course that would happen. I believe 

that one of the effects of that would be that people - as I said before - who really 

would fall outside of the class of persons who we want to help by lifeline rates, would 

be able to avail themselves of this discount. And, I have some difficulty with that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But, you do feel that the man who needs help to pay 

his utility bills should be helped? 

MR. McGLYNN: Absolutely. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: And you feel that we should have a lifeline program? 

MR. McGLYNN: I feel that we should have a program - call it what you will -

that will privide relief to senior citizens, particularly on fixed incomes, from 

these rising utility bills, so long as that plan can be funded in such a way 

so as to equitably distribute the cost, in the fairest way possible. 

I believe that we have the administrative power to do that. If we don't, 

I think that we can recommend legislation that will do it far more effectively than 

that that is before you now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But, you do have the administrative power to put a 

lifeline program into effect by regulation? 

MR. McGLYNN: In my judgment, we have the power, just as we have the authority 
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to set discount rates, for example, for students. Just as we have the power to set 

discounted rates for certain charitable organizations, I think we also have the power 

to set a discount rate for a class of persons, providing we can identify that class of 

persons who need help, and I think we can. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: At present the utility rate structure provides for a 

summer-winter differential. A customer consuming "x" number of kilowatt-hours of 

electricity a month pays more for that amount in the summer than he does in the winter, 

is that right? 

MR. McGLYNN: That is correct, based upon a judgment that was made by the Com

mission before I became a member, and one that has been endorsed since I have been 

on the Commission, that such rates will atte1npt to foster conservation in the summer. 

It is an attempt to try to ultimately avoid the necessity of having the utilities 

expend tremendous sums of money to build huge generating plants which must be available 

in summertime, when our need for electricity seems to go up so much. 

If we can, by a summer-winter differential, or by time-of-day metering, 

encourage our citizens, without materially altering their lifestyles, to conserve 

electricity in the sense of avoiding the need for the utility to have to generate it 

I think we have gone a long way in providing the kind of broad-based assistance that 

we ought to provide. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: If the summer-winter differential were to apply only 

to the high-use blocks of the residential rate schedule, would this provide rate 

relief for the poor and senior citizens? Is there validity to the assertion that 

the consumer responsible for greater consumption in the summer, who uses an air 

conditioner, is generally not a senior citizen or poor? 

MR. McGLYNN: I don't know. I honestly don't know the anser to that. That 

is one of the things we have asked the hearing examiner to look into. We have taken 

some testimony on this and we are trying to elicit some expert opinions on it. Very 

frankly, I don't know the answer to that question and I won't until we finish this 

docket. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: The hearing examiner--

MR. McGLYNN: I have just been provided with a squib from American Jurisprudence, 

which is the bible of lawyers and it says, "All discrimination as to service by a 

public utility is not necessarily improper or illegal" and, of course, I agree with 

it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: The hearing examiner's report on the recently concluded 

JCP & L rate case included a provision to provide a substantial increase in the customer 

charge to a total of $5.38. What was the reason for such a provision? Is such a 

provision consistent with providing relief for those who need it through the imple

mentation of a lifeline rate? 

MR. McGLYNN: The increase in the customer charge was based upon documentation 

developed by both the company and the Department of the Public Advocate. It was the 

Public Adovate who recommended an increase, as did tfe ~ompany, in the customer charge, 

based upon the cost of service. That is the traditional way in which rates were set 

and, as I say, that is one of the things that I think we are going to have to look at 

in this lifeline docket. 

A fl.at answer to your question iE!, no, t:P,e, increase of the fixed customer 

charge is not an effective way to provide lifeline relief. However, that customer 

charge, as I say, was recommended to us by the hearing examiner, based upon the 

company's position, based upon the Public Advocate's position, that the rates which 
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people ought to pay ought to be based upon the cost of the company to serve them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: One other question. Do you think that the establishment 

of a lifeline rate of 300 kilowatt-hours would foster or discourage conservation 

efforts? 

MR. McGLYNN: Until we know the extent to which small users contribute to that 

peak demand, I can't provide an answer to your question, I don't believe that it 

would necessarily foster the kind of conservation that we need in this state, if we 

are going to avoid - or at least postpone - some of the major capital improvements 

that the utilities have planned. That is, I hope, one of the things that we are 

going to learn as a result of this time-of-day metering study. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Commissioner, do you have any idea of when the results 

of the on-going studies regarding peak load pricing will be forthcoming? You made a 

statement that you have on-going studies right now. 

MR. McGLYNN: That's right. That is a study which has just begun. It has 

only been announced within the last few weeks. That probably will not be complete 

for a year. But, I don't perceive, in any sense, that our action on the lifeline 

is contingent upon that peak-load-pricing study. 

Certainly, I think we can conclude our efforts on the lifeline study- so-called

and render a determination on that without having to wait for the peak-load-pricing 

study. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Commissioner McGlynn. We intend to hold 

other hearings. We hope to hold one in Jersey City on the 24th and if we need a 

third hearing - if it is necessary - we would like to invite you to come back to another 

hearing. 

MR. McGLYNN: Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to. I know that President 

Jacobson will be testifying before your committee on the 24th. I will be in Michigan 

taking a course to further my education in the business of utility regulation. I 

hope to learn a little bit more about--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: By that time you will be an expert. 

MR. McGLYNN: Well, I am not sure how long that is going to take. I am doing 

the best I can and I hope to continue to as well as I can. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I want to thank you. I think your testimony has been 

very, very valuable to this committee. 

MR. McGLYNN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. 

The next speaker will be Joseph Dignam. 

J 0 S E P H D I G N AM: My name is Joseph Dignam. I reside at 177 Spring Street, 

Passaic. The reason I insisted upon talking here today was because I got up this 

morning at 5:30 so as to be down here to talk and I wouldn't give up my chance to 

talk down here today. 

Now, here is what I have to say. As an organization tha~began the consumer's 

campaign to implement lifeline reform in New Jersey, we are gratified to report that 

the idea has caught on throughout the State. At our last reading, many Assemblypersons 

have taken the step of co-sponsoring the lifeline bill now in your committee. At the 

last count, 11 Senators have notified us that they are co-sponsors of its companion 

bill, number 1447. We appreciate their interest in the consumer's needs and want to 

especially commend Assemblyman Ozzie Pellecchia and Senator Matthew Feldman on their 

leadership, to date. 

The lifeline concept is concrete and attractive. As such it has attracted the 
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active support of the following groups. These endorsements are based on resolutions 
at meetings or conventions of the following organizations: The New Jersey Council of 

Senior Citizens: the Sussex Council of Seniors: the Essex Council of Seniors: the 
Union County Council of Seniors: the United Passaic County Council of Seniors: the 

New Jersey Coordinating Council of Organized Older Persons: the United Automobile 

Workers Retiree Council, Region Nwnber 9: the New Jersey Federation of Chapters, 

National Association of Retired Federal Employees: Senior Citizens' Clubs of Bergen 

County, Incorporated. 

County groups - Morris County Human Resorces Agency, Incorporated: Passaic 

County Council on Aging: Northwest Community Action Program: Antipoverty Agency·for 

Sussex, Warren, and Hunterdon Counties: Community Action Program from Bergen County. 

Community groups - The Paterson Coalition of Paterson: The Coaltion for the 

United Elizabeth, of Elizabeth: the Community Action Council of Passaic County: the 

League for Conservation Legislation: Knights of Columbus, Council 262: Loyal Order 

of Moose, 512: Mountain Lodge Nwnber 2, FA & M: Kiwanis of North Hudson: Keys to 

Education for Environmental Protection, Committee for Responsible Policy, Princeton: 

Committee Against Rate Increase, Jersey City: Citizens Council of Environment: 

Advisory Council of Nuclear Power: and Camden Economic Opportunity Council. 

State groups - Statewide Coalition on Energy Problems: New Jersey Citizens' 

Action Alliance: Puerto Rican Congress of New Jersey: Executive Council, New Jersey: 

State Action Program: New Jersey State Division on Aging: the Office of the Public 

Advocate: the New Jersey Black Elected Officials. 

Church bodies - Government Commission, New Jersey Council of Churches: the 
Office of Justice and Peace, Archdiocese of Newark: The Social Action Department, 

Diocese of Paterson: The Social Action Committee Metropolitan Jewish Federation. 

City government - Morris Coun~y Council of Mayors: Mayor's Office, Township 

of Mount Olive: Mayor's Office Morristown: Mayor's Office, Chester Borough: Town 
Council, Washington: Manager's Office, Borough of Washington: Council President, 

Borough of Totowa: Mayor's Office, Borough of West Paterson: Mayor's Office, Borough 

of Little Falls: City Council, Wayne; City Council, Newark: Mayor of Paterson: Mayor 

of Jersey City: and Camden City Council. 

In closing the Federation's testimony, we want to offer as testimony the 

mile long petition which is out in front of the building here. That list consists 

of 22 thousand names and is silent witness to our needs and strong testimony in 
favor of lifeline. 

Our only question to you, Mr. Esposito, is what are you waiting for? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Dignam, we were just told to "wait a minute", so 

I think we can wait a minute. 

You heard Commissioner McGlynn? 
MR. DIGNAM: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: He said that by October they are going to do it 
by regulation. 

MR. DIGNAM: I can't hear very good. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: He said that by October of this year, or early November, 

they will implement a lifeline rate program for the State of New Jersey by regulation. 

The Public Utilities Commission is going to do it. 

MR. DIGNAM: In my opinion, Mr. McGlynn made a very poor start in front of 

the senior citizens the last time we gave testimony down in Newark. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. 
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Christopher Burdick, representing Congressman Maguire. 

c H R I s T o P H E R B U R D I C K: My name is Cris Burdick. I am representing 

Congressman Andrew Maguire of the 7th Congressional Distirct of New Jersey. I will 

read Congressman Maguire's prepared statement. I regret that I am not qualified to 

answer questions on behalf of the Congressman. 

Within the past few years, as I'm sure you are well aware, utility rates have 

increased tremendously. In 1973 and 1974, Public Service Electric and Gas Company 

received rate increases totaling $395 million; in 1975 that amount again increased. 

More recently, PSE&G filed for a still greater rate increase of $447 million. This 

25% increase over current rates comes on top of the increase it has just been granted. 

Electricity is an essential commodity. While conservation is possible, there 

is a minimum level necessary for basic heating, lighting and refrigeration needs, 

below which consumption cannot be reduced in order to maintain a decent standard of 

living. The high cost of electricity and gas is consuming an ever-increasing portion 

of the family income, thereby threatening the efforts of those people on low and fixed 

incomes to live a decent and dignified life. 

As a member of the Energy and Power Subcommittee of the u. s. House of 

Representatives, I have been working to find a solution to this problem. I have 

cosponsored comprehensive new legislation to ease the burden of high utility rates for 

all consumers. The Rate Reform and Regulatory Improvement Act of 1976, is also designeed, 

in part, to provide additional relief for senior citizens and others living on low, 

fixed incomes - the people who are hurt most by price increases. 

Specifically, the bill establishes a lifeline rate which ~equires the State 

Public Utility Commissioners to charge the lowest possible rate for a minimum, essential 

amount of electricity. This will guarantee everyone enough electricity to meet essential 

needs. 

Perhaps more important for all ratepayers, including senior citizens, is the 

requirement that utility rates accurately reflect the actual costs of providing service. 

This will mean an end to the promotional rates for large users of electricity. Under 

the bill, these large users will pay their ,fair share and the burden on private consumers 

will be reduced. 

Another advantage of this approach will be that ~onsumers will have an opportun

ity to plan their consumption according to a "time-of-day" pricing schedule. Costs of 
' ' service are greatest during periods of peak demand, and to the extent that consumers 

can shift their usage to off-peak hours, their bills wi]l be cut. 

As these measur~s reduce peak demand, the need to construct new generating 

facilities will decrease, thus further limiting future rate increases. 

The bill also limits the use of fuel adjustment clauses, or, as they are 

called in our area, raw materials adjustments. These clauses permit utilities to 

bill their customers for changes in fuel costs without going through the normal regula

tory process in which consumers' rights are guaranteed, and thus provide no incentive 

to the utility to minimize fuel costs. Last year alone, New Jersey's four utilities 

added more than $771 million to gas and electric bills in this manner. 

Finally, the bill prohibits the inclusion in rates of the costs of promotional 

advertising. Utilities spend approximately $215 million per year, either promoting 

their product or enhancing their images. Since utilities effectively have a monopoly 

in the regions they serve, disallowing such charges to rate-payers will cut bills with

out adversely affecting the companies, which may still advertise as long as their 

stockholders pay for it. 
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I am also actively working to retain price cohtrols on natural gas. The pro
posed deregulation, which might have increased gas bills for a family of four to as 

much ~s $400 per year, was defeated on the floor of the House, despite a massive 

lobbying campaign by the big oil and gas companies. Instead, we passed legislation 

which would strengthen controls on gas prices charged by the largest companies. 

In another effort to prevent gas prices from rising unnecessarily, along with 

several of my colleagues in Congress, I have become an intervenor in the legal pro

ceedings to appeal the Federal Power Commission's decision to increase new natural 

gas prices from 50 cents per thousand cubic feet to $1.42 - a 173 percent increase -which 

I believe is not warranted and not based on actual costs. 
Gas shortages are a continuing area of inquiry. The Oversight and Investiga

tions Subcommittee, of which I am a member, has uncovered evidence based on u.s. 
Geological Survey data indicating that industry natural gas reserves estimates may be 

understated by as much as 37 percent. Reserve figures are used to help determine how 

much the companies will be allowed to charge, and to the extent they are understated, 

prices will rise. The Subcommittee has also uncovered evidence showing that 55 percent 

of the gas wells in the Gulf of Mexico are producing at an average rate 21 percent 

lower than their operator's own estimates of "reasonable" and "efficient" production. 

Finally, the Oil and Gas Journal, an industry publication, last year indicated 

that only 48 of 1,068 tracts leased in the Gulf of Mexico since 1970 are producing gas. 

This is the subject of ongoing investigation. 

Finally, I recently conducted a hearing in Hackensack to investigate the matter 

of non-delivery of contractual volumes of gas and its impact on the rate-payer. In 

my District alone, residents paid $20 million too much for natural gas over the last 

two years. Due to Gulf Oil Corporation's failure to comply with its contract to supply 

gas to the pipeline serving northern New Jersey, PSE&G was forced to obtain gas else

where at a higher cost. Although the FPC has ruled that Gu1f must fulfill its con

tractual obligations, it has not yet taken affirmative action. 
I assure you that I am keenly aware of the need to put a stop to the continuing 

increases in our utility bills. I will continue to work actively to do all I can to 

keep the price of energy as low as possible, and to prevent and correct the injustices 

and abuses of the current utility rate structures that are contributing to higher bills 

throughout the country. 

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Burdick, it is unfortunate that the Congressman 

is not here to anser questions. I think with many of the problems that exist, the 
blame could be placed on the federal level. I think it would be in good taste for 
this committee to send another letter of invitation to the Congressman to have him 

appear at our next public hearing. I think that is very, very essential because he might 
furnish us with the answers that we are looking for. 

Since you are not able to give us these answers, will you please convey that 

message to the Congressman? 

MR. BURDICK: I would be glad to, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Please. Because we feel that he can be a very, very 

good witness at this hearing. 

MR. BURDICK: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. 

Lee Faggioni, Chairman of the Division of Aging, Middlesex County, will be our 

next witness. 
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L E E F A G G I 0 N I: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Lee Faggioni and I 

am Chairman of the Division on Aging in Middlesex County. 

In listening to the testimony which started this morning - and which is still 

going on- interwoven through the.entire list of speakers' themes was, "Yes, we 

recognize the need." Now, you, Mr. Chairman, have been committed to satisfy the need 

of these people. You say you are; I believe you are. 

Likewise, the PUC representative was conmtitted. Likewise, the New Jersey 

Central Power and Light was committed. But, in every one of their talks, there seemed 

to be no real cure that is going to satisfy everybody because if you cure one illness, 

you cause another disease. We certainly don't want industry to move out of the State. 

That would be catastrophic. It has happened in New York City and New York City is 

going bankrupt. We certainly don't want that to happen in New Jersey. 

We talk about helping those in need, and yet no one today, not any of the 

senior citizens, not anyone, was able to furnish the Chairman with figures on how 

many people are affected. 

Now, there is an avenue through which the committee can work, Mr. Chairman, 

and that is, through the State Office on Aging. In every county there are offices 

on aging. Put them to work. They~e being paid by the State and the County Freeholders. 

Put them to work and let them find the information you seek. 

Now, as to the solution -- I have no question in my mind that together this 

committee, the PUC, whoever else is involved, is going to come up with a solution 

because they already are all agreed on the need. May I take that back to my people, 

Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. 

MS. FAGGIONI: All right. The next question I would ask of you, sir, is, in 

this coming referendum, knowing the Constitution of the United States, you say that 

the Constitution will be amended in order to allocate funds from the gambling casinos 

to be directed entirely to this project, is that correct? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: According to the testimony of Stephen Perskie, who is 

quite an expert, he happens to be Chairman of the Taxation Committee, I assume that 

he gave you the correct facts. 

MS. FAGGIONI: The second part of my question then is, will that amendment 

be tied to the question of casino gambling? Will it be incorporated in the one 

question, do you know? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I don't think so. 

MS. FAGGIONI: That is where the rub comes in. I would be ready to start a 

public relations prograM right now, to go to all the hundreds of senior citizens and 

clubs in the State and tell them to push casino gambling if I could guarantee them 

that, yes, the funds would be allocated to alleviating their plight. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I think you could get better answers from Stephen 

Perskie, who is the Assemblyman representing Atlantic County, and representing 

Atlantic City. 

MS. FAGGIONI: Okay. But, if they are smart, that is the only way they are 

going to get it. I have lived too long in New Jersey. I have seen the Lottery go 

down by the board; it all went into the general fund. It was supposed to be for 

I & A. I saw the cigarette tax go for everything but school aid. We don't want this 

to happen here • 

At any rate, this is not your purview. What I would like from you, sir, is 

the assurance, when I go back to my county today,that, yes, you agree with everyone 

else here that there is a need for lifeline, or whatever form it takes, and, yes, 
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they will get it as soon as it is worked out. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I have said it time and time again. I see the need 

for a lifeline rate program and if we don't have it by regulation, we will do it by 
legislation. 

MS. FAGGIONI: Thank you. That is enough. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Jacob Perzley, Old Bridge Senior Citizens Council. 

J A C 0 B P E R Z L E Y: My name is Jacob Perzley. I represent the Old Bridge 

Utilities Committee. I am also speaking for the Central New Jersey Consumers' 

Coaltion. I would like to read their resolution first. It will only take a moment. 

"We, the citizens of Central New Jersey, find the continually rising cost 

of electricity and gas to present a hardship on the people of this area, particularly 

those on fixed incomes, senior citizens, low and middle-income working families. 

As electricity and gas are now necessities of life, being offered for sale by monopolies 

at rates which are blatantly discriminatory against the small user, we urge passage 

of the lifeline bill. 

"In addition to conserving energy, this bill would bring greatly needed relief 

to seniors, those on fixed incomes, and low-income people, who desperately need a 

lifeline to protect them against spiriling costs of gas and electric. 

"The lifeline legislation is a bill which represents the interest of a great 

majority of citizens of New Jersey and we think it is time that the needs of the 

people be considered above the profits of the utility companies because life depends 

on lifeline." 

Now, I am not going to be redundant and go into all the testimony that was 

gone into before because we agree that there is a need for it. There is only one 

thing I want to - there are several, but one thing I wanted to question was the 
Public Utilities Commission. Now, I listened to Mr. McGlynn. We know he was one 

of those opposed to the lifeline concept. I cannot understand why a Commission as 

important as the Public Utilities Commission--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: May I interrupt you for a minute? I don't think he 

was opposed to the lifeline concept. 

MR. PERZLEY: During the hearing of the Jersey Central Power and Light Company 

he voted against it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: He was opposed to the particular rate schedule, but he 

was not opposed to the lifeline concept. I think you are in error when you say that. 
MR. PERZLEY: You will excuse me, sir, but I read that Commissioner Jacobson 

called this proposal one of the best he had seen, as it would do the greatest good 
for the greatest number of those who need this the most and Commissioner McGlynn was 
against that at that time. There were just the two people on the Commission. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I think if you were here and you had listened closely 
to the Commissioner, he explained his position. 

MR. PERZLEY: Yes, sir. I heard his position. That one instance was-

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Let's not rehash old things, please. 

MR. PERZLEY: Okay, sir. I am trying to find out why we can't have a third 

Commissioner on that Board. This is an emasculated Commission, where you wind up with 

a Mexican standoff of this sort. It wound up in a compromose. Jersey Central Power 

and Light was awarded $60 million as a compromise and the other thing went out the 

window. 

Now, we were told emphatically that these things have to be done by legis

lation, that they did not have the power originally to reduce rates or to give certain 
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segments of the population special rates. I heard differently today. So, I don't know 

what is what. I heard the former at a different hearing. 

We have petitioned the Governor to appoint Mr. Tom O'Niel to this Commission 

and we had a reply from the Governor that Tom O'Niel was well qualified and he thanked 

us for our interest. Now, that was back two months ago. That position is still open 

and as long as they stay around with a two-man Commission, I don't think they are 

going to accomplish too much. 

Mr. McGlynn sounded serious enough and dedicated enough to do the things 

he promises he will do, but if we are not going to get that third man on the Commission 

and if the Legislature can't get the Governor to appoint that third person, I don't 

think they are going to be able to accomplish anything. We have to have the third 

man on there. 

Another thing I wanted to mention was the summer-winter differential that 

the companies put into effect. People, especially senior citizens, like myself --

I must have air conditioning. I am down here today at the expense of my health, 

believe me. I have emphysema. I will pay for this. But, they are going to charge 

us more because we need that air conditioner in the summertime - and I need it. Last 

month I had a bill of $9.60. This month I had a bill of $23 already. Now, you can't 

tell me that is just because I use the air conditioning, but it is because of the 

difference in the rate structure between the summer and winter differential. I am 

just speaking for myself. 

Now, that is one of the things we are trying to bring out. There were more 

questions this morning and more emphasis put on who is going to take up the slack, 

or who is going to pay for implementing this program, and how it will effect the 

large industrial users or the utility companies. I think it is about time the 

utility companies took a little bit off of the top of their cream - you know, a 

little less of that cream - and put some of it back to where-- Nobody worried about 

where we, the seniors or those who are low income, are going to get the money to pay 

their raises. Nobody questioned that. But, you are worried about how they are going 

to get the money to offset what it may cost them to do. 

I think as a group, we are just as important, or more so, than they are. We 

don't have the money, I know. The same with their advertising and all their promotional 

ads. Well, that should come out of their investor's returns. There is no question about 

it. 

The figures that were given to the PUC were all given by the Jersey Central 

Power and Light Company, in its last request for a rate hike. Those figures were 

written up by experts who work for the Jersey Central Power and Light Company. Why 

can't we have our own experts give figures to the PUC? Why do they have to depend 

on the utility companies' figures? We are paying for the experts that the Jersey 

Central Power and Light, or any of these utility companies,are using. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSI'.rO: If you have figures that have been developed by your 

own experts, you are free to send them to this committee. Give us these figures. 

MR. PERZLEY: Well, we don't have the money. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You don't have the money--

MR. PERZLEY: All I can go on is what I get from the newspapers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: But you asked me why we don't accept figures and 

statistics from your experts. 

MR. PERZLEY: No. I said from "ours." What I meant by that is, the State 

experts, instead of the utility companies'. The Public Utilities should, have their 

own group of experts to present figures. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We have the Office of Fiscal Affairs, representing the 

Legislature. We have the Public Advocate, who protects our interest when it comes 

to fiscal matters. 
MR. PERZLEY: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We do have them. 

MR. PERZLEY: When you questioned Mr. McGlynn regarding where he got his 

figures on how many seniors were involved, he said that they got their figures from 

the Jersey Central Power and Light Company. Now, just as Mrs. Faggioni said, those 

figures could have been obtained from the State Department on Aging and they would 

be a lot more reliable, I am sure. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. VanNess, from the Public Advocate's Office, 

is going to testify at the next hearing and I think he could come up with a lot of 

those answers that you are looking for. 

MR. PERZLEY: That will be the one in Jersey City? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In Jersey City, yes. Thank you, Mr. Perzley. 

MR. PERZLEY: You are welcome. Thank you for the opportunity to be here and 

sound off. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. A.L. Ruefer, President of the Manchester Communities 

Coordinating Council will be our next witness. 
A. L. R U E F E R: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before I give you my short, written 

statement, I represent a group who has been named here today, but I just wonder if you 

know how many of us there are? I refer to the people with all-electric homes. It is 

not common in a lot of places, but my statement will bring out this. I am very glad 

to have the opportunity to speak for these people. 
My name is A. L. Ruefer. I am President of the Manchester Communities Coordinat

ing Council, composed of 13 senior citizens villages and representing over 20,000 people 

in Manchester in Ocean County. 
Most of our residents live in homes which are total electric. Heating, obviously, 

represents our major cost for electrical energy. Should we wish to convert our homes 

to some other form of energy for this purpose, the cost would be prohibitive. Therefore, 
we are "locked-in" so to speak, with regard to the use of electricity for all of our 

energy needs. 
Ten years ago, when our type communities were being built in the Central 

Jersey Pine Barrens, there were no gas lines or, in fact, very few lines or streets 
of any kind. When the question of heating came up, the combined consideration of 

safety, installation costs and monthly rates made all-electric homes very attractive. 

We senior citizens probably comprise the largest percentage of electric homes in 
Central Jersey. 

During the recent PUC hearings which resulted in the Jersey Central Power and 
Light Company being granted rate increases to provide an addition~! $59,235,000 in 

operating revenue, it became clear that any consideration given total electric resi

dential customers will gradually be eliminated. We nave in mind Rider 3, the uncontrolled 

water heating, which has been mentioned by the Pre~ident of the Jersey Central Power 

and Light Company. Customers that satisfied the conditions of this rider have been 

charged a lower rate for 500 kilowatt-hours of elect·ricity consumed after the first 
' 

300 kilowatt-hours. It is now proposed that this rider be eliminated during the next 

two to three years. 

In the last two years - from July of 1')74 to July of 1976 - we have had increases 

of between 21% and 58% in winter and between 70% and 100% in summer, depending upon 
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the kilowatt-hours used. In addition, the fuel adjustment charge increased from 

one cent in January of 1975 to one point three cents per kilowatt-hour in July of 1976, 

an increase of 30%, all this on top of a substantial increase in the 1974 rates over 

1973. 

If Rider 3 - uncontrolled hot water heating - were to be cancelled, or eliminated, 

which is a very distinct possibility according to the feeling expressed by the P.U.C. 

in the last rate increase, our yearly electric bill would increase another $10 per 

month. 

We can be classified as high-energy users, as most of our homes are all electric 

and, even though fully insulated, consume an average of 1500 kilowatt-hours per month. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Excuse me, how would you benefit from a lifeline rate? 

MR. RUEFER: From this rate? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: How would you benefit by the-

MR. RUEFER: I haven't said we would. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You wouldn't? 

MR. RUEFER: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I am in complete agreement with you. 

MR. RUEFER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Another question I would like to ask you - I am sorry 

to interrupt you--

MR. RUEFER: That's all right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What are your electric bills for a month? 

MR. RUEFER: Well, now, in the summer, our bills, say for 1500 kilowatts 

well, they wouldn't run 1500 in the summer, sir, because most of our energy is con

sumed--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In money, what is that? 

MR. RUEFER: In the summer? Well, it varies so much. In the summer, now, we 

would probably, with this new rate - the average house - pay about $35 to $36. 

In the winter, the average house will be paying $100. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. 

MR. RUEFER: After examining the reasoning data,which was instrumental in the 

change in the rate structure last month, we believe any advantage all-electric homes 

may have had in the past has already been eliminated. 

We, as senior citizens, are in favor of some sort of relief from those very 

high electric rates. We do not feel that lifeline is the type of legislation which 

would serve all senior citizens equally~ We are opposed to the lifeline legislation -

that is an answer to your question, sir - which would give preferential treatment to 

low electrical energy users. Obviously, any reduction ~n rate granted to users, in this 

category, would have to be made up by an increase in rate to high energy users. 

We appreciate this legislation will benefit those who are low energy users. 

However, it should be clear it will work another hardship on those who are high users. 

We already pay the same rate as all others from June to October, which is the 

period of peak loads. If a plant generating capacity is peaked for summer loads, then 

its use during the winter months at lesser loads is less efficient. Therefore, the 

more it is used during this winter period, would tend to increase the overall efficiency. 

You all agree, I assume, that a plant is most productive if it is running at 

100% efficiency. This, of course, is a benefit to all users. This is no different 

than any supplier giving lower rates for volume buyers. This is plain economics as 

practiced the world over. 
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We believe any legislation designed to reduce the financial burden of retired 

senior citizens should benefit all senior citizens and not be discriminatory. We 

assume the legislators are trying to help people on low and fixed incomes, and we 

believe the information we have given plainly shows that thousands of these people 
would be penalized if this legislation were passed in its present form. 

At this time, we ask that the bill not be passed in its present form. Thank 

you, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Do you have any ideas or alternatives to relieve your 

burden? Do you have any suggestions to make? 

MR. RUEFER: Well, there are two things that I heard mentioned here today. 

I am sure that there are others. We did hear the energy stamp proposition, which 

is a way and it must be considered. We, at this particular time, don't know if it 

is the best way or not. 
We also heard that this bill may be amended, or changed, due to the fact that 

there is a realization that there are certain people that do, of necessity, have this 

large energy charge. Special consideration should be given to them because they are 

locked in, just as much as the other people. 

There may be some justification for this change and I believe the President 

of the power company stated this - or somebody did, I don't know exactly who it was. 

But, when it was said, it sounded as though this was a very possible way to solve the 

problem. We just ask that they treat everyone of us fairly and not consider us rich 

people because we are locked into using a-lot of energy in order to keep ourselves 

warm and cook our food. 

right? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You tell me that you live in Manchester in Ocean County, 

MR. RUEFER: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: And this is an all-electric community of houses? 

MR. RUEFER: Yes, sir. All of these 13 villages, as I said, are in or are 

adjacent to Manchester Township and they are all in Ocean County, and they are practically 

all total electric. As they said when it was built, it was the best, cheapest, and 

right way to build. There were no gas lines. There was nothing. Everything was 

wonderful. It was good heat. It was cheap heat. There was a low installation cost 

which made the cost of our houses more economical, and so forth, and that is why it 

was put in. Now, unfortunately, as I said, we are trapped. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It is totally a senior citizen community? 
MR. RUEFER: I beg your pardon? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Is it a total senior citizen community? 

MR. RUEFER: Yes, it is total senior citizen. All of these 13 villages and 
these people are senior citizens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Do you know how many people were forced to leave their 
homes because they couldn't afford the high electricity rates? 

MR. RUEFER: May I say this, sir? Most of them don't even realize at this 

time what they are paying because we haven't received our bills yet. It only went 

into effect the 19th of July and they haven't gotten their bills yet. They have been 

warned by people like myself, but they haven't -- we don't know what the result will 
be, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: All right. Thank you. 

MR. RUEFER: You are welcome. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. John F. McDonald, Senior Vice President for Government 
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Affairs, Public Service Electric and Gas Company, and also Mr. George Clarkson, 

General Manager of Rates, Public Service Electric and Gas Company. 

J o H N F. Me D 0 N A L D: Mr. Chairman, I have with me, Mr. George Clarkson, 

General Manager of Rates for Public Service Electric and Gas Company, who has a 

statement to make. 

G E 0 R G E C L A R K S 0 N: Mr. Chairman, may I say, at the outset, in addition 

to the prepared statement that we supplied, we have come down here today, basically, 

to supply you with as much information as possible to help you make a good decision 

on this very difficult social problem. So, if I may, sir, in the interest of time -

I know that we have had a lot of witnesses here today - I will just paraphrase some 

of the facts that I have here in the testimony to try and give you and the committee 

as much of a handle on making a good judgment and qualified decision on this thing 

as possible. 

First of all, let me say that we sort of understand, or we do understand, that 

lifeline rates, as interpreted throughout the country today, are rates designed to 

establish lower bills to certain residential consumers for electricity,or gas,or 

telephone,or water, or sewerage, and the rates are not related to cost. So, therefore, 

it becomes somewhat of a social issue. 

Further, these customers intended to be aided by such rates are customers who 

are in an economic strata, such that they are unable to enjoy the benefits of certain 

minimum uses of the services enumerated. Now, within that particular structure, then, 

the reduction in monthly bills - when there is a reduction to customers of this class -

would, therefore, be picked up by other classes - other utility customers - so that 

the utility, as a whole, could be made whole on this thing. 

Now, we have been studying this thing for a long period of time, Mr. Esposito, 

and I have listened to a number of people here today who say, for instance, that some 

of the suggestions, such as subsidy programs, are anathema. They are not the kind of 

thing that the seniors want. However, I would suggest to your committee that I do 

think this is an area that has to be taken into consideration because statistics and 

things that I am going to quote here specifically for Public Service territory, hopefully 

give you an appreciation of some of the problems with putting in a blanket reduction 

at a certain kilowatt-hour, or time-use level, for all customers, because we feel 

very strongly - and I think our statistics support this - that we will not be helping 

all of the people we want to help, and we will be helping a lot of people that shouldn't 

be helped at all. 

Now, I want to also suggest to you, sir, that Public Service has absolutely 

no ax to grind in this area whatsoever. We came down here purely to give you as 

much information as possible and we take no position on it, other than the position 

that we recognize the need: we want to do something about this need, as you do. I 

listened to Mr. McGlynn here today and I have taken part in the generic hearings that 

have been held and I have testified before the Utilities Commission. I too hope -

and I am sure the Company as well hopes - that there will be some very speedy resolution 

of this kind of thing, either through your committee or through the Public Utilities 

Commission, early in the Fall. 

So, with that in mind, let me just say this: We do studies every year of 

all of our residential customers and in these studies, for the first time last year -

because we realized it was becoming very important - we went out and asked people to 

respond on the basis of income level. And, as a result of that, I have attached to 

my prepared statement an exhibit that gives a break-down at the very end and it 

shows some of the facts that I would like to recite to you. The title of this is, 
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1975 Residential Appliance Saturation Study - TOtal Electric Customers by Income Level 
and Average Monthly Kilowatthour Use for a Twelve Month Period. 

Might I, before I cite some of these statistics, Mr. Esposito, also suggest 
something to you today that I have not heard once in the room? Public Service has 

600,000 gas home heating customers. I have not heard anything about the subject of 

gas as a lifeline kind of a thing. I would trust that your deliberations and/or the 

deliberations of the Utilities Commission, would certainly consider some of the 

problems involved in that aspect of the business as well. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: May I interrupt you for just one minute? I think 

Senator Feldman's Bill addresses itself, somewhere along the line, to gas also • 

MR. CLARKSON: Yes. I know his bill does but I thought you were talking 

specifically about kilowatt-hour use. No other witness has talked about it at all, 

that is the point I was trying to make. 
Well, anyway, the statistics we have here - which you can see - indicates this: 

In the customer group of responses with annual income of $5,000 or less - that is the 

first column on the left - we find that about approximately 10% of these customers 

use over 500 kilowatt-hours per month. Conversely, in going to the column at the 

very right, we find out that customers with annual income of over $22,000, 34% of 
those customers use below 500 kilowatt-hours per month. Approximately 12% of them 

use 300 kilowatt-hours or less. 
From these statistics' it seems to me, and at least it seems to the company

and Councilperson Villani of Newark, who I think also recognized this problem of 

income strata and everything else like that- that the establishment of some kind 
of an arbitrary cut-off point of kilowatt-hour use, or therm use, below which you would 

lower the rates, irrespective of where you put the rate increases to other customers, 

would certainly benefit a large number of customers in the upper income strata and 

while, at the same time, it might have a deleterious effect on some of the small, 

or low-income, customers. 
We also discovered, in analyzing the applicance and kilowatt-hour-use data of 

customers with annual income of $5,000 or less - and that is on the next four sheets, 
immediately after that, where we asked questions regarding the various appliances that 
customers own and they respond and told us and we determined from their bills what 

I 
kilowatt-hours per month they use - that these customers have a mixture of all types 

of energy-using electric appliances, not just limited to what are normally considered 
"minimum need" appliances. For instance, 32% of these customers - that is, the 
customers under $5,000 annual income - have one room air conditioner, in the living 
room, and 22% of them have one room air conditioner in the bedroom. 

I listened to one of our senior citizens today, for instance, indicate the 
he felt that because of an emphysema condition, he too had to have an air conditioner. 
So, the point I am trying to make here is, you can't necessarily zero in on kilowatt

hour use, or necessarily appliances, as being a criteria for saying, "Well, we ought 

to give something to this person, but not to that person." 

We also find out, for instance, that nearly 60% of these under $5,000-a-year 
customers have some form of black and white television1 46% have color. I think you 

can appreciate the fact, Mr. Esposito, that color television uses a lot of kilowatt

hours. Many of these customers - about 16% - have indicated the ownership of frost

free refrigerator-freezers. 

One of the things that I don't think is apparent, and I know it has not 

exactly come out in some of the testimony here today, is, our statistics show, and 
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the responses we get from many of our customers indicate that just about everybody 

has some form of refrigeration in the home, and a refrigerator has a compressor type 

of a unit which responds to heat. In other words, it works harder during the hot 

weather than it would during the cold weather. So, automatically, irrespective of 

anything else, you are going to have a generation of kilowatt-hours that are, for 

instance, cost sensitive to the cost of the utility in the summertime. 

Somebody mentioned today, for instance, the fact that they were a little bit 

disturbed about something called a summer-winter differential - rates that were charged 

higher in the summertime than they were in the wintertime. Well, everybody has the 

type of equipment that occasion those kindSof costs. It is not just air conditioning 

alone, it is also refrigeration that everybody has, and those costs built up on top 

of one another by about 1.3 million customers, help to cause some of the peaking 

situations, for instance, that Public Service does have. 

Now, the company submits on the basis of these and similar statistics - and we 

also have these for gas, Mr. Esposito, which we can get for you if you want - that the 

establishment of an energy-measuring criteria, in other words that 300 kilowatt-hours 

below which you will establish a lifeline - or 500, or whatever it might be - cannot 

possibly differentiate this social phenomenon of attempting to help those people, be 

they poor, needy, or senior citizen: it just doesn't do it. Clearly, each of our 

customers, in whatever income strata he is in, places a different value on items 

needed for their own life style. 

For instance, our statistics also show that there are a large number of 

customers in the $5,000 and under annual income level that use over 1,000 kilowatt

hours a month. Now, 1,000 kilowatt-hours a month on Public Service rates, at the 

present time, varies somewhere between $50 and $60 per month and these people apparently 

have made some kind of a judgment decision - or a value decision - indicating that they 

are willing to spend $600 to $700 a year, out of whatever that income is they are 

getting, to give them the lifestyle with electric-using appliances at that kilowatt

hour level. 

Again, the point I am trying to make to you, sir, is that the establishment 

of that kilowatt-hour cut-off, we don't think, is the proper statistic to use in 

determining this kind of a thing. 

Many of the witnesses here today - and I would emphasize this very, very 

strongly and I know you appreciate this, sir, because Mr. McGlynn also pointed it out -

indicated that the biggest problem you have with this whole senior citizen thing - the 

poor, the needy - is an identification problem -- the identification of who is going 

to get a benefit. It is not one, easy, solution. 

Others in the senior citizen groups have suggested, for instance, that they 

are opposed to the kind of a thing, such as identifying themselves by some income 

level, or something else like that. I would point out to you, sir, for instance, 

that one of the plans was cited as being - I don't know whether it was a model 

plan or not - a lifeline plan in other states, for instance. One of those states, 

the State ofMaine, does have an identification system utilizing a definition of 

seniors, 62 or over, and also $4,500 per year annual income, or less. What they do 

with that information after that, of course, is to then set up some form of a subsidy 

program through the rate schedules in order to help this thing out. But, there has to 

be some form of identification, it seems to us. 

The probmem that I have with this, and the problem that I think any utility 

would have with this, is that the utility is not in a position to make that determination. 

We had one of the ladies from the Aging Agency in Middlesex point out the fact that 
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they had certain statistics on seniors and other things like that. 

I am sure you are well aware of the fact that the utility only has a service 

address. They get a meter reading. They mail a bill. They get a payment. They 
keep a record and the customer is somewhat of a third party in this. But, they don't 

know how many people are in a houseold: how many children there are: what income level 

they live at, generally speaking: they don't know anything about that customer at all 

and many times, and I think Dr. Bartnoff mentioned this fact, they do not think it is 

within their purview to go out knocking on doors, trying to get that information. 

But, I do think that if there is some kind of a criteria set up, Mr. Esposito -

I would like to make this other point - I think the criteria should recognize the fact 

that every utility is different insofar as the average use of its customers is concerned. 

In 1975, Public Service users averaged approximately 432 kilowatt-hours per month. 

Now, it is interesting to note that, coupled with this use in 1975, 220,000, or 17% 

of our residential customers, used 150 kilowatt-hours, or less, per month: 576,000, 

or about 44%, used 300 kilowatt-hours, or less, per month: and 933,000, or 72% of all 

of our customers, used 500 kilowatt-hours, or less, per month. Why do I state this to 

you, sir? Only to give you a handle on the magnitude, the possible magnitude, of 

dollar reductions when you talk about establishing reductions for lifeline below 

certain usage such as this. 

I would also like to suggest to you that, as you well recognize, the application 

of lifeline rates makes one basic assumption - it is sort of implied in the whole 

thing - and that is that the lifeline recipient is a customer of the utility. Now, 

this is not necessarily true. We have a tremendous number of customers throughout 

our territory, all of whom live in master-metered apartment buildings. Councilperson 

Guiliano,from Newark, mentioned the fact this morning that there were about 7,000 

seniors living in low-income housing in the City of Newark alone. We have tremendous 

numbers of this kind of thing. 

These master-metered apartment buildings are basically put in so that service 

is rendered in one location with one meter, for which the landlord and/or the agency 

receives a slightly lower rate because of using bulk service and, in turn - supposedly -

they pass along, or distribute, the cost of that electric power throughout all of the 

tenants in the building. If those tenants happen to be low-income, as many thousands 

of them are, and/or senior citizens, the specific lifeline approach does not afford 

them any opportunity to sort of get into the act. 
In conclusion, I would like to make a positive recommendation to you. I would 

like to offer this, for what it is worth to your committee's resolution. I would like 

to recommend that the State set up some kind of an administrative procedure in an 

existing agency - and we have heard today that there are such existing agencies -

whereby senior citizens over the age of 62 and/or poor and needy with $5,000 or less 
of annual income, determined by some reportable criteria, may be positively identified. 

For instance, a form similar to that used in the State of Maine - as I have already 

suggested - could be made available to citizens meeting the above criteria. 

I don't know whether or not it would be worthwhile waiting to see whether this 

would happen or not, but, certainly, another form of qriteria could be the State Income 

Tax form, where we could find out exactly, by incom~, who the various low-income people 

are, when that goes into effect. 

A program of taxation could be adopted wi~h a~ exclusiona~y vehicle for qualify

ing citizens by the Legislature so that each of the above identified individuals may 

receive some form of subsidy payment from the administrative agency. The subsidy 

would be specifically identified as an energy payment subsidy and I think these are 
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some of the kinds of things that Assemblyman Perskie was talking about this morning 

regarding casino gambling. 

I would like to just add one other statement and then I will close. I wanted 

to mention the fact to you that - again I reiterate - again, it is not just electricity 

that I think the committee should be concerned with. And I am sure you are not. I 

think that the committee should also be concerned with such things as gas. I think it 

also ought to be concerned with oil because there are many, many homes in the State of 

New Jersey, and many apartments, that are not making use of Public Service's services to 

those apartments or homes. They are using oil and I think there should be some way 

to alleviate the vary high cost and the increasing cost of oil as an energy means of 

heating. 

Much is made today of the value of tying lifeline rates with the need to con

serve energy or valuable natural resources. The assumption is that people who are not 

poor or not senior citizens, use a lot of energy and, therefore, should be made to 

conserve. Yet, the most critical areas of energy use are those which provide services 

to all of our citizens for heating and hot water. Now, I recognize there are other 

things but heating and hot water, I think, are two of the real basic necessities of 

life and it is either done by coal, or gas, or electricity. 

The rich and the young, as well as the old and the poor, need these basic 

services. Why, then, should a pricing burden be placed on one group in the guise of 

forcing conservation, when all of these social groups require the same degree of 

bodily comfort? I would submit to you that conservation should not be tied in and 

I sincerely trust that your committee will not look upon it this way. The theory of 

lifeline should not be tied in with conservation because the need of basic energy is 

common to all citizens. 

I want to thank you very much for having us here today and I will be glad 

to answer any questions or supply any data that you may wish to have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Clarkson. The first question I would 

like to ask regards natural gas. Do you have any projections about how much more 

the consumer's bill will be if the Federal Power Commission's recommendations on 

deregulation of gas are put into effect? 

MR. CLARKSON: No, sir, I don't and the main reason is this: We received a 

copy of that order approximately two or three weeks ago and we, as well as the pipe

line companies who supply us, have a large number of contracts and these contracts 

all go into effect at different points in time. 

The Federal Power Commission's order specifically talks to the subject of 

old gas and new gas and defines certain price increases for new gas past January 1, 

1975, and then treats old gas, prior to that time, at a different price level. 

So, we have not, as yet, run through all of the specific pricing figures 

for all of the new gas/old gas contractual arragnement in the company. We hope to 

have an answer in a very short period of time. We don't have it now, Mr. Esposito. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I read an article that so~one just handed to me -

this if from the Ontario Energy Board - and it says, "MetrQ homeowners will be asked 

to pay an average of about $413 annually, or 3.5% more." 

MR. CLARKSON: Well, Mr. Esposito, may I respectfully suggest, sir, that 

Canada is not regulated by the Federal Power Commission. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Could you answer my second question - how much of an 

increase in natural gas bills can be anticipated in the next five years? 

MR. CLARKSON: No, sir, I can't answer that question at the moment. I do 
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think that -- I am sure that you have heard a lot - or read about it in the newspaper -

that the cost of liquefied gas and other fonns of gas will be more expensive than the 
gas we have at the present time. I can't tell you at the moment how much of an 

effect that would have on bills. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You heard some of the testimony this morning regarding 

the senior citizen being a proud person. Do you have any infonnation about the degree 

of willingness of senior citizens, with limited incomes, to apply for the lifeline 

rate in Maine? 
I do not. We could inquire,though. MR. CLARKSON: No, sir, 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: If you get that infonnation, we would like to have it. 

MR. CLARKSON: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It might not be the problem that we see it as at the 

present time. 
MR. CLARKSON: I have some rate people up there and I will try and get you an 

answer on that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: PSE&G is presently engaged in promotional advertising 

to encourage further energy consumption on the part of consumers. Are these costs passed 

on to the consumers? 
MR. CLARKSON: I was under the impression, Mr. Esposito, that we weren't 

advertising anything to increase the use of electric energy by consumers. As a matter 

of fact, all of our advertising has been directed t~ two major subjects - one, to point 

out to consumers how they can conserve energy and, two, pointing out the fact that we 
' I 

were attempting to bring cheaper nuclear energy on the scene so that the overall cost, 

hopefully, would be kept down. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Clarkson, you are an expert, you know the problem, 

do you see the need for a lifeline rate program at the present time? 

MR. CLARKSON: Yes, sir, I very definitely think that there is a need in the 

State of New Jersey for some fonn of a program, be it lifeline subsidy, or what have 

you, to help people who are positively identified as having a need for this kind of 

help. The only thing that I have attempted to do here today, sir, is to try and point 

out to you that I do feel we have to identify these people. We cannot blanket this 

thing and then expect others to just arbitrarily pick up the cost when they know, 

full well, that -- For instance, if I were to walk out of a house and know that my 
neighbor had a home down at the shore where he only used a few hundred kilowatt-hours 
and he was getting the benefit of a lifeline rate down at the shore, I am certainly 
sure that I would not be overly joyous about the way he was conducting himself, at 
least in an energy fashion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I think you suggested we find out who the people are 

who would qualify to recieve lifeline rates. You suggested there should be a sub
division in the Division of Aging, or something like that? 

MR. CLARKSON: I suggested some fonn of existing agency, sir. I didn't 

attempt to qualify that. I am not familiar with all of the actions of all of the 

agencies in the state government. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Don't you think it should be controlled by people 

who knew the needs of these people, such as the Welfare Boards of the counties or 
the cities? 

MR. CLARKSON: Well, when we testified last year in the Senior Citizen Dis

count case, we presented a rather voluminous paper pointing out that there were 

agencies in the State - Social Security and other things of that nature. In the 

past, it is my understanding that many of these types of agencies have been somewhat 
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reluctant to get involved in handing out statistics or getting other data out so 

that people could use them and utilize the input so as to attempt to make these 

identifications. But, I do think that there are existing institutions, such as 

you just named, that could, very easily, have a much better handle on this kind 

of thing, certainly more so than the utilities could. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What is the rateper kilowatt-hour of an electric home 

versus that charged to industry? On what basis are the rates determined for each 

classification? 

MR. CLARKSON: The rates are determined on the basis of cost, as per the edict 

of the Public Utilities Commission in our last case, and the direction of the cross 

examination and testimony that has gone on in this case. 

At the present time, for instance - and I want to just mention this to you 

There have been questions raised here today about the fact that industry might not 

be paying its way. I assure you, sir, that at least in this on-going proceeding 

in Docket 761-8, before the Utilities Commission, we have deliberately moved in the 

direction of increasing the cost to industry higher than we have to the residential 

consumer and this was supported by the Public Advocate in our case and I think this 

is probably the direction which is going to come out. 

I do not have the specific numbers as to the average cost for heating a home 

versus an industrial plant. I can get those for you if you want. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Would the utilities go along with contributing towards 

the establishment of a lifeline rate in the State of New Jersey, by making some sort 

of a contribution like a surcharge on something? Would they be willing? Because we 

have to have funding. We have to get it from somewhere. 

You know, I have the reputation of being very, very frank. I have heard lots 

of complaints from the consumer - from the public - and they say the Public Service 

is a One of the witnesses testified here this morning about the "cream" and the 

high rate of profit and about the amount of dividends paid by your company. Would 

you be willing to contribute something towards the establishment of this, where 

we would charge the utilites something? 

MR. CLARKSON: I don't understand that question. Are you suggesting that 

possibly we take some of the operating income and instead of moving that operating 

income into dividends and retain surplus, that we turn it over to the State as a 

funding for lifeline rates? Is that the kind of thing you are suggesting? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, that's right. 

MR. CLARKSON: I am not empowered to speak on that subject, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I know. I know it is a tough question for you to 

answer but we have to find a funding for this thing. 

You know, I completely agree with Commissioner McGlynn that there is no such 

thing as a free lunch. Somebody has to pay for it. If we can't pass the cost on to 

the large users, we have to pass the cost on to someone. 

MR. McDONALD: Mr. Chairman, if I may, as you well know, the utilities are 

taxed very heavily in the State of New Jersey. We pay almost $200 million now in 

New Jersey. If the Legislature, in its wisdom, were to decide that they wanted to 

take part of that tax and use it to fund this pro9ram, I think the Legislature is 

able to do that. I don't. t.hink it i;; proper for t.he Leg.islal uro to look to a private 

business and say, "Well, you subsidize this particular kind of a plan", because those 

funds would have to be made up anyway in other charges from other customers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: No, I am not saying that you should totally subsidize 

this. I am saying you could make some sort of a contribution. 
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MR. McDONALD: Well, I don't know how that would be accomplished, Mr. 

Chairman. If we could find some way - some concrete proposal - then we could respond 

to it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: That is what I mean, if we could find some concrete 

way. 

MR. McDONALD: Then we could respond to your question. But, as it is now, 

I don't think that we could really respond, it would be pure speculation as to what 

the situation would be. As a matter of fact, I might mention there are a great number 

of contributions now, on the part of the utilities, under strict supervision and 

jurisdiction of the PUC and they are looking at those kinds of contributions to 

charitable organizations, rather than to private individuals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What should the lifeline kilowatt-hour figure be in 

order to provide a person with a minimal amount of electricity or gas to meet his 

basic requirements for lighting, heating, and refrigeration? Is 300 or 500 kilowatt

hours, as a lifeline rate, adequate for someone who uses electric space heat and 

electric water heating? 

MR. CLARKSON: No, sir. The answer to the last question is no, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: No. Is it true that an electric water heater alone 

will comsume as much as 300 kilowatt-hours per month? 

MR. CLARKSON: An electric water heater, from the statistics in the industry 

and from the studies that we have done, uses anywhere between 4200 and 6000 kilowatt

hours per year, depending upon the number of people in the family, the number of 

bathrooms, hot water outlets, etc. So, dividing that by 12, assuming that the draw 

on the water heater is approximately equivalent every month, you are talking in terms 

of somewhere around 350 to 500 kilowatt-hours every single month, just for the water 

heater alone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What does an air conditioner burn? 

MR. CLARKSON: An air conditioner? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSTIO: Yes. 

MR. CLARKSON: An air conditioner uses approximately 500 to 600 kilowatt-hours 

annually, but the annual period, of course, covers approximately 4 months in the summer

time and probably only one of those months would use one-half of it, depending upon 

the total amount of heat and humidity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What about an electric space heater? 
MR. CLARKSON: Pardon me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: One of those portable electric space heaters. 

MR. CLARKSON: Well, again, Mr. Esposito, I can get you all of these statistics 

on the average use for all of these applicances. We have them back at the office. 
I didn't bring them down with me today. 

As part of my direct testimony in the generic hearing, I incorporated reference 

to all of this and gave all of the average uses and the average cost to run, per year, 

of all of these types of appliances. If you would to have me give them.to you, I 

will be very happy to supply them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, we would appreciate it if you would supply this 

information to the Committee. 

MR. CLARKSON: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We will put it in the transcript. 

As regards the homes of the poor and the elderly, what percentage of such 

homes are fully insulated, do you know? 

MR. CLARKSON: No, sir. But, I do know this: Public Service, as I am sure 

57 



you are well aware, serves your City and also most of the large urban centers 

throughout New Jersey- Passaic, Paterson, Jersey City, Newark, Elizabeth, parts of 

New Brunswick, Camden, and Trenton. Most of these areas have very old homes. I 

don't know what the standard of insulation was at the time they were built, but I 

am sure it was not very good. We have, for instance, as part of our appliance 

saturations - which I made reference to today - asked questions regarding how many 

people have attempted to insulate their homes over the last year and we have some 

statistics on that but I can't tell you what the actual level of insulation is in 

the specific homes at the present time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What role do you think your utility should take to 

promote better insulation and thereby conserve energy and reduce consumer bills? 

MR. CLARKSON: I think we should take the role which was mandated by the 

Public Utilities Commission. Number one, there is a public information program 

which all utilities in the State are required to send out, in mailed envelopes~ 

to all of their customers which acquaints them with the benefits to be derived from 

good insulation and all the different ways that storm windows, etc., etc., could 

help in reducing their utility bills. 

Secondly, as you know, there is a docket in the PUC, going on right now, 

on residential insulation and the question of whether or not the utilities should 

provide a means of funding insulation in the State. This, amongst other things, was 

prompted by the Consolidated Edison proposal to fund insulation over in the City of 

New York. 

So, we are in the present throws of testifying in the case and to the best of 

my knowledge, I do not think we are opposed to it. We are trying to find out the 

best possible means of doing it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Burt Ross says that the promotional campaign explaining 

the benefits of insulation are meaningless without available financing to purchase 

the insulation. Burt Ross, head of the State Energy Office wants utilities financing 

for home insulation. 

MR. CLARKSON: That is what they are trying to find out right now, how to 

do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. Can you do it? 

MR. CLARKSON: Oh, I think it can be done, the question is, how? I think 

that is exactly what the PUC is trying to find out right now. There is a plan, as you 

know, in the State of Michigan to do exactly this kind of a thing and now, of course, 

Can Ed has come up with one. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Have lifeline proposals that have been proposed provided 

a means of shifting rate burdens from the residential class to the commercial-industrial 

classes? 

MR. CLARKSON: I'm sorry, sir, I didn't get the question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Have lifeline proposals that have been proposed provided 

a me~ns of shifting rate burdens from the residential class to the commercial-industrial 

classes? 

MR. CLARKSON: I have not seen any proposals in the country today that 

specifically limits it to only commercial and industrial. I think most of the pro

posals that I have seen, Mr. Esposito, recognize the fact that there are a number 

of other residential customers in the residential class who also, for reasons of 

conservation or other things - whichever way you want to look at it - should pick up 

some of that burden. I would point out, however, again, as part of my direct testimony 

in the generic proceeding, I provided data in that proceeding to show, under approximately 
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four different lifeline rate designs, exactly what would happen and what average 

unit price would have to be tagged on to residential customers, or commercial or 

industrial, if you were to reduce rates under 300 or 500 kilowatt-hours to certain 
levels. I have all that testimony, again, in that generic proceeding. I will be 

very happy to give it to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What effect, in terms of cost,would a program to 

restrict revenue recovery from the lifeline rate for the residential class have upon 

the typical New Jersey homeowner? How much higher would his bills be? 

MR. CLARKSON: In other words, if you were to, let's say, establish a lifeline 

level at 500 kilowatt-hours and if you were to say, "I will reduce use up to 500 

kilowatt-hours by approximately 1 1/2¢ to 2¢", what would happen to the other residential 

customers? I think that is your question. My testimony says that in that case, Mr. 

Esposito, in Public Service territory, because there are so few customers above 500 

kilowatt-hours, unlike Jersey Central and Atlantic Electric, those other residential 

customers would have to pay approximately 22¢ per kilowatt-hour in order to pick up 

the difference only in the residential class. This is one of the reasons that I think 

the proponents of that type of lifeline attempt to soften the blow on residential 

customers by suggesting that they spread it out to also include commercial and 

industrial because that way you are spreading it out to more kilowatt-hours. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In New Jersey, with a lifeline rate of 300 kilowatt

hours at 3¢ per kilowatt-hour, what is the break-even point for a residential customer? 

Would he pay more for his electricity than he does now? 

MR. CLARKSON: What happens - and I think this phenomenon was suggested to you 

this morning, sir - is, if you just make a break point - let's say, as you suggested, 

300 - and you just lower the rate, a lot of people don't understand that every customer, 

no matter how much he uses, has to march through those first 300 kilowatt-hours, there

fore, without some kind of a cutoff or a penalty past that point, what you get into is 

that customers all the up to, let's say, 1700 or 2000 kilowatt-hours, still get a lower 

bill because they have to use those first 300 kilowatt-hours at that low rate. They 

don't get up to the point where they offset those differential revenues until they have 

used quite a few more kilowatt-hours. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Have any proposals been put in to establish a penalty? 

MR. CLARKSON: No, sir, they have not. I recommended this kind of a thing, 

again in the generic hearing. Very frankly, it has a number of drawbacks in it, but 

when you talk about that one specific item, it can be done that way. This is one 

of the reasons why I, for one, feel that the variations of lifeline and the various 

problems of lifeline do cause all kinds of ramifications which are very difficult 

to offset by some blanket level and then say, "Let's give people a lower rate for 
that." 

I am very receptive to the concept that the senior citizens have put forward. 

We certainly want to do something for people like them, and also for the needy, but 

I don't feel, in all honesty, that that is the way to do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Approximately how much of an increase in cost for the 

purchase of electricity would commercial and industrial users pay if we had a lifeline 

rate? 

MR. CLARKSON: Again, testimony that was in that hearing-- I am taking this 

right off the top of my head because I don't have the data with me. It seems to me 

that the average cents per kilowatt-hour by giving a break of approximately 1 1/2¢ 

to 2¢ lower than the customers up to 500 kilowatt-hours are paying now - if we were 

to give all of those customers that 2¢ break- would result in the industrial, 
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commercial, and other residential customers having an increase of approximately 1/2¢ 

per kilowatt-hour - approximately 1/2¢. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I am groping for general figures. Do you have any 

idea what a lifeline rate would cost in dollars and cents? 

this? 

MR. CLARKSON: Well, again, do you mean a transfer of revenues? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. 

MR. CLARKSON: Do you mean how many revenues would be transferred by doing 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: How much money would we need to implement a lifeline 

rate, because we would have to take it from somebody. Let's assume we took it away 

from the commercial users, what would be the amount, in dollars and cents, that 

industry would lose? 

MR. CLARKSON: In terms of -- I can't answer that question specifically, but 

in terms of making a reduction up to 500 kilowatt-hours of about 2¢, you would have to 

pick up somewhere in the order and magnitude of about $100 million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: And you would have to take it away from the commercial 

user, right? 

MR. CLARKSON: Well, the theory is that you would have to get it from somewhere 

and you would spread it throughout all kilowatt-hours used by commercial and industrial 

customers and they, therefore, would be contributing toward it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I see. 

MR. CLARKSON: Mr. McDonald just reminded me, of course, that commercial 

users are also hospitals, country organizations, State House, and a few other things 

like that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Clarkson. 

MR. CLARKSON: Yes, sir. 

MR. McDONALD: Mr. Chairman, I have here a study conducted by the National 

Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners that I would like to offer for the 

record. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. McDonald. 

Mr. Joseph T. Kelly, Manager of Economic Services of Atlantic City Electric 

Company will be our next witness. 

J 0 S E PH T. K E L L Y: I too will excerpt from my testimony. You have copies, 

as does the secretar~ and rather than take a great deal of time I will just summarize it. 

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you and state the position of 

the Atlantic City Electric Company in regard to public utility rate design. Our 

company has many seasonal accounts. These are customers who take service on a year

round basis and, yet, they only avail themselves of that service during the summer 

months and on weekends through the Spring and Fall. These customers are those who 

have a second home at the shore and are, therefore, clearly not in need. 

In our last four rate cases - I should say, in the four rate cases that we 

have had, because we have not had any others - testimony and positions advocated by 

rate counsels have indicated that the rate structure of the company should impose 

a high cost on energy use during the summer in order that these seasonal customers 

should carry a greater proportion of their share of the cost of providing service to 

them. 

As a result of this position, the differential in the summer trailing block 

for energy and winter trailing block for energy has increased from 1/2¢ to 1.6¢. 

Where the ratio of summer trailing block to winter trailing block was 1.4 in 1972, 

it is now 1.97. 
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In addition to this seasonal approach to the rate design there is a separate 

rate structure for those customers who take service for short periods of time. We 

have some customers who refuse to have the service connected year-round, as a result 

we have to disconnect them in the Fall and reconnect them in the Spring. We have 

a connection charge and we have a separate rate structure for them which results 

in their paying additional cost to provide for the energy supplied to them. 

We have looked at the kinds of customers who might be affected, using less 

than 150 kilowatt-hours and using less than 300 kilowatt-hours. In 1975, those 

using less than 150 kilowatt-hours in the month of August represented 12.7% of our 

customers. Residential customer count in the Atlantic City Electric Company territory 

comes to about 240,000 and 2% of those customers had no use at all. So, we were 

connected but they purchased nothing and paid, therefore, only a minimum bill. 

In December of 1975, the residential customer using less than 150 kilowatt

hours were 20.3% of the customers, or one in five, while 7% had no use at all. 

Twenty-six percent of the customers,in August, used less than 300 kilowatt-hours. 

Almost 35%, in December, used less than 300 kilowatt-hours. So, this, to me at least, 

is a clear indication of the true seasonality of pattern, even though these customers 

may be connected year-round. 

Working with 1970 census data and the 1970 saturation study, we estimated 

that the Company could have as many as 50,000 customers who are senior citizens. 

This is about 22% of the customers in the residential class. Information supplied by 

the New Jersey Food Stamp Administration Office indicates that approximately 31,500 

households would be eleigible for food stamps within the Company territory. There 

is undoubtedly some overlapping between those who are eligible for food stamps and those 

who are senior citizens. But, in any event, we would estimate that we would have as 

many as 70,000 who would be in this category of either senior citizen or food stamp 

eligible households. 

Since our load distribution data indicates that there are about 30,000 

customers using less than 150 kilowatt-hours in the month of August and about 52,000 

using less in December, it is clear that there are still large numbers of customers 

who are either poor or are senior citizens, who use more than 150 or 300 kilowatt.-hours. 

We have already heard references to the "soak the large users" philosophy 

and this refers both to residential and commercial and industrial customers. We do 

not believe that the commercial and industrial customer should bear the burden. 

These customers, over the past five years,have experienced large increases in their 

energy costs. These increases have been such as to have a number of customers 

seriously considering the transfer of their operations to other states. This is not 

an idle threat, it is a serious problem. One of our largest industrial customers 

has closed down two of its production lines and removed the equipment from the plant 

and from the State. These jobs have been lost to our customers and those customers 

who are, therefore, out of jobs have zero income: rather than being in need, they 

are destitute. We are continually pressed by commercial and industrial customers 

to help them develop ways to reduce their energy costs. 

Our commercial and industrial representatives over the last 25 years that 

I have been associated with the Company, have worked very closely with all industry 

in our area to help them reduce their energy costs. This has always been a problem 

with our particular utility because, up until about four or five years ago, we had 

the highest energy cost in the State. Fortunately, we have been able to hold down 

our need for increased revenue. We are more in the competitive ballpark today than 
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than we were then. But, we have always been conscious of the need to help our customers 

decrease their costs. 
Even so, the rate increases and the increased cost of fuel has resulted in a 

doubling of the energy cost to the industrial customer while the residential customer 

increase has been about 80%. 
To say that your large residential customer has to pick up this revenue 

difference is also difficult to support. We have many senior citizens, just as the 

gentleman who was here before, who live in electrically-heated homes. They bought 

them as electrically-heated homes, as a second horne, when they were working and then 

when they retired, they sold their homes wherever they lived and moved into the horne 

at the shore for their retirement years. 

We have had these customers come into our rate cases and, believe me, their 

problems are pathetic. We have had them come in and tell us that they cannot even 

afford to heat more than the bathroom and if they are going to have guests, they heat 

one room for the hour before they come and then they turn the heat off when they leave. 

This is a terrible problem and it is really degrading for these people. 

OVer the past 25 years, the average cost per kilowatt-hour for the residential 

customer has been cut in half, while the average cost per kilowatt-hour to our 

industrial customers has increased by 10%. This impact has been severe for the 

industrial customers. 

The Company position has been the same over the last three years. We feel 

that if we go to a rate designed for social purposes, it is going to open a Pandora's 

Box which will create pressure problems for the Legislature from every angle. If you 

give a rate design for one group, then you will have to give a rate design for another 

and the reasons and the justifications for these changes in rates are all good and 

valid. 

The State, through its agencies - as Mr. Clarkson referred to - has the 

information available for making a determination as to who is in need and to whom the 

benefits should go. A shotgun approach, which says we will only use the "use criterion", 

is going to benefit many who do not have a true need and it is going to have a serious 

impact on many who do suffer at this time. 
We strongly recommend that an energy stamp program be adopted to provide 

assistance for the energy needs, regardless of source. Now, this puts me in the same 

ballpark as Mr. Clarkson and Dr. Bartnoff, pointing out that the coal and oil 

industries have supplied a good bit of the energy that goes into homes, even today. 

And, while they have not been the subject of regulation in the past, that is not to 
say that it could not be enacted some time in the future. 

If you will forgive a personal note, I heat my own horne with oil and my oil 

bill, last year, was higher than in any previous year, by some 15%,and on my own 

records I decreased my use by at least 25%. My heating experience with oil, parallels 

that of many of our customers with electric heat. I too am paying more and using less. 

Basically, we feel there are two questions: What do people requiring assistance 

actually use, as far as energy requirements are concerned and, what would satisfy their 

basic needs now and in the future? We do not have the information to answer either 

cf those questions. While the 150 kilowatt-hour per month criteria might be valid in 

an urban area where gas or oil is used for heating, it would clearly be insufficient in 

a rural area where gas is not available and electricity is used for heat. 

We have heard reference today both to the lifeline statute in California 

and the lifeline statute in the State of Maine, and we have heard glowing reports. 

I have not, unfortunately, had those same glowing reports as to the effect of those 
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statutes. Utility companies in the State of California are faced with as many as 

70 different rate classifications and as customers move from one area to another, 

keeping track of rate classifications and customers becomes a tremendous administra

tive problem. 

In our initial rate case, in 1972, we condensed our rate designs from 22 

to 4. Believe me, it has really simplified the problems of customer administration 

and the development of customer use information. 

In the State of Maine, the Legislature enacted a statute with a specific 

source of the money to be given as a surcharge on the bill. Many customers receiving 

their bills with this surcharge on it, have balked at paying these bills and are, 

indeed, sending in their checks with that surcharge deleted from it - just as some 

of our customers in the State have been deleting the fuel clause adjustment. So, 

I just don't believe that the ready acceptance that we heard refered to before is 

universal in either state. 

Now, I also noted in your call for the meeting that you are questioning or 

examining peak load pricing as well. I don't know if you are aware of it or not, but 

there is an investigation,within the United States, going on today. It is a nationwide 

study, sponsored by the Electric Power Research Institute, the Edison Electric Insti

tute, and the National Association of Regulated Utility Commissioners. This study 

should begin to produce answers over the next few years. The cost of metering for 

peak load pricing for residential service is very high and could very well eliminate 

any benefits that might be expected. I would hope that the Assembly would take no 

action before valid information can be made available for their use. 

These programs do not spring forth fully clothed and armored from someone's 

head, as Medusa's supposedly did in Greek mythology. It takes time to develop the 

data and if we are to come up with a true solution, we want to be sure we have good 

data. 

Earlier today I heard one of the witnesses refer to a hope that the reduction 

in a senior citizens bill could be as much as $10 a month and that they would hope 

that this would apply to the bills of customers using less than 500 kilowatt-hours. 

In our own company, this is about 60% of all of our residential customers and, just 

off the top of my head, a $10 reduction in a bill would amount to a reduction in 

Company revenue of some $18 million a year. If this were to be transferred to the 

rate which applies to our largest industrial and commercial customers, it would mean 

a 40% increase in their electric bills. Now, this is one that I am sure everyone 

of them would find very difficult to swallow. 

One of the schemes that Mr. Clarkson referred to, the 2¢ per kilowatt-hour 

up to 500 kilowatt-hours being a reduction which would result in some $100 million 

of transfer of revenue, for our Company - being much smaller than Public Service -

would come to a smaller amount of money - it is about $8 million - and to transfer that 

to our commercial and industrial customers would result in an increase in the annual 

bill for our four largest customers of about one-half mil!ion dollars a piece. These 

customers today are seriously examining their energy costs in this State and I submit 

to you that a $500 thousand increase in the annual bill would result in a tremendous 

exodus of jobs from our part of the State and particularly from the area around 

Bridgeton and Millville which, during the time of peak unemployment where the State 

average was 13%, Millville and Bridgton had 18% unemployment. We can't tolerate that kind 

of a problem. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Kelly, are you familiar with the California lifeline 
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rate design program? 

MR. KELLY: Yes, I am familiar with it in general, not in detail. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It says that Pacific Gas and Electric Company's 

residential customer bills for minimum amounts of energy will remain at current 

levels and the Utility's commercial and industrial customers' bills will increase 

an average of 25%. Traditionally, high-volume energy users have paid lower rates 

for energy than low-volume residential customers. In other words, I think they are 

going to take itfromthe residential customers, I think- the 25%. 

MR. KELLY: From the way I interpret what you have there, they are planning 

to increase the rates to the commercial and industrial customers, to increase their 

cost by 25%. They will reduce the rates to the residential customers as they have 

increased the rates to the commercial and industrial customers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Oh, I see, yes. 

MR. KELLY: That is the way I would interpret it. I don't know whether their 

industry is going to be too happy with the 25% increase in energy rate or not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Well, they have officially adopted the plan. 

MR. KELLY: Oh, yes. Yes, they have no choice. The thing that really dis

turbes me about the California problem is, they have different lifeline amounts, 

depending upon the appliances that the customer may own and depending upon the 

geographical area within the company's service territory that the customer may live 

in. This is what results in that at least 70 different classifications of rates that 

they have to keep track of. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Do you think that there is a difference in the needs 

of the people in South Jersey as compared to the people in North Jersey? 

MR. KELLY: I do believe there is a difference, particularly I would point out 

that many of the Public Service Electric and Gas Customers live in cities with small 

apartments or smaller houses and, therefore, their average customer residential use 

is about 4800 kilowatt-hours per year, whereas in our own territory the average 

customer use is up around -- well, let's see I guess I should revise that. If I 

consider residential customers without electric heat, I am in almost the same ball

park as Public Service Electric and Gas customers residential. It is the customers 

with electric heat who bring the overall average for residential customers of the 

Company up to 6,000 kilowatt-hours per year. 

We have almost 38,000, or !/6th of our customers, who have electric heat 

in their homes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Kelly, in your statement you say that rate design 

for social purposes opens a Pandora's Box which will create havoc. Will you explain 

that? 

MR. KELLY: Well, if you give rate relief to senior citizens, then you are 

going to have another group come in with a very good reason why they should have 

rate relief and they are going to push for legislation to help them. Then you will 

have another group come along and they will have just as valid a reason and before 

you are done, you will have 10 pressure groups, all of whom will want rate relief 

of one sort or another and have very good reasons why they should have it. So, if 

you give it to one, then you are going to find yourself faced with requests from 

many other groups with very good reasons why they should pay lower bills. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: As an official of a utility, do you feel that there is 

a need for a rate design program? 

MR. KELLY: I would prefer that it would not be a rate design program. I 

64 

• 



... 

can concede, very readily, that there are people who are suffering. All you have 
to do is look around, as you have done in your business which is far more in the 

public eye than mine. You know there are people who are suffering. I don't have 
as many contacts as you in that area, but I have to admit it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What may be an acceptable program? Do you know of 

any alternatives? 

MR. KELLY: The energy stamp program, which has been used in. Metropolitan 

Edison's territory. It has been tested up in --
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In Pennsylvania? 

MR. KELLY: Yes, in Pennsylvania. This would be an approach. The benefit, 

therefore, would be tied exactly to the problem that they are facing, namely the 

source of energy. There are rate design thoughts that might do the job. More 

specifically, we have considered the possibility of giving a reduction below 150 
kilowatt-hours of use, then letting the rate rise for the next 100 and then taking 

it all back in the next 50. So, when a customer got to 300 kilowatt-hours, they 

would be just where they are today. And the only relief that would be given would 

be to those customers who do not use over 250 kilowatt-hours in a month, but they 

would get all of the benefits as they got up over 150 kilowatt-hours a month. This 

would result in a rather nominal charge on energy use over 300 kilowatt-hours, or 

over 500 if you took that as your criterion to the residential class. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What will happen to those people who have all-electric 

homes in your territory? 

MR. KELLY: Well, we have data which says that our customers with electric 

heat average about 8,000 kilowatt-hours per year more than those who do not have 

electric heat. If you had a proposal which ended up with an additional requirement 

of 1¢ on that kind of use, you would have an $80 per year increase in their bill, 

which is about a 12% increase in their total annual bill, in order to pick up the 

assistance to these lower-use customers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In the State of Maine, you say in your statement, the 

Legislature enacted a statute requiring a lifeline rate with a definite stipulation 
as to the source of the money to make up the subsidy given the customers to be served. 

The customers receiving increased charges to cover this deficit object strenuously 

to paying the additional charge. You say some of the customers have deducted the 

surcharge from their bills and refuse to pay it. In other words, the program is 
not working in Maine. 

MR. KELLY: I would say there is resistance to it. It may be working but 
there is resistance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Do you have any idea of how extensive the resistance 
is to it? 

MR. KELLY: I just ran across this reference last week. I have had no chance 
to investigate that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Kelly. 

MR. KELLY: You are welcome. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Lois McLain. Who do you represent, Lois? 

L 0 I S Me L A I N: I have a consumers group in Monmouth County. 

Thank you, Mr. Esposito. Do you know the old Fabian system, how they wore 

the opposition down when they couldn't come up with the answer? You almost wore 

me down a few minutes ago. But, thank God, here I am up before the microphone, right? 
I made it. 
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I would like to make a few comments on Mr. McGlynn's testimony. Now, he 

kept leading you astray by inferring that the low income families would not be 

benefitted and the middle class and others would benefit. Now, I don't think we 

have to worry about the low income people: they are being taken care of by Welfare. 

It is the middle class that needs attention. I would like you to know that for a 

fact today. 

Another thing I would like to comment on, pertaining to his testimony, is, 

you know that Sam Rayburn's "wait a minute?" 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. 

MRS. McLAIN: I am certainly glad he is not on a medical staff in a hospital 

where I might have to go if I cut my arm and were bleeding to death because I would 

want a tourniquet applied immediately. That minute might mean the difference between 

life and death. 

That free lunch that he mentioned if the industries are getting very low 

rates, who is paying for that free lunch? I do believe it is you and it is me. 

I would like to comment on the summer-winter rate also. In New Jersey, we 

are penalized because our peak usage is in the summertime. Now, we have to pay higher 

electric rates from May until October but I don't know anybody who uses the air 

conditioner that much in May or in October. A lot of people are still heating their 

homes in May and in October. But, yet, we are paying more at that time. 

Number two, I happen to buy my electricity from Jersey Central Power and Light. 

They have a subsidiary over in Pennsylvania and in Pennsylvania it is the exact 

opposite as far as peak usage goes. They peak in the winter months. Yet, General 

Public Utilities, the parent of Jersey Central Power and Light, never applied to the 

Public Utilities Commission for a penalty rate in the winter in Pennsylvania. I 

questioned them. I talked to the Commissi·oners over there and they told me other 

utility companies had applied for the penalty rate but not GPU. When I questioned 

Shepard Bartnoff about that - who happens to be the President of Jersey Central 

Power and Light - he said, "It is funny you should mention that Mrs. McLain, because 

we were just talking about that the other day, but we didn't know how the Commissioners 

would take to it over in Pennsylvania." In other words, they must have an "in" in 

New Jersey and I question that remark which was made by Dr. Bartnoff and he will 

verify that he said it if you should desire to question him. 

I will now go on to my own testimony. The problems consumers face with 

constantly escalating electric rates could best be summed up by a Mother Goose 

Nursery rhyme: "Old Mother Hubbard went to the cupboard to get her poor dog a bone. 

When she got there the cupboard was bare and so her poor dog had none." Why is Old 

Mother Hubbard's cupboard bare today in New Jersey? Because every month a greater 

portion of the household income is going for utility bills. 

The utility companies should be very familiar with our problems because they 

had the same problem before we did. What did they do about it? They went to Washington 

and told Congress of their shortage of cash and the need to expand their business. 

What did Congress do? They granted the utility companies a new plan for paying their 

taxes. They could postpone the payment of taxes with no interest due in order to use 

the money to build new power plants and meet their other obligations. The benefit 

was supposed to flow through to the consumer but it doesn't seem to be working out 

that way. 

Facts don't lie. Here are copies - and I am going to give them to you for 

study - of pages from Moodys Investment Manual for the Spring and Summer of 1976. 
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I want to call your attention to the fact that Public Service Electric and Gas had a 

tax deferral of $67 million in the Spring edition of this year. Now, when I got 

the Summer edition, last week, in the library, that amount of tax deferral had grown 

to $107 million of our money that they did not have to tu+n in to Washington. 

The General Public Utility Corporation, which is the parent of Jersey Central 

Power and Light, reported figures of $63 million defered in the Spring edition and 

it had grown to $121 million taxes deferred in the Summer edition. 

With every rate increase there are tax increases which you pay in your electric 

bill. All of these taxes are not going into the Treasury of the Government. They 
' ' 

are going into the hands of the utility companies who are using the money to purchase 

new assets which eventually wind up in the rate base before the Public Utilities 

Commission, entitling them to another rate increase. The cycle is a bonanza to the 

utility companies and to emphasize the fact I draw your attention to identical state

ments made by General Public Utility and Public Service Electric and Gas which says: 

Recent rate increases have improved earnings per share. If you are a stockholder, 

I am sure this is good news, but how about the person who has no shares of stock? 

The problem consumers are faced with is that they are last in line when it comes to 

the present system of taxation and ratemaking. 

There is no one looking out for our best interest. The consumer has tried to 

effect favorable legislation in Trenton and understanding treatment before the Public 

Utilities Commission. The efforts of consumers have been in vain. It seems to me 

that the proper place to voice your complaints would be to Congress in Washington. 

Perhaps a redefining of the present tax structure would slow up rate increases or bring 

about the desired flow-through benefit for consumers. 

In the meantime, until someone decides what to do about the problem of ex

horbitant utility rates, I urge the adoption of the lifeline rate as a first-aid measure 

so that Mother Hubbard can at least be assured of a bone for her dog. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you. Is that Miss McLain? 

MS. McLAIN: Lois McLain. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Lois McLain - thank you. 

We will adjourn for about five minutes to give the stenographers a break. 

(Break) 

AFTER BREAK 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Joseph Carlin will be our next witness. We hope 

to recess at 5 o'clock sharp. We are going to conclude the hearing at 5 o'clock 

sharp, so please limit your statement to about one minute or so because we have 

about four other speakers. Thank you. 

J 0 S E P H C A R L I N: My name is Joseph Carlin. Mr. Chairman, I am just a 

consumer. I have been here for most of the day and I have listened to all of the 

statements made by the senior citizens, most of whom have left. 

Now, it seems to me that it is a sad situation when people take the time 

out and come to the capitol of the State of New Jersey to be heard on such a vital 

issue as a discount on their power bill. They should be given a little bit more 

consideration and be allowed to speak instead of having to listen to a bunch of 

mealy-mouthed experts from the power companies who are generally against what this 

hearing is about because it would mean more money out of their corporate pockets. 

Now, I just have one environmental fact that I would like to read. This 

was printed in 1972, but it is not in the public hands and it concerns the so-called 
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nuclear power plants in Oyster Creek, New Jersey. It says: Since New Jersey's 

Electric Power Authority has a report showing excessive amounts of neptunium 239 

being emitted from Oyster Creek and since half of the neptunium 239 decays into 

plutonium 239 in about three days, and since PU239 is known as the deadliest substance 

ever to be developed on this planet, three tablespoons of which is the maximum body 

burden of 700 thousand people, why aren't New Jersey residents warned of this? 

If lung cancer increases in New Jersey, will victims and their families be compensated 

for it? 

Now, this is one danger of nuclear power plants, of which Jersey Central seems 

to be building at a very fast rate. I, myself, would rather go back to living by 

candle light if I have to worry about the air I breathe giving me cancer of the lung. 

And, since the New Jersey Power Authority, the Atlantic Power Authority, and all 

these power authorities have no consideration for the consumer or the consumers' 

health, then we better go back to the good old days when we didn't have to worry about 

the air we breathe containing excessive amounts of radio activity. 

These guys that come here from the power companies that are no more than 

corporate puppets for the people they represent - and I don't know how many shares 

of stock they have - should be ashamed to even show their faces here. The 

power that comes from the peoples' hands should return to the peoples' hands and 

when it does, then we will have representatives that represent us, from the Governor, 

who sits down the hall in his office and never even comes to listen to this hearing, 

to the President of the United States. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Carlin. 

Mr. Greg Adkins, Consumer Specialist for the United Progress, Inc. 

G R E G A D K I N S: I have heard a lot of statistics being presented here - how 

much money lifeline is going to cost: how much it is going to cost the commercial 

users: and how much it is going to cost residents. I would like to add a kind of 

different type of statistic - how many people are suffering because of lack of 

lifeline, or a similar program. 

Over the past four months, I have received over 100 phone calls from indi

viduals in the Trenton area who have had their electric and/or gas services dis

connected because they could not keep up with their bills. 

The typical type of case is a woman who has a son who goes into convulsions 

from time to time and he has a medicine that requires refrigeration. In this particular 

case, electric service was terminated because of non-payment. This individual is a 

Welfare recipient, receiving $235 per month. Their rent was $185 per month. This 

doesn't leave much for utilities. 

I have had little success in trying to negotiate with the utility itself. 

Sometimes they will restore service for payment of one-half of the bill. But, the 

people, most times, wind up back in the same situation in a few months. 

I think the Legislature must act to give these people some form of relief 

and lifeline is a positive step towards this relief. 

According to officials at Public Service Electric and Gas Company in Trenton, 

their office services 120,000 accounts in the City of Trenton alone. Of these, 

approximately 80 to 100 are disconnected each day l~cause of non-payment. Since the 

"shut-off" men at Public Service Electric and Gas only perform this task four d.iys 

a week, we find that from 16,000 to 20,000 accounts are discontinued because of non

payment each year. These shut-offs come, most times, at the wrong time. We have had 

many cases of Welfare mothers, returning home from shopping trips, using food stamps, 

68 

• 



.. 

and as soon as the food is put away, electric service is discontinued. All the 

meat, or food, or whatever beverages she has, such as milk, spoils and she must wait 

another month before she can buy more. 

Often childrens' medicine has to be refrigerated. I have had. many reports 

of children falling down steps at night because there are no lights and candles 

present the threat of fire. 

One case I worked on, a family had gone without electricity or gas for two 

years. They managed to cook food on an old butane camping set. They burned kerosene 

lamps at night. They kept a cooler stocked with ice in the refrigerator and they had a 

two-week old baby at home. Today, they do not hpve gas or electric service because 

they cannot afford it. 

The Public Utilities Commissioner who spoke before - I believe it was Mr. 

McGlynn - mentioned something about "wait a minute" and I say, how long can we wait 

when each day we subject 80 more people in the City of Trenton alone to unnecessary 

suffering? 

This lifeline bill must be acted on immediately lest the New Jersey Legislature 

condemns 80 to 100 people each day to starving, suffering, and slow death. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mr. Adkins, before you leave, you made a statement about 

80 to 100 cases of the needy having their gas and electric service disconnected each 

day? 

MR. ADKINS: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: That is 2,400 per month. Can you document this infor

mation? You see, at the present time our Committee is considering two bills which 

deal with the disconnection of service by the utilities. We would be very interested 

in this. If you have such information, we would like to see the documentation on it. 

That is almost 29,000 per year, at 80 per day. 

MR. ADKINS: I have the figures. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I think your figures are a little too high. I refuse 

to believe that. 

MR. ADKINS: This is according to officials in the Collection Department at 

Public Service Electric and Gas, right down on East State Street in Trenton, New 

Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Get that information for me, Mr. McDonald. 

MR. ADKINS: If you would like the individual's name, I can give that to you 
too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Will you please furnish this information for the 
Committee. We are anxious to know. Thank you. 

Our next witness will be Ella Lawrence. 

E L L A L A W R E N C E: Mr. Chairman, I am Ella Lawrence - Mrs. Ella Lawrence -

the Chairman of Citizens Against Rate Increases from Jersey City, New Jersey. I 

want to express appreciation for being able to be a part of the consuming public 

and one of those representing the consuming public who has come here to be heard. 

I know someone whom I respect very highly and who always has this to say 

about any issue: Instead of saying there are two sides to the problem,this person 

says there are three sides to a problem - your side, my side, and the right side. 

Now, as I have sat through this hearing today, we have aired sides. Each 

person has told his story. The consensus of opinion is that we have a problem that 

needs to be dealt with and it needs to be dealt with effectively. 

I am here to tell the story about some electric and gas bills, which the 

young man from the PUC said no one had mentioned. I believe he was from the PUC. 
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I want to tell the story of some exorbitant gas bills but I also want to say first 

that we advocate the lifeline bill. Everyone had admitted there is a problem. No 

one quite knows what to do about it. We believe that the lifeline bill is the most 

equitable method to be used in offering relief to the consumer. 

We sympathize with the senior citizens. We are glad to see the senior 

citizens. I am here today because I was asked by a representative of the senior 

citizens to represent our organization here. We favor everything that they have 

asked for. 

There is something else that has come to my mind as I sat here today and that 

was that it seems as though the speakers from the utility companies intended to pit 

people against people. At least that is an acknowledgement that people matter because 

sometimes we believe that people have lost their proper perspective in the place of 

things. People are first; all other things should be for meeting the necessary 

needs of people as human beings. I think our utility companies, especially, have 

forgotten that. 

Our elderly people - if I might use the terminology I work with young 

people and they use very picturesque language. They have a way of getting to the 

point to express the meaning of what they are trying to say. So, I am going to 

use a phrase that I have heard them use - the older people have paid their dues 

on the farm. They have worked for 40 or 50 years. Whether they have money, whether 

they have two homes, whether they have a home at the shore - I notice that has been 

raised here - or whether any consumer has a home at the shore, I don't think is the 

issue here. 

Someone raised the point of, how would one feel to look at this person to 

see that he has basically the same rates; he is paying the same rate base that I 

am paying when he has two homes. I don't think that is the issue at all. I think 

that statement has been made over and over to intentionally pit people against 

people and cause us to take sides and develop, you might say, a little bit of envious

ness of each other. I want to reiterate that is not the issue. 

Everyone is suffering. America is celebrating its 200th birthday and the 

free enterprise system and the acquisitive spirit of people have caused America to 

be the great nation it is today. Should we penalize a person for having exercised 

this acquisitive spirit that he has? He has received his money. Every person who 

ends up having wealth, whether it be little or whether it be much, has somewhere along 

the way started out as Mr. John Q. Citizen. He managed to allocate his money and 

budget his money and put a little here and a little there and now when he gets to 

be of old age, a senior citizen, just because he has not spent it all and he has a 

little backlog, are we going to hold that against him? I don't think it is right 

that we should do that. So, this has annoyed me as it has come up, and up, and up 

today. I say, again, it is not an issue and I think we should strike it out because 

it is unrelated to the problem. 

The problem is, people are suffering. The issue is, people are suffering. 

Electric and gas bills have doubled and tripled. I will cite myself as an example. 

My bill was $343 for the January reading. I have a neighbor whose bill was $445. 

I have them here as evidence. These are just ordinary working people. I am an 

ordinary working woman. I am away from home. We keep our heat down. My husband 

is retired and he always reminds me, "We don't need a lot of heat; keep it down." 

Three hundred and forty three dollars. One of the basic laws of economics says--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Excuse me. What are you heating with for $343? 
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MRS. LAWRENCE: I don't know. I have a gas unit. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You have a gas range and you pay $343 for one year? 

MRS. LAWRENCE: For one month. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: For one month? 

MRS. LAWRENCE: One month and I have a neighbor here whose bill was $445. 

Would you like to see it? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Are you sure that isn't an error? You must do an 

awful lot of cooking. 

MRS. LAWRENCE: We have been in constant contact with the PUC and we have 

been in constant contact with the Public Advocate's office. We have had people 

to call and people to write. We began our organization because we were getting 

so many terrible complaints. 

We have senior citizens who come to us. One woman said - and she is only 

an example - "I receive $255 per month." Her husband passed away and she desired to 

keep the home. She said she changed her whole lifestyle, trying to conserve energy, 

not realizing the terrible bills were going to hit her. Instead of staying up late 

to watch the late show, she goes to bed every night at 9 o'clock. She gets up in 

the morning, follows her routine and she said, "Guess what my electric bill was? 

$255. There is no way," she said,"that I could use that amount of electric and gas." 

She said, "I am lucky." We are hard on the people who have been able to put a little 

money aside. She said, "If I didn't have a little money, what would I do? I have to 

go back now to get money to live. If I have to do this for many months, I will have 

to go on Welfare", she said. These are living examples. 

I had a man come to my house last night and he said that he is still struggling 

with a $900 carry-over. He received a $500 bill. He complained about it. He went 

and it was adjusted. Of course, he did not want to join our group because he felt 

that the Public Service had been nice to him. They cooperated and they made some 

reduction on this bill. But, the next month they turned around and discontinued 

his service. 

We had another young man come to us and say that he was not working. Only 

his wife was working. They lived in a two-family house. The owner had his unit 

downstairs. They had a heating unit. Every morning the wife went out to work and 

if he went out, he took the children because he was trying to get work. He took them 

to a sitter. The bill came in double - $500. He went to them and said, "I felt that 

I should not go and complain and ask for mercy." I quote. He said, "I was burning 

up because I knew there was no way we could have used that much electric and gas, so 

I went to them and explained that I had no job." He had been promised a job around 

Princeton, which he did get. But at that time he had no job. He said, "I want to 

them and explained that only my wife was working. We had to eat. We had to pay 

rent. We can't do it right but we let the owner know we want to do right and we 

have to share this dollar." He said that he gave them $100 and they said that they 

would work with him. And, now, when he got his job in Princeton, he had to have 

carfare, he had to commute. The next month, before he could draw a salary, he went 

to them and he gave the Public Service $75 and he said, without warning one day they 

came in and they had no electric and gas. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Mrs. Lawrence, we are trying to adjourn this at 

5 o'clock. 

MRS. LAWRENCE: All right. I will get on with the other things I wanted to 

talk about. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, but you know I said I would give you four to five 
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minutes. 

MRS. LAWRENCE: Four to five minutes? Could I just say one other thing, Mr. 

Esposito? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. I don't want to stop you. I am a little partial 

to you because you are from Jersey City. 

MRS. LAWRENCE: All right. We appreciate what you are doing too. I wanted 

to read that resolution but I don't have time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You will have ample opportunity. We are having another 

hearing at 595 Newark Avenue, in the Administration Building. I will make sure that 

I give you 10 minutes. 

MRS. LAWRENCE: All right. Public Service Electric and Gas got a 6% increase 

in March of last year. In June of last year it got a 6% increase. In November of 

last year it got an 18% increase. And, again, this year they were attempting to 

take we have never been told how much, 24% or 26%. We don't know how much. 

Now, how in the name of God can people live? How can you pay your rent? 

How can you pay? I notice that the utilities representatives here talk about paying 

taxes. Do they forget that we have to pay taxes? We have to pay income taxes. We 

have to pay water bills. We have to pay real estate taxes. We can't turn our whole 

dollar over to Public Service. One of the basic laws of economics says that a person 

should not spend any more for one bill than he can earn in one week. And your rent 

or your mortgage should be the highest bill to pay each month and here people have to 

decide-- people aren't even able to pay their mortgage and rent when they pay their 

Public Service bills. 

So, we are asking -- I want to say, again, and I will break it right here-

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Ella, will you please? 

MRS. LAWRENCE: We advocate the lifeline bill because we feel it is the only 

equitable method in trying to come up with a solution to the problem of the suffering 

of the people. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Ella. 

Claire Schiff is our next speaker. 

CLAIRE S C H I F F: My name is Claire Schiff. I am President of Keys to 

Education for Environment Protection in Summet, New Jersey. I want to thank you for 

the opportunity to testify today and I want to thank you and your Committee for intro

ducing lifeline legislation and for considering this. 

My interest in utility rates started a few years back. As an environmentalist 

I was concerned about the expansion of power generation and the effect that it had 

on air pollution. I looked into the reasons for this expansion and I discovered that 

the rate structure of the utilities was, what you would call, a promotional rate 

structure: that it encouraged large consumption. The larger user got a break. 

It seemed a very simple thing to solve. There were many economists who were 

testifying in Washington before committees that there should be an inverted rate 

structure, a flat rate structure, and apparently this is the way that is eventually 

going to go. The tactical problem of how to do it and how soon to do it seems to be 

what is facing the PUC. 

Now, I believe that the regulatory commissions have a primary responsibility 

to the utilities they regulate. They have to assure that these utilities are financially 

sound: that they will not go under: and that they will deliver service. So, there 

.i.s inherently a conflict of interest in the PUC. They really cannot recommend some

thing when they are not sure how it will affect the utility as far as its financial 
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situation is concerned. 
Because of this inhibition, it seems to me that they have been loath to 

implement the rate reform which is really indicated. Now, I just want to mention 
I think we ought to thank the Arabs for their boycott in 1974. It sort of telescoped 

in the space of one-half year everything that was bound to occur over a longer period 

of time - the sudden scarcity of fuel~ the sudden jump in rates~ and then the reaction 

on the part of utilities to demand a fuel adjustment clause. In addition, when Con 

Edision's sales volume lowered, they came asking for a rate increase because they 

were not getting enough revenue. 

I have a paper here that I would like to leave with you. The title of it is, 

"A Guide to the Perplexed Utility Rate Payer" or "To Build or Not to Build." You 

will notice that on the last page I have three different cases - one,when plant 

capacity and customer demand are equal~ the second, when plant capacity i's less than 

customer demand~ and, last, when plant capacity exceeds customer demand. This, 
as I said, gives three different circumstances - when customer demand and plant 

capacity are not equal and when they are equal and when one is less than the other. 
In all these cases, the rates go up. In the first case, when you have equal plant 

capacity and equal customer demand, it has been traditional that the utilities try 
to increase sales through advertising, through promotional offers of cheaper dis

counts on appliances with all-electric homes, etc. As a matter of fact, I was very 

surprised to learn from a neighbor on my block, who has an oil furnace, that she 

was called by Public Service and was offered to have her home converted to gas heat. 

Now, I thought they were under restriction at this time, to not take on any new gas 

customers. So, this is a very interesting development. But, it is in line with the 

t:radi tion of expanding. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Ms. Schiff, I don't want to interrupt you but we are 

pressed for time. We are supposed to adjourn at 5 o'clock. 
MS. SCHIFF: Well, I don't know how long I have talked. I think it is about 

one minute or so. Can I just talk? I don't. have a lot to say. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We have one more speaker. 

MB. SCHIFF: I am the last speaker, I believe. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: No, you are not. 

MS. SCHIFF: No? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We have one more·. 
MS. SCHIFF: Well, can I -- I think I have just spoken one minute. I don't 

have that much to say. 

ASSFMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You see, I think in the future, if you wish to testify 
or speak at a hearing, you should contact our staff man. Did you contact him? 

MS. SCHIFF: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: He never received a letter. 

MS. SCHIFF: I did send a letter. I did request to appear on July 27th. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I know that you have valuable testimony to give to 

the Committee, but I don't think--

MS. SCHIFF: Well, I don't think anyone bas testified to what I am saying 

right now. And this is what I think is important to get on the record. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes, but you have an opportunity to get it on the 

record at another hearing. 

MS. SCHIFF: Pardon me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You have an opportunity to get it on the record at 

another hearing in Jersey City. 
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MS. SCHIFF: Well, I am here now. I came all the way from Summit. If you 

will give me another minute, I can get across what I have to say. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Proceed. 

MS. SCHIFF: The reason I am in favor of lifeline rates, as opposed to special 

rates for senior citizens, or utility stamps, or some other method, is because it 

satisfies both the economic need as well as the environmental need. I belive lifeline 

begins to change the promotional rate structure and this is where the State ought to 

be headed. I believe that the legislators here are completely right to undertake this 

bill and I hope you will vote for it and pass it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: You know, I have an explanation. It breaks my heart 

to treat you this way because I feel you have sacrificed yourself to come down here 

to testify. You intentions were very good and what you are saying to us is valuable 

testimony. If I have inconvenienced you, I am sorry. We will have to blame it on 

circumstances. 

MS. SCHIFF: Well, I had a few more things I wanted to say but if you promise 

to read my paper, I think you will understand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: We are going to read your paper. We are going to put 

it into the record. 

MS. SCHIFF: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Magnus Nelson. Mr. Nelson, we don't have too much 

time because we are supposed to adjourn at 5 o'clock. We are now well past 5. 

M A G N U S N E L S 0 N: This is the statement of the Communist Party of New Jersey 

whose address is Box--

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Do you have a written statement? 

MR. NELSON: Yes, I have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Would it be easier for you to give us the written 

statement? We will insert it in the record and it will be part of the transcript. 

MR. NELSON: I would like to read it. I can read quite quickly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Go ahead and read it. 

MR. NELSON: All right. My name is Magnus Nelson. I live in Englewood, 

New Jersey at 216 Liberty Road. 

The Communist Party of New Jersey fully supports the proposal for a lifeline 

service in the State of New Jersey. 

The private "public" utilities have been gouging working pe9ple and retired 

workers for a long time now. Not satisfied with automatic increases, PSE&G is now 

asking for the largest increase in its history. All of the utilities have followed 

a policy of discrimination against small users by charging them the highest rates -

5.9¢ per kilowatt-hour - and encouraging the indiscriminate use by large industrial 

and commercial users - 1.3¢ per kilowatt-hour. This indiscriminate use has created 

the need for more expansion which the utilities then want working people to pay for. 

The big corporations - Public Service, New Jersey Bell, etc. - say they must 

earn a higher rate of profit to attract new capital for expansion and maintenance of 

service. We say, "People before profits." If the corporations cannot provide essential 

services to people without gouging them then it is time that they be taken over by 

the State or Federal or local government so that people will come first. 

It has been the experience all over the United States that public ownership 

means substantially lower rates for consumers. This has been true for gas and 

electric rates and transit fares. 

We advocate public ownership with democratic control. This means control by 
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the users and the workers in those industries. Public ownership will put an end to 

the arrogance of PSE&G, to the vicious spiral of inflation and the continual assault 

on the health and lives of a large sector of our community. 
While we advocate public ownership as the only real solution, we support the 

lifeline concept as an interim measure until this can be achieved. 

It has been reported that members of this committee favor the introduction of 

relief from the corporate greed of the utilities by instituting a stamp program similar 

to the Federal Food Stamp program. It is a well known fact that the Federal Food 

Stamp program is but a source of extra profits for the food monopolies, that the majority 

of those who need the programs are not getting help. If such a program were established 

it would mean the money would have to be raised from somewhere. One need only look 

at the sorry record of our State Legislature to know that they would pass another tax 

on the poor and working people of this State to pay for the stamp program. Then, there 

is the question of establishing a whole new bureaucracy to administer the program and 

that is more cost to the taxpayers. Even without the onerous income tax this Legis

lature just adopted, the poor and the working people of this state pay over 80% of 
all taxes in the state. By September lst, when the new tax program starts, their burden 

will become crushing. Obviously, a stamp program is not the answer - it would be just 

another bureaucratic boondoggle. 

What do the people of New Jersey want from this committee and the State Legis

lature? One, all utility rate increases be barred. Two, immediate passage of Assembly 

Bill 1830 and Senate Bill 1447, to establish non-discriminatory rates between all resi

dential and industrial users. Three, immediate steps be taken to institute a feasi

bility study to determine the conditions under which all the public utilities can be 

taken over by the State and operated on behalf of the people. It is a proven fact that 

those utilities which are owned and run by the people provide electricity at up to 

40% lower rates than do privately owned utilities serving the same customers. We 

need only look at examples in our own state of New Jersey - at the Sussex County 

cooperative or the City of Vineland. 

Two hundred years ago, this Republic was founded by the sacrifices of the working 

people who protested the Stamp Act and other taxes imposed by King George -- "No 

taxation without representation," they demanded. 

Today, the people, in New Jersey and indeed throughout the country, are being 

taxed into austerity, poverty and bankruptcy through taxation by misrepresentation. 
The members of this committee and the whole State Legislature are well aware of the 
anger of the people resulting from the ever mounting tax burden you keep imposing. 

Legislative consent to gouging price increases by public utilities is but another form 
of taxation through misrepresentation. This committee can help restore some confi

dence of the people in the Legislature by standing forthright against any further 
utility price increases and taking all steps necessary to take over the monopolies 

and lower prices. 

Much of the information on which that statement is based comes from documents. 

One is from the Environmental Action Foundation, with headquarters in Washington, D.C. 

Another is from the American Power Association, also from Washington, D.C. I am sure 

the committee must be aware of these documents that will substantiate what we have 

been saying here. 

In closing I would like to make this remark: Recently in Westchester there 

was quite an upsurge about the electric bills up there and it was brought out that 

Plattsburg, which owns their utility, or the distribution system - whatever it is 

For the $40 that the Westchester resident pays for a given amount of electricity, 
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they pay $5 for it up in Plattsburg. I think that is very significant. I think the 

ultimate solution has to be public ownership. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Nelson. At this time I would like to 

thank Virginia Floyd and Terry Doll for their patience and diligence under these 

trying conditions in recording the testimony of today's hearing. 

I also, at this time, would like to thank Assemblyman John Dennis's assistant 

and aide, Emily Cregg. Thank you. 

The public hearing will adjourn until Tu<~sday, August 24th at the Administration 

Building, 595 Newark Avenue, Jersey City at 10:00 A.M. Thank you. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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POSITION PAPER ON "LIFELINE RATES" 

Good morning Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I am George Clarkson, General Manager - Rates, speak

ing for Public Service Electric and Gas Company. On 

behalf of the Company I wish to thank you for inviting 

us to participate today in a discussion of this very 

timely subject of "Lifeline Rate" application. 

PSE&G is very aware of, and very -sympathic towards the 

plight of the poor and needy rate payer in its territory. 

As such, the Company stands ready to cooperate in any 

solutions and to provide any information available to 

it on its residential customers in order to arrive at 

a meaningful and beneficial resoluti~n of this very 

difficult social problem. 

Since June of 1975,- PSE&G has been actively involved 

in studying the question of "Lifeline Rates" and has 

supplied data to the Board of Public Utility Commissioners 

in Docket No. 757-735, "In the Matter of Rate Discounts 

For Senior Citizens and Other Needy," and in Docket No. 

7512-1257, "In the Matter of the Board's Investigation 

into the Feasibility of Lifeline Rates For Certain Gas 
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and Electric Utility Customers." Data has been 

supplied on minimum use of service, income level 

distribution of kilowatthour and therm usage, 

appliance ownership (saturation) by income level 

and kilowatthour and therm usage, and recommenda

tions regarding 'possible applicable "Lifeline" 

Tariffs. 

On the basis of this voluminous data and studies 

which have been done, PSE&G would state the following 

position on the concept of "Lifeline Rates:" 

It is the Company's understanding that "Lifeline Rates" 

as interpreted throughout the country today, are rates 

designed to establish lower bills to certain residential 

consumers for electricity, gas, telephone, water, or 

sewerage which are not related to cost. Further, these 

customers intended to be aided· by such rates are customers 

who are in an economic strata, such that they are unable 

to enjoy the benefits of certain minimum uses of the 

services enumerated above. These minimum uses are in

tended to cover amounts of those services as measured 

using the kilowatthour for electric, the therm for gas, 

the message unit for telephone, etc., as the Lifeline 

criteria. The reduction in monthly bills to these 
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customers will be made up so as to keep the utility 

whole by apportioning the deficit to the same or 

other classes of customers served by the utility. 

PSE&G's basic position is that the most equitable 

manner af achieving tbe above goal is to engage in 

some form of subsidy program, such as Energy Stamps, 

controlled by a division of the State or Federal 

Government. Nothing in our studies h.as come forth 

to change our opinion on this basic fact. On the 

contrary, our studies have clearly shown that using, 

in the case of PSE&G, the kilowatt~our or the therm 

consumption pattern of energy as a yardstick for 

establishing "Lifeline Rates" is clearly inequitable. 

It does not totally benefit those customers that are 

most needy and, in fact, will benefit many customers 

for whom such reduction is unwarranted. 

Responses from sample electric customers in· PSE&G 

territory clearly indicate the problem. (See attached 

Exhibit PS-5) In the customer group with annual.income 

of $5,000 or less, 9~~ of these customers use over 500 

kilowatthours per month. Conversely, in the customer 

group with an annual income of over $22,000, 34~ of 

these customers use 500 kilowatthours or less in each 
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month. ~tatistics like this show, therefore, that the 

establishment of lower rates at some arbitrary kilowatt-

hour cut off, for instance, would benefit a large number 

of customers in the upper income strata, while at the 

same time having a deleterious effect on a small group 

of low income customers. We have also discovered in 

analyzing the appliance and kilowatthour use data of 

customers with annual income of $5,000 or less, that 

these customers have a mixture of all types of energy 

using electric appliances - not just limited to what 

are normally considered minimum need appliances. (See 

attached Exhibit PS-6) For instance, 32~ of these 

customers have one room air conditioner in the living 

room, and 22~ have one room air conditioner in the bed-

room.~arly 60~ have some form of black and white 

television, and 46~ have color. Many of these customers 

(16~) indicated the ownership of frost free refrigerator 

freezers.~ 

The Company submits on the basis of these and similar 

statistics presently available, that the establishment 

of an energy measuring criteria cannot properly differ-

entiate a social phenomena. Clearly, each of our 

customers in whatever income strata places a different 

value upon items needed for their own life style~Food, 
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clothing, or the benefits of electricity or gas appliance 

convenience apparently are different for all customers 

across the use and in~ome spectrum. The energy measure-

ment device, therefore, does not address itself to the 

critical problem in this area - the identification of 

people who are in need of help by some economic or age 

criteria. 

Another point should be made regarding the problems of 

establishing energy measurement as a uniform criteria. 

All utilities do not have the same mix of customers, nor 

the same average use for residential customers as a whole. 

Electric residential customers·without electric heating 

in PSE&G territory during 1975 used 5,178 kilowatthours-

·,~ an average of only 432 kilowatthours per month. 

~'interesting to note that, coupled. with this use 

It is 

in 1975 

220,000, or 17~ of residential customers used 150 kilo

watthours or less per month; 576,000, or 44i used 300 

kilowatthours or less per month; and 933,000 or 72~ 

used 500 kilowatthours or less per month. 

On the gas side of the business, the residential customer 

without heating in 1975 used only 267 therms, or approxi-

mately 22 therms per month. These statistics indicate 

the very low use by average residential electric and gas 

customers in PSE&G territory. 
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The utility does not have a means of accurately identify-

ing the economic or social make-up of its customers. A 

customer takes service at an address for which the meter 

is read, a bill is computed and rendered, payment is re-

ceived, and records of payment kept. The number of 

people in the household, the number of wage earners, 

the number, if any, of senior citizens living at that 

address, the total family income, etc., all are items 

which are not on file for the 1.3 million electric. or 

1.1 million gas residential customers of PSE&G. Even 

if such data were supplied to the utility, the utility 

would still have to translate this into se~vice address 
\ 

and customer matchups. This. we submit is a tremendous 

job, what with the large number of changes occurring 

annually in our service territory. We submit, instead, 

that an arm of the government with access to such things 

as income tax returns, Social Security payments, welfare 

benefits, etc. would be at least able to provide and keep 

track of information of this type. Under a subsidy plan 

customers coul~ ~eceive benefits on the strength of social 

data available today. 

The application of "Lifeline Rates" assumes that the 

recipient of the low use benefit is an individual customer 

of the utility. This is not entirely true. In PSE&G 

territory. for instance. there are thousands of people 
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living in low income apartments which are master-

metered- that is. a single meter whose bills are 

paid by a landlord or agency measures the entire 

service of the building. The cost of the utility 

service is then included in the rental or lease 

arrangement with the landlord or agency. "Life-

line" rate design does not attack this problem. 

Here again, the utility would be even more in the 

dark regarding the social or economic qualifications 

of these once removed customers. 

conclusion, may I make a positive recommendation 

in this area. I would recommend that the State set 

up an administrative procedure in an existing Agency 

whereby senior citizens over the age of 62. andlor 

poor and needy with $s~ooo or less of annual income, 

determined by some reportable criteria, may be 

positively identified. For instance, a form, similar 

to that used in the State of Maine, could be made 

available to citizens meeting the above criteria, 

such that they may voluntarily certify that they fall 

into these categories. (See attached Form) A program 

of taxation (with some exclusionary vehicle for qualify-

ing citizens) could be adopted by the Legislature so 

that each of the above identified individuals may receive 
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some form of subsidy payment from the administrative 

Agency. The subsi~ would be specifically identified 

as an energy payment subsidy for use as a credit 

toward the cost of their energy use, be it electric, 

gas, oil or coal. 

~uch is made today of the value of tying "Lifeline 

Rates" with the need to conserve energy or valuable 

natural resources. The assumption is that people 

who are not poor or not senior citizens, use a lot 

of energy, and, therefore, should be made to conserve. 

Yet, the most critical areas of energy use are those 

which provide services to all of our citizens for 

heating and hot water~ither by coal, oil, gas or 

electricity. The rich and the young as well as the 

old and the poor need these basic services. Why then, 

should a pricing burden be placed on the one group in 

the guise of forcing conservation, when all of these 

social groups require the same degree of bodily comfort. 

I would submit to you that conservation should not be 

related to the theory of "Lifeline" because the need 

~or basic energy is common to all citizens~ 
\ 

To establish a benefit such as reduced utility bills 

for certain groups, and charge others to support them 

through a utility pricing structure, is in my view, 

the wrong approach to the problem. 

Thank you very much for your attention. 
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Exhibit PS - 5 
Docket Ko. 7512-1257 
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121~ Beaidential AEEliance Saturation Stu4z 
total Ele9tr1c Customers b7 I·ncome Level and Averase 

Month17 Eilovatthour Use - ~elve Month ·Period 

:· ·•· . 
• 

Percent gt Customers 

$5,001. • 9,001. $15,001 
E11owatthour t1» to to to to Over 

Use t~ 1 ooo t2z000 !1~ 1 000 , !22 2000. i22 1000 

o - 4o 1.3 1.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 
41 - 70 3-5. 1.7 1.1· o.6 0.2 
71 - 100 7.0 3., 1.8 0.8 0.7 

101 - 200 29.7 20. 13.0': 7.3 3.6 
201 - 300 24.1 21.9' 16.4 12e3i 7.3 
301 - 400· '16.2 18.9 18.3 .. 14.7 U.1 
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APPLICATION FOR MAINE tlf1 
ELECTRIC LIFELINE SERVICE ,;;.:'!Ef# 

YOUR NAME (first, middle initial, last) 

CURRENT HOME ADDRESS (number, street, apartment number) 

CITY OR TOWN, ZIP CODe 

MAILING ADDRESS (if same, write "same") 

DATE Of BIRTH (month, ay, year) TOTAL PERSONS IN 
HOUSEHOLD 

~~~7rr0.0~~~~~----~~~--~ 
DID YOU LIVE 183 DAYS {six months) OR NOW ......... . 
MORE IN MAINE LAST YEAR? YES 0 NO 0 LAST YEAR ......... . 

The Lifeline Electrical Service De-monstration Program will be oper· 
a~ed December 1, 1975 to ,December 1, 1976 starting with the first 
monthly biiling cycle for the applicant following receipt of application. 

fO~ INFORMATION OR ASSISTANCE CALL TOLl FREE 1-800452-4617, 
OR THE LOCAL DESIGNATED LIFELINE AGENCY IN YOUR COMMUNITY. 

As provided by lew, the Meine Public Utilities Commission estob
lbhed the Lifeline electrical rate of 3 cents per kilowatt hour up to 500 
kilowatt hours in any month for citizens 62 and over who live in the 
following municipalities only: . 
BANGOR, CARIBOU, ELLSWORTH, FORT KENT, PORTLAND, ROCKLAND 

Send your completed application to your local designated Lifeline 
Ac~n~y o:o• d!•e~•J~ ~~ U~di~~ .. St~~~ ~f ~.~:;!.,~, t\t-l!JY!Itg1 ~'"-';!'! ... l}d~~~-

YOUR NAME (first, middle initial, last) 

CURRSNT HOMS ADDRESS (number, street, apartment number) 

CITY OR TOWN, ZIP CODE 

MAI!.ING ADDRESS (if same, write "same'~) 

NAME OF PERSON PRESENTLY BILLED FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE IN YOUR' 
HOME (if same, write "same") 

MAILING ADDRESS Or PERSON PRESENTLY Bll.LEO fOR ELECTRIC 
SERVIC.i: IN YOUR HOME {if same, write "same") 1 

ClECTxlC COMPANY ACCOUNT NUMBER (if available) 

(see other side) 
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., 

DETERMINATION OF INCOME QUALIFICATION FOR LIFELINE 
(THE INFORMATION BELOW MUST BE FULi.:f PROVIDED) 

REPORTING YEAR: 19 ...... Annual Annual Total 
(last calender year) Amount Amount Household 
TYPE OF INCOME Received by Received by Income 

Applicant others in (A plus B)$ 
(A)$ household 

(B)$ 
1. Salaries, wages and 

earnings 
2. Interest and Dividends 

3. Social Security and/or SSI 

4. Other pension ar anl'luity 

5. Other Income 

TOTAL INCOME 

OTHER INCOME THAT MUST BE INCLUDED 
Capital gains, alimony, support money 
Strike benefits, taxable and non-taxable 

WHERE TO INCLUDE 

Railroad Retirement and Veterans Disability 
State Unemployment Insurance 
Non-taxable interest from federal government 
Workman's compensation and "loss of time" insurance 
Cash public assistance and relief 

TYPE OF INCOME NOT TO BE INCLUDED AS INCOME 
• 

1. Gifts from non-governmental sources. 
2. Food Stamps. 

5 
5 
4 
5 
2 
5 
5 

~. C)th~r r~li~F !r !dn~ !h~•J!I~hold cbje~t5 c~~., :;::1~ inc!udl~~ ~=!h 
1 or m.oney) supplied by a government. 

4. Refunds under the Elderly Householders Tax and Rent Refund 
program. 

FOR SINGLE MeMBER HOUSEHOLDS TOTAL LIMIT IS $4,500. FOR 
TWO OR MORE MEMBER HOUSEHOLDS TOTAL INCOME LIMIT 
IS $5,000. 

Under penalty of periury, I declare that I have examined this appli· 
cation and to the best of my knowledge. and belief, it is true, correct 
and complete. 

APPLICATION MUST BE SIGNED 

Signature of Applicant 

Signature of preparer if other than applicant 
based on all information of which he or she has any 
knowledge. 

Date 

Date. 
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IN THE MATTER OF THE BOARD'S INVESTIGATION 
INTO THE FEASIBILITY OF "LIFELINE" RATES 

FOR CERTAIN GAS AND ELECTRIC UTILITY CUSTOMERS 
DOCKET NO. 7512-1257 

SWORN DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 
GEORGE CLARKSON 

GENERAL MANAGER-RATES 
PUBLIC SERVICE ELECTRIC AND GAS COMPANY 

JANUARY 19, 1976 
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1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

a. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

.. 13 • 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE CLARKSON 

GENERAL MANAGER - RATES 

Q. Will you please state your full name and address? 

A. George Clarkson, 48 Wellington Road, Livingston, New Jersey. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. Public Service Electric and Gas Company, 80 Park Place, 

Newark, New Jersey 

Q. In what capacity? 

A. I am General Manager - Rates. 

Q. Will you please state your qualifications for the record? 

A. I have been General Manager - Rates for Public Service 

since 1971. I am a graduate of Stevens Institute of 

Technology, having received the degree of Mechanical 

Engineer in 1950 and hold a degree of Master of Science 

from the same school received in 1959. 

I have testified before this Board on numerious 

occasions, specifically in regard to Rate Increase Petitions 

and Rate Design since 1970. 

I recently presented testimony In The Matter of Rate 

Discounts ~or Senior Citizens and Other Needy, Docket No. 

757-735. 

Q. What is the purpose of your testimony in this Proceeding? 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to attempt to respond to 

the statements of the Board in the Notice of Hearing 

dated December 4, 1975, which instituted Hearings in this 

particular Docket. 

In particular, the Board ordered utilities to 

17x 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. Q. 

5. 

6. 

7. A. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. Q. 

19. 

20. A. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

2 

"develop and produce appropriate testimony, feasibility 

studies and programs with respect to the subject matter 

of these hearings." 

Do you believe that the testimony and exhibits presented 

by you in Docket No. 757-735 is germane to the Board's 

request herein? 

Yes, ~ do. I hereby adopt my testimony in Docket No. 757~735 

wherein, on November 17, 1975, Tr. 21, I stated: 

"The recommendation of Public Service E & G is that 

an energy stamp program or some form of voucher program 

administered by some governmental agency who most properly 

has a handle on the identification of people defined as 

poor, needy or senior citizen would be the proper vehicle 

for handling the problem of rising costs of electrical 

energy for this group of individuals." 

In addition, I would also adopt the seven Exhibits 

submitted by me in that Docket. 

Would you now address yourself to the question of 

feasibility, Mr. Clarkson? 

I believe that the thrust of this Docket as stated by 

the Board is to elicit information necessary to the 

investigation of providing rate relief for low use 

Electric and Gas utility customers in this State. The 

Board has stated, for example, that it intends to examine 

this concept generically. My understanding of the 

l8X 
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2. 

3. 

4. 

s. 

6. 

7. 

a. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

• 13 • 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

3 

definition of "generic" is that it is a concept relating 

to or characteristic of a whole group or class. As such, 

I construe the Board's Order to be one in which the 

Electric and Gas utilities are asked to provide information 

on this particular subject so that proper and informed 

decisions can be made as to the feasibility of implementing 

"lifeline" rates. 

Q. What are "lifeline" rates, Mr. Clarkson? 

A. The Board has specifically suggested in its Notice of 

Hearing that "a 'lifeline' rate is a low uniform charge 

for a certain minimum use of energy consumed by residential 

customers." 

Q. Will you please, then, address yourself to the problem 

within the framework as spelled out by the Board? 

A. Yes. There is no question that the introduction of 

lifeline rates is feasible. To say that it is not 

would deny the actions of the California Public Utilities 

Commission in its recent Orders mandating this type of 

rate structure. When I say feasible, I mean that, absent 

questions regarding the practicality or administrative 

propriety of producing such rate forms, there is no 

question in my mind that such rate forms can be developed 

and are capable of being done or carried out. 

Q. Will you please explain what you mean by rate forms? 

A. Yes. If you divorce yourself from any consideration 

19x 
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1. of the concepts of cost, discrimination or social 

2. engineering, as I view these factors, and limit yourself 

3. strictly to the question as to what proper areas would 

4. fall into a "lifeline'' concept and how best this concept 

5. could be mathematically produced, then I say that such 

6. rate forms can be constructed and, therefore, are "feasible." 

7. Q. 

8. 

9. A. 

10. 

Would you please address yourself now to some of the 

factors which you see emerging in this Docket? 

Yes. First of all, I believe we have to positively 

address ourselves in the case of each Electric or Gas 

11. utility to the concept of "certain minimum use of energy 

12. consumed by residential customers." This number will 

13. 

14. 

15. 

vary, depending upon the mix of customers and their 

appliance ownership and usage for each utility in the 

State. 

16. Turning first to Electric, it should be noted that 

17. Public Service is basically a Company in which very few 

18. electric appliances are present in its residential cus-

19. tomer mix. Our latest statistics, for instance, indicate 

20. that very few, if any, of the electric customers on our system 

21. have electric water heaters, and that only approximately 

22. 17~ of our electric customers have electric ranges. Therefore, 

23. a minimum use of electric service for our Electric cus-

24. tomers would indicate the absence of large kilowatthour 

25. use for basic cooking and water heat~ng. 

20x 
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1~ Q. Would you please indicate what you consider to be a 

2. minimum use for your Electric customers? 

3. A. Based upon certain average uses of electric appliances, 

4. coupled with my definition of basic appliances on our 

5. 

e. 
7 • 

system, I estimate that the minimum, or "lifeline" use 

for Electric customers in our territory is approximately 

150 kilowatthours per month. 

a. Q. How did you arrive at that conclusion, Mr. Clarkson? 

9. A. I previously testified in Docket No. 757~735, that 

10. miscellaneous lights and necessary appliances would 

11. produce an average annual use of 149 kilowatthours per 

12. month. I have since considered another appliance, but 

13. for purposes of my testimony here I have rounded this 

14. use to 150 kilowatthours. The derivation of this number 

15. appears in Exhibit PS - 1. The Typical Wattage Rating of 

16. specific appliances from which this data is derived 

17. appears on Exhibit PS - 2. 

18. Q. Why have you limited yourself to this combination of 

19. appliances, Mr. Clarkson? 

20. A. 

21. 

I recognize that what is necessary for one customer, 

might be totally inadequate for another customer. What 

22. is considered comfort, i.e., the need for air conditioning 

23. or heating for one customer, might not be construed the 

24. same for another customer. However, I have attempted 

25. here to pick out appliances that, in my judgment, form 

2lx 
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1. the nucleus for basic energy needs by an Electric customer. 

2. Q. Will you contrast this use, please, w~th the average 

3. annual kilowatthour use for all Rate Schedule RS 

4. customers in 1975? 

s. A. The average use per Rate Schedule RS residential customer 

6. in 1975 was 5132 kilowatthours, which amounts to approxi-

7. mately 428 average kilowatthours per month. 

8. Q. 

9. 

10. A. 

11. 

Is there any other data, Mr. Clarkson, which you would 

care to submit in support of your findings? 

Yes. I would like to submit Exhibit PS - 3, which is 

Rate Schedule RS - Residential Service, Analysis By 

12. Frequency Of Use, Regular Monthly Bills Only, for 

13. January to December 1975. This Exhibit gives the break-

14. down by number of customer bills and kilowatthours for 

15. the use during the billing period for the Year 1975. 

16. Average number of customer bills for customers using up 

~7. to and inc~uding ~50 ki~owatthours per month are derived 

18. by taking the tota~ number of customer bil~s for the 

19. twelve months in this b~ock frequency and dividing by 

20. twelve. Referring to Exhibit PS ~ 3, this number is 

21. 220,049 average monthly number of customer bills for 

22. customers using up to and including 150 kilowatthours 

23. per month. 

24. Q. What other data do you have, Mr. Clarkson, to support 

25. your contention that 150 kilowatthours per month is 

22x 
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1. within the context of low use electric customers as 

2. suggested by this Board? 

3. A. The Company has recently completed a Residential Appliance 

4. Saturation Survey for the Year 1975. Included in this 

5 • 

6. 

7. 

Survey, for the first time, was a question regarding 

Total Family Income. The results of this analysis may be 

seen on Exhibit PS - 4. This Exhibit indicates that, 

e. extrapolating the sample results to universe proportions 

9. to the total estimated average number of customers in 1975, 

10. customers who use service and have total family income up 

11. to $5,000, approximate 236,000. In my view, there would 

12. 

13 • 

14. 

15. Q. 

seem to be some degree of correlation between this number 

and the number of customers using up to and including 

150 kilowatthours per month. 

Do you have any other data to substantiate your findings? 

16. A. As an additional piece of information, Exhibit PS - 5 shows 

17. the Total Electric Customers By Income Level and Average 

18. Monthly Kilowatthour Use. This clearly indicates that 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. Q. 

the largest percentage of customers responding whose 

total family income is up to $5,000 fall within the Use 

block of 101 to 200 kilowatthours per month. 

Would you care to comment upon the saturation of appliances 

23. for customers within this economic strata? 

24. A. Yes. Exhibit PS - 6, consisting of four pages shows the 

25. 1975 appliance saturation by Kilowatthour Use Block for 

23x 
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1. Total Electric customers whose annual family income is 

2. up to $5,000. This Exhibit clearly indicates that there 

3. is a wide divergence of appliance ownership in kilowatthour 

4. use for customers in this income level, but, for the most 

5. part, definitely substantiates the choice of 150 kilowatt-

s. hours per month as a proper minimum use amount for purposes 

7. of this Hearing. I might add that additional data is 

8. available, if desired, for other income strata beyond $5,000. 

9. Q. Have you given any consideration, Mr. Clarkson, to residential 

10. heating customers? 

11. A. No. I feel that residential heating is a service which can 

12. be supplied by various forms of energy fuels. As such, 

13. it does not lend itself to a specific justification of the 

14. terms "minimum use of energy consumed." For instance, a 

15. minimum use residential customer with 150 kilowatthours per 

16. month as cited above would still have the problem of heating 

17. his home or apartment. Assuming such heat was not supplied 

18. by the landlord, such supply could come from oil, which is 

19. an unregulated commodity, or electricity or gas. To attempt 

20. to say that because of the conditions under which a customer 

21. chooses to perform a beating function on his premises 

22. indicates some future consideration in this area does not, 

23. it seems to me, take into consideration equity of fairness. 

24. To whom, for instance, should a residential heating service 

25. electric customer turn to ask for someone to pick up his 

24x 
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minimum heating service use? Should it be to other non

heating residential customers or even to industrial or 

commercial customers? I feel that for the aforementioned 

reasons, heating should be exempted from the consideration 

of "lifeline" rates. 

Q. Would you now turn your attention to the question of 

"minimum use of energy consumed for residential customers" 

for Gas? 

A. Yes. Similar to the analysis previously performed on electric 

residential customers, we may perform the same analysis on 

gas residential customers on Rate Schedule RSG. Here, however, 

we are dealing with a somewhat different combination of 

appliances. In the gas business all of the appliances, 

with the exception of outmoded gas refrigerators, can be 

considered major. These include ranges, automatic water 

heaters, and dryers. For purposes of minimum use, we 

have ruled out such modern conveniences as outdoor gas 

lighting and gas grills. Again, using my judgment, it 

would seem that a minimum use for residential gas customers 

would encompass the operation of only a gas range. Our 

1975 appliance saturation statistics indicate that approxi

mately 87~ of our gas customers have a gas range. Industry 

statistics and Public Service studies indicate that a gas 

range uses between 7 and 12 therms per month depending 

upon the number of automatic pilots, and number of people 

25x 
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1. in the household. 

2. Q. Mr. Clarkson, do you have any feeling about gas automatic 

3. water heaters and the possible inclusion of this use as 

4. part of a "minimum use" concept. 

s. A. It would appear that low-income gas customers in our 

6. service area to not have a very high saturation of 

7. automatic water heaters. Our 1975 appliance saturation 

8. results indicate that 52~ of these customers have 

9. automatic gas water heaters and the balance have other 

10. forms of individual water heaters or hot water is supplied 

11. by the landlord. It would appear to me, therefore, that, 

12. on balance, an equitable consideration for minimum use would 

13. not include water heating. However, for purposes of this 

14. Hearing and the Board's information, industry statistics 

15. and Public Service studies indicate that gas water heaters 

16. use about 20 to 30 therms per month depending upon the 

17. number of people in the household and number of hot water 

18. outlets. 

19. Q. Will you now summarize your findings regarding the minimum 

20. use of energy for residential electric and gas customers, 

21. ~r. Clarkson? 

22. A. Based upon an analysis of Public Service electric and gas 

23. customers coupled with the appliance saturation statistics 

24. and typical use of appliances, I would recommend that for 

25. PSE&G the Board consider adopting a m~nimum use of electricity 

26x 
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1. at a level of 150 kilowatthours per month and that it 

2. consider adopting a level of 9 therms per month for gas 

3. ranges. If considered, 26 therms per month can be used 

4. for gas water heaters. I further recommend that no 

5. parameter be established for minimum use consideration 

6. in the area of space heating in Public Service territory. 

7. Q. Would you now turn your attention, Mr. Clarkson, to the 

a. subject of rate design which would incorporate the afore-

9. mentioned minimum use definitions in some form of rate 

10. package that would develop "lifeline" rates to provide 

11. rate relief? 

12. A. Yes. Before we consider these levels. however. I wi$h 

13. to note that in my view. the distribution of dollars as 

14. between these Rate Schedules should be made up only from 

15 • 

16. 

other higher use customers in the residential rate class. 

I say this within the context of my understanding of this 

17. Board's Notice of Hearing. Consideration of cost of 

18. service, rate of return, proper rate design and other 

19. factors have been dismissed by me in attempting to respond 

20. to the Board's request as I understand it. 

21. Q. What do you mean by the fact that you have dismissed these 

22. factors, Mr. Clarkson? 

23. A. Public Service has recently finished a ease in Docket No. 

24. 744-335 where the Hearing Examiners' Report and Recommendation 

25. adopted by the Board clearly spoke in terms of the propriety 

27x 
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of moving to cost-based rates. It is my view that there 

is nothing cost based in the establishment of lifeline rate 

design. Neither, for that matter, would we attempt to 

seriously question the area of subsidization by other 

customers in the class ahd other customer classes in order 

to produce the revenue levels in the lifeline proposal. 

Instead, having opted for rates designed to produce relief 

for minimum use energy consumed by residential customers, 

I would assume that the Board would. order the Company to 

be made whole out of any revenue deficiency produced by 

the institution of such low rates. My only constraint, 

therefore, is to suggest that such revenue deficiency 

might more properly be made up by other residential 

customers. 

Will yo~ now please discuss the form of the Rate Schedule 

that you believe is most suited to the establishment of 

lifeline rates? 

I believe first of all that lifeline rates, if ordered, 

should be optional in character. Any customer should have 

the option of applying for and being billed at a Rate 

Schedule which produces a lower charge which includes at 

least the minimum use described previously. The advantage 

to both the Board and the utility is that it becomes un

necessary to determine any kind of qualification based 

upon demographic data other than pure energy use. 

28x 

• 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

.. 13 • 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

13 

There have been rate forms suggested throughout 

the country that talk in terms of indicating income 

levels or age levels as cut off points beyond which 

customers of the utility would qualify. This, I submit, 

would become an administrative nightmare. Therefore, 

I feel an optional rate has many advantages. 

Q. What other features in this Rate Schedule would you 

suggest, Mr. Clarkson? 

A. I would suggest that the Rate Schedule be established 

for a period of no less than one year and that it be filed 

as an inverted rate such that use much beyond the minimum 

use previously mentioned would result in higher bills. 

The reason for this latter restriction is to prevent 

customers from transferring to this Rate Schedule 

and then capriciously using additional kilowatthours or 

therms beyond the minimum use. 

The Rate Schedule then would become self-policing in 

that customers would have knowledge of the fact that if 

they much exceeded the minimum use, they would be paying 

much higher bills than if they had opted to stay on the 

specific electric or gas Rate Schedule they are presently 

on. 

Q. You have cited some of the conditions under which you would 

like to see lifeline Rate Schedules if they were ordered 

to be filed. Do you have any comments regarding the 

29x 
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implementation of such Rate Schedules as they impinge 

upon the Company's revenue? 

Yes. There are two major problems with developing lower 

rates for lower use and parenthetically higher rates for 

higher use - assuming the make-whole concept previously 

described. 

First there is the obvious question of the determination 

of the number of customers who would choose to take ad

vantage of the optional lifeline Rate Schedules. For 

purposes of planning,the utility would have no way of 

knowing how many customers would transfer and what revenue 

would be lost. Conversely, it would be unable to determine 

accurately what revenue gain should be adopted for higher 

use customers. Assumptions could be made that all cus

tomers up to the lifeline level would transfer to such a 

Rate Schedule, but many of these factors are unknown due 

to individual customer economics and the basic seasonality 

of customer use. 

Pacific Gas & Electric, for instance, in its filing 

in response to the California Public Utility Commissioners 

investigation in Case Number 9988, specifically suggested 

an ongoing study out into the future to determine what the 

effect of this transfer would be. 

What other problem do you see in this area? 

The second problem involves the question of the makeup 

30x 

• 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

a. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13 • 
• 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

2l. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

15 

of the revenue deficiency and what effect higher prices 

would have on residential sales. If these higher prices 

were imposed upon high-use customers, we would have, in 

effect, an inverted rate which would produce elasticity 

problems. What I mean by this is that the operation of 

elasticity would tend to reduce the Company's residential 

sales and, therefore, have an additional revenue erosion, 

probably resulting in the need for additional charges to 

make up the loss. 

Q. Would you now estimate, Mr. Clarkson, the possible savings 

for low-use customers as previously defined by you? 

A. Yes. Using adjustment charges in each for the month of 

January 1976, a 150 kilowatthour use customer will have 

a bill of $11.18, a 9 therm customer will have a bill of 

$5.08. Without specific rate design it would be difficult 

to estimate what reduction would accrue for customers 

who use these amounts. However, I would like to make 

some estimates for the Board's guidance assuming some 

reduction and flat rate charges. 

In Electric if a 1¢ reduction was given for each 

kilowatthour of minimum use, a savings of $1.50 would 

accrue. Further whole cent per kilowatthour reductions 

would effect savings in multiples of $1.50. 

In the case of Gas a 5¢ per therm reduction and 

flat charge would result in a savings of 45¢. Additional 

3lx 
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1. 5¢ increments would produce multiples of 45¢. 

2. Q. Mr. Clarkson, there is one subject which you have not 

3. covered. You have dealt only with customers of Public 

4. Service. Will you care to comment on residential 

5. customers in apartment buildings? 

6. A. Residential customers in apartment buildings in Public 

1. Service territory are either individually or master 

a. metered. Individually metered customers would fall into 

9. the type of treatment I have been speaking of. Master 

10. metered customers, however, would have the landlord 

11. billed at a large power service rate schedule. I have 

12. not investigated any way in which customers of this 

13. type could have the minimum use concept applied. It 

14. is difficult to determine how the landlord will pass 

15. along utility charges in leases. As such, it would 

16. seem to me that we are dealing outside the realm of 

17. master-metered apartments. Attempting to incorporate 

18. some form of reduction for these people would be very 

19. difficult. 

20. Q. Does this complete your testimony in this proceeding? 

21. A. It does. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

COUNTY OF ESSEX 

) 
: ss. 
) 

I, George Clarkson, being first duly sworn, do 

hereby depose and say that the foregoin~ constitutes my 

prepared testimony in this proceeding, that the answers to 

the questions therein stated are my answers to such questions 

and are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, 

information, and belief. 

I ask that the attached be considered as my sworn 

testimony in this proceeding. 

Sworn and subscribed to 

before me this 19th day 

ot January, 1976. 

(SEAL) 

) 

) 

e, 1979 
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Exhibit PS - 1 
Docket No. 7512-1257 

PUBLIC SERVICE ELECTRIC AND GAS COMPANY 
DERIVATION OF MINIMUM USE OF ELECTRIC ENERGY 

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS 

1 Refrigerator Single Door 
Manual Defrost 12 cu. ft. 

1 Television - Black and White 

1 Washer - Automatic 

2 Clocks @ 17 kWh 

1 Hand Iron 

1 Window Fan 

1 Radio - Solid State 

1 Toaster 

Miscellaneous Lights & Other Appliances 
@ 25 kWh per month 

Total 

Average per month 
(Total + 12) 

Rounded 

34x 

Typical kWh Use 
Per Year 

590 

400 

115 

:54 

150 

160 

20 

40 

:500 

1,809 

151 

150 -=-

• 
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!.'U'.!£.AJ• WATTM~~, TYI'tc~AJ._KIJ,~.!'_AT_TIIQ_!Il~- 1!!:.!'~_"-f::E_L<?.::!_E~lJr,A'rP.D AT 5. Of l'I·:R KILOW/\TTIIOUR 

Appliance 

Air Conditioner (Window) 
Under 8,000 BTU/ItR 

8 - 10,000 BTU/HR 
10 - 16,000 BTU/HR 
16 - 20,000 BTU/HR 
20 - 24,000 BTU/HR 

Bed Covering 
Broiler 
Can Opener 
Clock 
Clothea Dryer 
Coffee Maker 
Deep Fat Fryer 
Dehumidifier 
Diahwaaher With Heater 
Fan Attie 
Fan (Circulating) 
Fan (Furnace) 
Fan (Roll about) 
Fan Window 
Food Freezer 1 eu f't 
Food Freezer (Froatleaa 16 eu f't) 
Food Mixer 
Food Waste Disposer 
Fryine; Pan 
Grill (Sandwich) 
Hair Dryer 
Heat Lamp (Infrared) 
Heater (Radiant) 
Hnt. ~l~t.~ (Tvo Purner) 
Humidifier 
Iron (Hand) 
Oil Burner 
Radio (Tube-type) 
Radio Solid State 
Radio-Phonograph Tube-type 
Radio-Phonograph (Solid State) 
Range (1) 
Refrigerator Single Door 

(Manual Def'roat 12 eu f't) 
Refrigerator Single Door 

.Automatic Defrost 12 
e rigerator-Freezer Two outside 

doora completely f'roat free) 
14 eu f't 
19 eu f't 

Refrigerator-Freezer (Two outaide 
doors-only refrigerator frost tree) 

14 eu f't 
19 eu f't 

Roaater 
Sewine; Maehine 
Shaver 
Sun Lamp 
Televiaion (Blaek and White) 
Television (Color) 
Toaater 
Vaeuum Cleaner 
Wattle Iron 
Waaher (Automatie) 
Waaher (Non-automatic) 
Water Heater 2 00 W 2 

OF EL~:CTRIC: JIOU!:t:J!OJ,D ArrLIA~:!!!. 

Connected 
Load 

900 
1040 
2050 
2400 
3200 

200 
1400 

180 
2 

5000 
860 

1500 
250 

1 00 
375 

85 
300 
210 
200 
350 
450 
125 
450 

1200 
1150 

380 
250 

1300 
1250 

170 
1100 

260 
85 
20 

115 
60 

12000 

120(3) 

180 

300(3) 
430(3) 

270(3) 
390(3) 

1400 
75 
10 

300 
230 
300 

1100 
6oo 

1100 
500 
280 

2 00 
500 

Coat Per 
Hour at 5.0tl 

Per kWh 

4.50!1 
5.20 

10.25 
12.00 
16.00 
1.00 
7.00 
0.90 
0.01 

25.00 
4.30 
7.50 
1.25 
6. 0 
1. 

.43 
1.50 
1.05 
1.00 
1.75 
2.25 
0.63 
2.25 
6.00 
5-75 
1.90 
1.25 
6.50 
6.25 
0.85 
5.50 
1.30 
0.43 
0.10 
0.5 
0.30 

21 t1 a day 

o.6o 

0.90 

1.50 
2.15 

1.35 
1.95 
7.00 
0.38 
0.05 
1.50 
1.15 
1.50 
5.50 
3.00 
5.50 
2.50 
1.40 

Typical 
kWh Use 
Per Year 

!!!!! 

360 
435 
870 

1045 
1410 

150 
100 

1 
17 

1200 
110 
100 
350 

0 
270 

40 
480 
135 
160 

1225 
1800 

13 
30 

240 
4o 
17 
15 

150 
100 
l70 
150 
400 

85 
20 

115 
60 

1550 

590 

790 

1580 
2260 

830 
1195 

280 
10 

1 
15 

400 
540 

40 
48 
22 

115 
70 

4800 
5 00 

Coat 
Per Yen: 
at 5.0¢ 
Per kWh 
~-s_ 

$18.00 
21.75 
43.50 
52.25 
70.50 
7.50 
5.00 
0.05 
0.85 

6o.oo 
5.50 
5.00 

17.50 
1 • 0 
13.50 

2.00 
24.00 
6.75 
8.00 
1.25 

90.00 
0.65 
1.50 

12.00 
2.00 
0.85 
0.75 
7.50 
~-00 
u.;v 
7.50 

20.00 
4.25 
1.00 
5.75. 
3.00 

77.50 

29.50 

39.50 

79.00 
113.00 

41.50 
59.75 
14.00 
0.50 
0.05 
0.75 

20.00 
27.00 
2.00 
2.40 
1.10 
5.75 
3.50 

On thermostatieally-controlled appli3nees, the current ia automatically turned on and ott during operation 
of' the appliance. Thus the actual coat for each hour of operation will be somewhat lower than that ahown. 
(1) The average wattage ahown covers all surface units and the oven in operation at the same time. AetuallJ 
Iince all units and the oven are not freque~used at the same time, the average wattage will be lower than· 
that ahown. The coat ia figured on aasumed normal use and shown as a daily coat in the ease of' rangea only. 
(2) Operating costa not shown because of' the different rates under which service is available (WH, RS, RHS). 
(3) Average running watts. 

Revised September :?11, 1974 Void Sheet dated October 29, 1971 
Attached to Letter C:&M74-2-72 
D11tc<l r.eptemLer 2!), 1'17'• 



BLOCK NUMBER OF 
KILOWATT CUST0!1ER 

HOURS BILLS 

0 80,945 

2 
14,258 

4 
10,802 

6 9,488 

8 
8,419 

10 
10,455 

12 
7,510 

14 
7,949 

0-14 
149,826 

16 7,632 

18 7,506 

20 11,604 

0-20 176,568 

• 22 8,246 

24 9,156 

26 9,635 

28 ~.64' 

30 
15,177 

32 
11,476 

34 
12,630 

13,474 -
36 

38 13,686 

40 
21,784 

0-40 
301,477 . 

I 42 
16,122 

I 44 18 163 

I 46 19 264 
I 

48 I 19 215 

I so 31 347 I 
I 

.S1- 6o 134 240 

61- 70 16 

· UATR ltD - IU•::;111::: 'I'J /, T. :;i·:itVIGJo: 
ANALY~IS UY YR~!USNCY ur U5~ 

REGULAR HONTIII. Y DILLS ONLY 
MONTH OF JANUARY TO DECEMBER 1975 

BLOCK NU!·!DER OF 
KILOWATT KILOWATT CUSTOMER 

HOURS HOURS BILLS 

0 71- 80 192 us 
28,514 81- 90 210,615 

43,203 91- 100 250,439 

56,924 

67,347 0- "100 1,357,477 

104,545 
101- 150 

1,283,111 

90,118 
151- 200 

1,439,476 

111,28 
201- 250 1,40S 112 

5.01,937 251..; 300 1,410,980 

122 107 
o- 300 

. 
6,899,156: 

135 105 301- 400 2,429~812 

232 07li 401- 500 l 86.1 941 

501-
991,229 

600 1,332,376 

601- 700 906,392 

1B1,409 701- 800 604,337 

219,743 801- 900 401,763 

250,506 901- 1,000 277,504 

:no ,o56 

455,.309 
14,719,-281 0- 1,ooo 

367,228 1,001- 1,100 187,006 

429,416 1,101- 1,200 135 '991 

485,064 1,201- 1,300 98,764 

520,067 1,301- 1,400 
. 75,794 

871,355 1,401- 1, 500 59,627 

5,041,381 1,501- 1,600 46,572 

1,601- 1,700 36,616 

677,122 1,701- 1,SOO 29,855 

1,801-·1,900 24,.278 

1,901- 2,000 21,413 

2,001- 5,000 99,556 

1 5,001-10,000 2,021 

ovc:n-1o,ooo 253 

10 
TOTAL 15,537,027 

Exhibit PS - 3 
Docket No. 7512-1257 

KILOWATT 
HOURS 

14,679,126 

18,178,809 

24,219,039 

85,475,745 

163,09i,379 

255,457,191 

319,045.955 

391,442 527 

.1214, 512 '797 

852.667.844 

~0 877 .1..96 

732 221 862 

588,456.529 

45:?:2.729 ,01..4 
341,189,498 

263,691,622 

.. 
5,286,346,692· 

196,206,055 

156,405,764 

123,431,538 

102,339,506 

86,504,862 

72,206,384 

60,417,577 

52,265,871 

44,922,190 

41,835,549 

256,701,592 

12,,634,393 

5,397,720 

6,497,615,693 
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1975 Residential Appliance Saturation Study 
Respondents by Income Level 

Total Electric Area 

Total Respondents - Electric Area 

Total Family Income 

Up to $ 5,000 
$ 5,001 to $ 9,000 
$ 9,001 to $15,000 
$15,001 to $22,000 

Over $22,000 
No Response 

19,219 

12.8 
14.8 
23.7 
15.1 
12.1 
21.5. 

Total Respondents to Income Question - 15,095 

Up to $ 5,000 
$ 5,001 to $ 9,000 
$ 9,001 to $15,000 
$15,001 to $22,000 

Over $22,000 

Respondents 

2459 
2844 
4555 
2908 
2~29 

*Public Service Electric Area 

16.3 
18.8 
30.2 
19.3 
15.4 

100.0 

**Est. Average Number of Customers.- 1975 

*Estimated Number 
of 

Customers 

235,570 
271,700 
436,454 
278,926 
222,563 

1,445,213** 
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1975 Residential Appliance Saturation Study 
Total Electric Customers by Income Level and Average 

Monthly Kilowatthour Use - Twelve Month Period 

Percent of Customers 

$5,001 $ 9,001 $15,001 
Kilowatthour Up to to to to Over 

Use $5,000 $9,000 $15,000 $22,000 $22,000 

0 - 4o 1.3 1.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 
41 - 70 3. 5 . 1.7 1.1 0.6 0.2 
71 - 100 7.0 3.9 1.8 0.8 0.7 

101 - 200 29.7 20.4 13.0 7-3 3.6 
201 - 300 24.1 21.9 16.4 1~.3 7-3 
301 - 4oo 16.2 18.9 18.3 14.7 11.1 
401 - 500 8.7 12.1 16.8 14.8 10.8 
501 - 1,000 8.6 18.5 28.8 41.8 44.0 

Over 1,000 0.2 1.5 3.5 7.4 22.0 
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

I 

Estimated Average Number· of Customers 

0 - 40 3,062 2,989 . 1, 309 837 668 
41 - 70 8,245 4,619 4,801 1,674 445 
71 - 100 16,490 10,596 7,856 2,231 1,558 

101 - 200 69,965 55,427 56,739 20,361 8,012 
201 - 300 56,772 59,502 71,578 34,308 16,247 
301 - 4oo 38,162 51,351 79,872 41,002 24,704 
401 - 500 20,495 32,876 73,324 41,281 24,037 
501 - 1,000 20,259 50' 264 .· 125,699 116,591 97,928 

Over 1,000 22120 4~076 15~276 20~641 422264 
235,570 271,700 436,454 278,926 223,563 



:::.::!ter ~r Respondents 

F~r:ent of Total Respondents 

~~=ter 'f Pe~ple in Home: 
:r:e F"=!'S-:Jn 
:-"'·_j F.:rsons 
:r.r~e ?ers"Jns 
: ::~r :ersons 
?iYe Fers~ns 
~ :.x : r :·::;re 

:yie ~~ Ee~ting System: 
:~r:-:e:! ii'arm r..ir 
~:t ~ater or Steam 
:~1iYii:l~l !~~~ Heaters 
1:--.r:u€h tt~ Wall 
~eatin~ ~nd CoJling 

=ri~~i>~l ?uel Used for 
:-;"·=~ ::eatine;: 

-:.~ s 
:.:..-::~:ricit.y 

.:.1 
:Oe&~ ?urnished by Landlord 

:= :: :~ :-:~·-t :~rs : 
oJ :~s :=:~~ ~ea~ers 
0 ':ne c Tv:: 

T:::-.t?e .,r Mere 
:;: ~tal • 

Ele:tric Rcom Heaters 
:r.e 
.- ....... .. -
~Lree or :~?re 

':'<::Jtal * 
:il ~~<::Jm Reaters 

:ne 
rv.., 
Three or M~re 

Total * 

·~~mber <::Jf appliances per 100 residences, 

APPLIANCE SATID~A!ION BY KWHR - USE BLOCK 
TOTAL ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS 

ANNUAL IJICOME UP TO $5,000 

~ 

(This Tabulation Represents Percnnt of Customers Having the Appliance•) 

AVERAGE J40:fTHLY KILOWATTHOUR USE - TWELVE MONTHS PERIOD 
o-4o 41-70 71-100 101-200 201-~00 301-400 401-~00 501-1000 

32 87 171 731 592 398 214 2l.l. 

1.3 3.5 7.0 29.7 24.1 16.2 8.7 8.6 

62.5 70.1 64.3 43.0 25.0 16.8 11.7 11.9 
9.4 16.1 25.2 33.7 41.1 41.2 36.0 30.8 
9.4 6.9 3.5 11.8 16.2 21.4 23.8 22.3 
6.3 1.2 1.2 4.4 7.8 9.1 7.9 10.9 
6.3 .o 1.8 2.9 4.6 5.5 7.5 8.5 
6.3 5.6 2.9 2.7 4.7 3.5 11.7 14.2 

9.4 12.6 5.3 13.8 19.6 23.9 26.2 30.8 
56.3 66.7 71.4 68.3 66.6 65.3 62.2 54.0 
18.8 8.1 8.8 5.9 4.1 3.3 4.7 5.7 

.o 2.3 1.2 .4 1,0 1.0 2.8 2.4 

31.3 25.3 28.1 29.6 32.1 39.5 39.7 32.7 
.o .o .6 .3 .5 .5 .5 6.6 

31.3 39.1 41.5 41.5 49.2 46.5 44.9 54.0 
31.3 28.7 25.7 24.1 16.7 ll.8 13.6 5.2 

15.6 6.9 8.2 4.1 5.1 4.0 5.6 2.4 
3.1 .o 1.2 2,2 2.0 2.0 .o 1.9 

.o .o .o 1.0 .7 1.0 1.4 .o 
21.9 6.9 10.5 11.4 11.1 ll..1 9.8 6.2 

.o 1.2 6.4 4.5 4.7 4.5 5.6 8.5 

.o .o .o .3 .7 2.3 ·9 4.7 

.o .o .6 .7 .3 .o .o 1.0 

.o 1.2 8.2 7.1 7.1 9.0 7.5 20.9 

.o .o 1.2 1.2 .5 .5 1.9 .o 

.o .o .o .6 .2 .5 .o .o 

.o 1.2 .6 1.8 2.5 1.5 2.8 2.8 

.o 3.4 2.9 7.7 8.4 6.0 10.3 8.5 

.. 

Exhibit PS - E 
Doeket lo. 7512-1257 

Sheet 1 of 4 

Over 1000 Total 

23 2459 

·9 100,0 

4.4 31.4 
43.5 35.2 
13.0 15.6 
8.7 6.6 
4.4 4.5 

21.7 5.5 

13.0 18.7 
47.8 65.4 
26.1 5.5 

4.4 1.2 

17.4 32.6 
39.1 1.3 
43.5 45.3 

.o 17.9 

.o 4.8 

.o 1.8 

.o .7 

.o 10.5 

13.0 5.0 
4.4 1.1 

17.4 .6 
73.9 9.0 

4.4 ·9 
.o .3 
.o 2.0 

4.3 7.3 



lxhibit PS - 6 
Doeket Jo. 751?-12S7 

APPLIANCE SATUI!A~ION BY KWHR-USE BLOCK 
TOTAL EJ,Et!TRIC CUSTOMERS Sheet 2 ot 4 

ANNUAL IIIC<lME UP TO ~~1000 
(This Tabulation Represents Perc~nt of Customers Having the Appliances) 

AVERAGE MONTHLY KILOWATTHOUR USE - TWELVE MONTHS PERIOD 
o-4o 41-70 71-100 101-200 201-300 30l-4oo 401-~00 ~Ol-1000 Over 1000 Total 

~~~ter ~r Respondents 32 87 171 731 592 398 214 211 23 2459 

For~en~ of Total Respondents 1.3 3.5 7.0 29.7 24,1 16.2 8.7 8.6 ·9 100,0 

• ~a! :;ace Heater in 
?:i~':!:.en F.ange 15.6 12.6 11.7 8.3 6.8 5.8 6.5 4.3 .o 7.4 

oa':.!!r E!!aters: 
::;;.s 
Auto~atic 4o.6 26.4 33.3 38.9 46.1 58.3 47.2 54.5 26.1 44.9 
:i~naut~matic .o 3.5 1.2 1.2 1.0 .o ·9 .5 .o .9 

::eetric .o .o .6 .6 1.9 2.5 2.8 11.4 39.1 2.6 
'il 18.8 23.0 23.4 23.1l 29o9 24.6 28.0 26.1 39.1 26.0 
:~:: ir'l ':.'!r He .a ter .o .o .6 ,II .7 .3 1.4 2.4 .o .7 
:.:t ft~ter Furnished by Landlord 50.0 44.8 41.5 34.5 22.0 17.3 18.2 9.0 .o 25.8 

: '; ~ "7~ s: 
.'-s.3 100,0 94.3 90.1 94.1 89.2 85.4 79.0 71.6 30.4 87.5 
;: :!.ectric .o 2.3 7.6 5.1 9·5 13.3 18.7 26.5 60.9 11.0 

£~::~~':.ic Celf-Clean 
·r ::c:!nu~us Clean Oven: 

'•- .o 2.3 2.3 3 ., 4,6 5.8 4.7 6.2 17.4 4.3 ~ .... .J oL 
:::~e'::r!.c .o • o .6 .. 1.5 2.0 2.8 8.1 30.4 2.2 .. 

::~: .. :-i.:erst':'rs: 
~ 2:.::~1!! !:~-:Jr 0~'1nual Defrost) 81.3 88.5 90.6 74.6 56.4 39.2 37.9 40.8 52.2 59.9 
() ~cn:le :~~r (Aut~~atic Defr~st) 
X ?e:'ri.:!!r~t~r-Freezer (Two Outside 

9.4 3.5 8.2 16,11 20.8 28.9 22.9 30.8 34.8 20.3 

c:~rs-c~~pletely Frost-Free) o.o 5.8 8.2 16.7 31.9 49.5 53.3 57.3 65.2 31.6 
?~~ri;erator-Freezer (Two Outside 
::~rs-:nly Refrigerator Frost-Free} 6.3 5.7 4.7 14.0 19.3 15.8 22.4 l9o9 21.7 15.8 

E~;~r~te F~~d Freezer 3.1 2.3 1.2 3.3 9.6 16.8 15.9 28.9 39.1 10.5 

:le~~r:nic (•Microwave") Oven .o .o .6 .a .8 .3 1.9 1.0 .o .8 

C~ntral P.efrigerated-
~~r C~:ling Systems: 

I 'iS .o .o .o .1 .3 .5 .5 1.0 .o .3 
.::1ectric 3.1 2.3 .o 2.3 4.2 5.0 10.3 12.8 39.1 5.0 
Cooling Furnished by Landlord .o 1.2 1.2 1.0 .5 .o .5 .o .o .6 

.. 

. • ' 



'. 
\ ' 

::':::::er of R"espondents 

F~~oent ot Total Respondents 

E~== Air Conditioner•: 
L!.vin;;; Ro<:>m 

:ne 
!A"'? 

!<:>tal * 
!'eiro~m 

:ne 
!"1-; 

':h!"-ee or l-!'Jre 
T~ta.l * 

.-.n:; :ther Location 
:ne 
T~.ro 

T!:ree or More 
!:tal * 

--:~1 P~~= Air Conditioners * 
:7·:-_;.:~_idifiers 

~ o·-,,-,c: 
1-' 

;~~lc ~x~~ust r~n X :<r;e Aindow Fan 
--=-~-:-:!' ::~n 

'::::-:~~ A:!!shers: 
: ·"11:: ;..~':~=atic 
:: :~'l.:;':;::=.'ltic 
:. ~ ·..: n~ ry R -:::om 

:l:thes Dryers: 
:'!.s 

~:ect!"!.c 
:_,_·;n-:!r:;r R::>om 

:i~'h.vtJ.sh~rs: 

"•:ilt-In 
f:rtable 

•:;u=.ber ot appliance a per 100 residences. 

APPLIANCE SATUI:ATION BY KWHR-USE BLOCK 
TOTAL EI.ECTRIC CUSTOMERS 

AlfNUAL IIICOME UP TO S5 .000 

• 

(Thia Tabulation Represents Perc~nt of Customers Having the Appliances) 

AVERAGE ~IONTHLY KILOWATTHOUR USE - TWELVE MONTHS PERIOD 
o-4o 41-70 71-100 101-200 201-~00 ~01-400 401-500 ~01-1000 

32 87 171 731 592 398 214 211 

1.3 3.5 7.0 29.7 24.1 16.2 8.7 8.6 

18.8 8.1 24.0 27.6 33.1 38.7 42.1 4o.8 
.o .o .6 .6 1.7 1.5 2.3 1.4 

18.8 8.1 25.1 28.7 36.5 41.7 46.7 43.6 

9.4 6.9 11.7 19.0 20.6 31.2 28.5 28.9 
.o .o 1.8 1.1 2.0 3.8 6.5 10.4 
.o .o .o .a .2 .o 1.4 1.4 

9.4 6.9 15.2 23.7 25.2 38.7 45.8 54.0 

3.1 .o 2.3 4.8 8.3 12.1 8.9 20.4 
.o .o .6 .6 .7 1.0 1.4 2.4 
.o .o 1.2 .o .2 .a .o .5 

3.1 .o 7.0 5.9 10.1 16.3 11.7 26.5 

31.3 14.9 43.9 58.3 71.8 96.7 104.2 124.2 

.o .o .6 1.8 3.9 5.5 9.8 8.5 

3.1 .o 2.3 3.8 6.8 8.4 8.1 5.9 
18.8 24.1 24.6 28.9 32.8 31.9 31.3 30.8 
21.9 27.6 40.4 32.4 31.6 32.4 29.0 22.3 

18.8 9.2 23.4 36.7 55.2 68.3 77.6 74.4 
12.5 12.6 7.0 9.7 9.5 7.3 4.2 2.4 
3.1 9.2 11.7 7.4 4.4 1.5 1.9 3.3 

.o .o 2.3 7.1 13.2 17.6 25.2 27.0 
6.3 1.2 .6 3.7 7.1 13.1 18.7 27.5 
3.1 12.6 10.5 6.0 3.6 1.3 1.9 3.3 

.o .o .6 1.4 2.4 4.5 7.9 10.9 

.o .o .o 1.2 1.7 3.8 S.l 8.1 

.. 

hh1b1t PS - 6 
Docket No. 7512-1257 

Sheet 3 or 4 

OVer 1000- Total 

23 2459 

.9 100.0 

34.8 32.1 
8.7 1.3 

52.2 34.6 

13.0 21.9 
8.7 3.1 
4.4 .6 

43.5 29.8 

13.0 8.2 
4.4 ·9 

.o .3 
21.7 10.9 

11.7 .4 75.3 

8.7 4.1 

4.3 5.3 
26.1 30.1 
17.4 :31.2 

87.0 51.4 
4.4 8.1 
4.4 5.2 

30.4 13.1 
43.5 9.5 
4.4 4.6 

39.1 3.7 
.o 2.5 



~~=ter cf Pespon1ents 

?~rcent of Total Respondents 

Tele7isi:m Sets: 
5lact: 9.D:i White 

:ne 
'f· ... -:: 
':l:ree or !~ore 

Total * 
C:lor 

:ne 
7wc 

'l-otal * 

··;":.~ii'! ?est La1:1ps: 
E'"lec':!'!.c 

:ne 
r·..-o 
Th!"ee or More 

7:tal .. 
a as 

Cne 
'iY'J 

~ 
:"l:r.i!'! or ?-~~re 

v 7:>tal * 

<:~~1cor Gas-Fired Grills 

··;'.:::ber of appliances per 100 residences. 

--

APPLIANCE SATUJ\AUON BY KWHR-USE BLOCK 
TOTAL E:·~E•:TRIC CUSTOMERS 

ANNUAL IJICOME UP TO $5,000 
(Tbis Tabulation Represents Percent of Customers Having the Appliances) 

AVERAGE I(Q!JTHLY KILOWATTHOUR USE - TWELVE MONTHS PERIOD 
o-4o 41-70 71-100 101-2'>0 201-300 301-400 401-500 ~01-1000 

32 87 171 731 592 398 214 211 

1.3 3.5 7.0 29.7 24.1 16.2 8.7 8.6 

59.4 80.5 79.0 63.3 56.1 51.5 50.0 42.2 
6.3 2.3 3.5 7-9 10.0 14.3 14.0 17.1 

.o .o .o 1.1 1.4 1.5 1.9 4.7 
71.9 85.1 86,0 82.5 80,1 84.7 83.6 90.5 

25.0 12.6 22.8 35.8 50.8 58., 66.4 55.5 
.o 1.2 .o 1.0 3.0 5.3 6.1 11.4 

25.0 14.9 22.8 37.8 56.9 69.1 78.5 78.2 

6.3 10.3 4.7 7-7 10.3 13.3 14.0 22.3 
.o 1.2 .6 1.2 2,0 4.0 1.9 4.7 
.o .o 1.2 1.5 .7 .a 1.9 1.4 

6.3 12.6 9.4 14.6 16.4 23.6 23.4 36.0 

.o 1.2 .6 1.4 1.0 .a 1.4 1.9 

.o .o .o .3 .o .a .o 1.0 

.o .o 1.2 .o .o .o .o .o 

.o 1.2 4.1 1.9 1.0 2.3 1.4 3.8 

.o .o .o .4 .a 1.5 2.3 3.8 

.. 

. ' ... 

Exhibit PS • 6 
Doeke~ Ro. 7Sl2-1P57 

Sheet 4 of 4 

OVer 1000 Total 

23 2459 

·9 100.0 

30.4 58.0 
17.4 10.3 

.o 1.5 
65.2 83.1 

52.2 45.8 
21.7 3.6 
95.7 53.0 

8.7 10.9 
.o 2.2 

4.4 1.1 
21.7 18.6 

4.4 1.2 
.o .3 
.o .1 

4.4 2.0 

17.4 1.3 
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SUPPLEMENTAL DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 
GEORGE CLARKSON 

GENERAL MANAGER - RATES 

1. Q. Mr. Clarkson, you have previously been sworn as a Witness 

2. in these Proceedings, have you not? 

:5. A. I have. 

4. Q. You have stated in your Direct Testimony your educational 

5. background, qualifications, and experience, have you not? 

6. A. I have. 

1. Q. Would you please state the purpose of this Supplemental 

8. Direct Testimony. 

9. A. The purpose of this Supplemental Direct Testimony is to 

10. introduce three other Exhibits which provide information 

11. on low income Gas customers. 

12. Exhibit PS-7 shows fo~ Gas customers, similar to the 

1:5. Electric customers on Exhibit PS-4, that extrapolating 

14. sample results at universe proportions from the 

15. Residential Appliance Saturation Survey for the year 1975, 

16. that approximately 180,000 average number of Gas customers 

17. in 1975 had total family income only up to $5,000. 

18. Exhibit PS-8 shows the Total GRs Customers By Income 

19. Level and Average Monthly Therm Use and is the Gas 

20. companion piece to the Electric customers shown on 

21. Exhibit PS-5. 

22. Exhibit PS-9, consisting of four pages, shows the 

2:5. 1975 Saturation by Kilowatthour Use Block for Total Gas 

24. customers whose annual family income is up to $5,000. 

25. Q. Now that you have provided Exhibits on Gas customers 

.II .11--



2 

1. similar to Electric, are you prepared to comment upon the 

2. four areas addressed by former Commissioner Grossi at the 

3. hearing on Monday, January 19, 1976? 

4. A. I am. First, let me state, however, that I had previously 

5. replied in my Direct Testimony to the Order of the Board 

6. in this Docket as I interpreted it, without benefit of 

7. the Commissioner's review of the·areas to be cover~d. 

e. Q. Would you now review the first area of concern expressed 

9. by the Commissioner. 

10. A. Yes. The first indication is that the Board wishes to 

11. explore whether or not low income individuals consume 

12. - less gas and electricity than affluent persons or do 

13. they not, and, if not, would some of the low income 

" . ,._, 14 • people be burt as a result of implementing lifeline 

15. rates. 

16. A review of Exhibit PS-5 for Electric and Exhibit 

17. PS-8 for Gas would seem to give somewhat of a handle 

18. on this important question. 

19. It would appear that there is no question that 

2o. low income, or people with family income up to $5,000, 

21. use less kilowatthours on the average than people with 

22. higher income. 

23. This can be seen by comparing the Percent of Customers 

24. tabulation on Exhibit PS-5. It shows that the largest 

25. bracket of kilowatthour use is between 100 to 400 

·-
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1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

a. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

Q. 

-A. 

Q. 

A. 

kilowatthours for customers with incomes up to $5,000, 

while customers with incomes over $22,000 have-_their 

largest kilowatthour use from 500 kilowatthours and up. 

Un the basis of this Exhibit, I would conclude that there 

is a correlation between income and use of electricity 

and that lower income people tend to consume, on the average, 

less kilowatthours than affluent people in PSE&G Electric 

territory. 

What other conclusion do you drawn from this Exhibit, Mr. 

Clarkson? 

I conclude that while there is less consumption at lower 

income, the consumption is not in a uniform pattern. In 

other words, there are people at the low income level 

who use electric energy throughout the entire defined 

spectrum of kilowatthour use, and it would seem to me, 

therefore, that there is no question that unless many 

low income people were to curtail their use of service 

to fit into a fixed lifeline use level, that they would 

be placed in a rate disadvantage. 

Turning now to Gas on Exhibit PS-8, what conclusions do 

you draw from these results? 

I conclude that low income users in Gas hav~a slightly 

different pattern. If we look in the columns under Percent 

of Customers, we can notice a large grouping of low income 

customers in the 2.1 to 17 therm use blocks, but thereis 
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1. also a similar large grouping in the 50 to 200 therms 

2. use blocks. As we go up the spectrum of family income, 

3. we notice that the large use at the lower end from 2.1 to 17 

4. gradually diminishes while the grouping from 50 to 200 

5. increases dramatically. 

6. Q. What is the reason for this phenomenon, Mr. Clarkson? 

7. A. It would appear that low income users in PSE&G gas territory 

8. have a great preponderance of ranges, which use a small 

9. amount of monthly therms, but there is also some heating 

10. use at this lower income level. As people become more 

11. affluent there tends to be more and more of a saturation 

12. of heating and less of a saturation of range or other use. 

• 13. However, I would still offer the same observation as in 
'-' 

14 • discussing Exhibit PS-5, namely, that irrespective of the 

. 15. movement of use by income level, low income customers 

16. still have use throughout the entire spectrum of gas 

17. consumption. Therefore, I would observe again that 

18. unless some of these customers were willing to curtail 

19. or modify their type of usage, or unless this Board were 

20. to es~ablish different levels for heating and range use 
! 

21. in the case of gas, that some of these customers would 

22. be hurt by the application of a lifeline type of rate 

23. structure. 

24. Q. In order to close out the first area of Board concern, 

25. Mr. Clarkson, would you comment on former Commissioner 

47x 
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1. Grossi's statement regarding, "whether lifeline rates 

2. would actually benefit those needy or on fixed income." 

3. A. Yes. It appears that we keep getting mixed up with things 

4. called "needy" or "fixed income people", and then referring 

5. to "low income people." It seems to me that these are two 

6. entirely separate matters. 

7. Testimony was submitted by me in Docket No. 757-735, 

a. which has been incorporated by reference here, in that 

9. Docket's Exhibit PS-1 as to the problems of identifying 

10. needy or fixed income people. We have exactly the same 

11. problem in this particular Docket. I believe our Exhibits 

12. can help the Board come to a conclusion regarding the fact 

13. that low income people·use less electricity or gas than 

14. more affluent people. As to whether or not low income 

15. identifies with "needy" or "fixed income people" is a 

~6. demographic area which, as we testified, PSE&G is not 

17. prepared to answer - principally because we do not have 

18. this identification information on our customers. 

19. Q. 

20. 

21. A. 

22. 

23. 

Would you now turn to the second area of concern which was 

expressed on January 19th? 

The second area of concern, as I understand it, is that of 

setting and policing various levels of consumption which 

would qualify for low use discounts. In addition, it 

24. would appear that the Board wishes information on maximum 

25. use, and whether adjustments should be made for various 

48x 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

e. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13 • 
...._, 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25 • 

.._.., 

. 

6 

differentiations between family size and other 

demographic matters. 

Inso far as maximum figures for potentia~_discounts. 

are concerned, it would be possible to identify various 

appliance combinations and then attempt to establish 

levels of electric or gas use: For the basic use of 

150 kilowatthours and 9 therms that I have previously 

testified to; basic use plus gas water heating of an 

amount of 35 therms that I have previous testified to; 

and then various adjustments for either electric or gas 

space heating based upon some level of kilowatthours or 

therms per degree day. I might add here that I am assuming 

because of the small amount of electric water heating in 

our service area that it would not be included. An 

amount could be picked up to set up the category including 

electric water heating, if desired. 

The point, however, that I am trying to make here 

is that adjustments, in my opinion, should not be made 

on the basis of demographic data. As long as we are 

committed to establishing electric or gas energy use as 

the criteria for giving a lifeline rate, then it should 

be predicated upon a combination of appliances that most 

probably would produce certain levels of kil~watthours 

or therms. In this area, therefore, I feel that we should 

be dealing with average conditions. There will always 

49x 
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1. be some people outside the normal distribution. I am 

2. not sure how it is possible to include everying in this 

3. category unless some changes are made either in patterns 

4. of usage or conformance to a given fixed Rate Schedule 

5. such as the type I proposed in my Direct Testimony. 

6. Q. Would you now address yourself to the third area of concern 

7. as explained by former Commissioner Grossi? 

8. A. Yes. I understand the third area of concern to raise 

9. questions as to whether the implementation of lifeline 

10. would encourage a wasteful use of electricity or gas or 

11. if the advantages of such a plan outweigh the disadvantages. 

12. Under the lifeline rate form that I have previously 

13. proposed, there would not be an inordinate amount of 

14. wasted usage as such usage would create a severe economic 

15. penalty to a customer who exceeded a fixed limit of 

16. lifeline value. As to the question of whether or not 

17. the advantages of such a plan outweigh the disadvantages, 

18. certainly there is an advantage to a group of customers 

19. who can qualify. Disadvantages accrue to other customers 

20. 

21. Q. 

22. 

who would have to pick up the difference in subsidy. 

Mr. Clarkson, the fourth area of concern addresses itself 

to the question of New Jersey Statutes and New Jersey 

23. Federal Court Decisions regarding preferential treatment 

24. of certain classes of customers. Would you care to 

25. comment on this? 
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Yes. I do not feel qualified to address myself to the 

legality of such a plan, although Exhibit PS-i ·in Docket · 

No. 757-735 does include a Section on "Statutory Limita

tions of Rate Design" prepared by our legal staff. From 

a rate person's point of view, however, there is no 

question in my mind that such treatment is discriminatory 

and it also raises questions regarding other groups 

requesting or vying for specific preferential treatment 

in the future. 

Does this conclude your Supplemental Direct Testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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1975 Residential Appliance Saturation Study 
Respondents by Income Level 

Total Gas Area 

Total Respondents - Gas Area 

Total Family Income 

Up to $5,000 
$5,001 to 9,000 
$9,001 to 15,000 
$15,001 t9 22,000 

Over $22,000 
No Response 

Total Respondents to Income Q~estion 

Up to $5,000 
$5,001 to $9,000 
$9,001 to 15,000 

$15,001 to 22,000 
Over $22,000 

Respondents 
1985 
2264 
3624 
2409 
2293 

*Public Service Gas Area 
**Average Number of Customers - 1975 

c:: ~--

% . 
15-""B" 
18.0 
28.8 
19.2 
18.2 

J.OO.O 

16,026 

12.4 
14.1 
22.6 
15.1 
14.3 
21.5 

12,575 

*Estimated Number 
of 

' Customers 
179,688 
204,708 
327,533 
218,359~ 
206,983 

J.,J.37,268** 
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1975 Residential Appliance Saturation Study 
Total Gas Customers by Income Level and Average 

Monthly Therm Use - Twelve Month Period 

Percent of Customers 

$5,001 $9,001 $15,001 
Up to to to to 

Therm Use ~5 2 000 ~2 2 000 ~15 2 000 ~22 2 000 

0 - 2.0 4.7 3.2 2.4 1.1 
2.1 - 5.0 16.9 14.8 11.2 6.9 
5.1 - 9.0 12.9 12.4 10.6 6.3 
9-1 - 17.0 11.5 9.6 7.6 5.5 

17.1 - 26.0 8.2 7.0 5.1 3.8 
26.1 - 50.0 9-5 11.9 11.3 11.4 
50.1 - 90.0 15.2 12.6 11.0 9.6 
90.1 -200.0 19.9 26.8 38.0 51.2 

Over 200.0 1.2 1.7 2.8 4.2 
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

\ 

Average Number of Customers - 1975 

0 ., 2.0 8,509 6,601 7,863 2,357 
2.1 - 5.0 30,416 30,381 36,513 15,047 
5.1 - 9.0 23,264 25,317 34,525 13,868 
9.1 - 17.0 20,639 19,711 25,035 11,965 

17.1 - 26.0 14,755 14,286 16,810 8,248 
26.1 - 50.0 17,018 24,323 37,055 24,926 
50.1 - 90.0 27,248 25,769 35,971 21,029 
90.1 - 200.0 35,757 54,884 124,542 111,852 

·over 200.0 2,082 3z436 9 2 219 9 2064 
179,688 204,708 327,533 218,356 
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Over 
~22 2 000 

1.1 
3-3 
3.0 
4.1 
2.6 
8.9 
6.5 

57.0 
13.5 

100.0 

2,257 
6,860 
6,320 
8,485 
5,326 

18,415 
13,540 

117,889 
27 2893 

206,983 



l~ber of Respondents 

!rcent of Total Respondents 

1~ber of People in Home: 
(:ne Person 
~~o Persons 
Tbree Persons 
:~ur Persons 
Five Persona 
£ix or ~!ore 

~e of Heating System: 
Forced Ware Air 
H~t ~eter or Steam 
!n1lv!dual Room Heaters 
Through the Wall 

Eeetlng and Cooling 

inclpsl Fuel Used tor 
J:ece Eeating: 
}s.s 
olectricity 
:11 
~eat Furnished by Landlord 

llll Heater11 
iaa Room Heaters 

Gne 
Two 
Three or More 

rotal * 
:lectric Room Heaters 

Cne 
~\o/0 

':hree or More 1 
Total * 

11 Room Heaters 
Cne 
TO'o 
Three or More 

Total * 

mter of appliances per 100 re1idencea, 

APPLIANCE SATURATION BY TH!RM-USE BLOCK 
TOTAL GAS CUSTOMERS 

. ANNUAL INCOME UP TO $5,000 
(This Tabulation Represents Percent ot Customers Having the Appliances) 

Ex hi bit PS - 9 
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Sheet 1 of 4 

AVERAGE MONTHLY USE - THERMS - TWELVE MONTHS PERIOD 
17.1-26.0 26.1-50.0 0-2.0 2.1-~.o f.l-2,0 2·1-17.0 ~0.1-20.0 20.1-200.0 Over-200 

94 336 257 228 163 188 301 395 23 

4.7 16.9 12.9 11.5. 8.2 9·5 15.2 19.9 1.2 

68.1 45.2 20,2 35.5 22.1 15.4 27.6 23.3 8.7 
16.0 H·7 38.1 22,8 46.0 27.1 35.9 39.0 34.8 

4.3 10.4. 23.7 14.5 17.8 23.9 17.3 18.5 13.0 
1.1 4.2 9.7 8.8 4.3 8.5 7-3 7.1 8.7 
3.2 1.5 3.9 9.2 4.3 10.1 5.0 5.1 8.7 
6.4 1.5 3.5 7o9 3.1 13.3 6.3 5.8 26.1 

2,1 1.2 7o4 14.0 31.9 25.0 36.2 26.3 17.4 
92.6 88.4 81.3 72.4 55.2 45.2 37.5 60.8 78.3 
1.1 .3 2.3 4.8 3.7 ·13.8 16.3 4.3 .o 

1.1 .3 .8 .o .6 ·5 .3 3.3 4.4 

3.2 2.7 4.7 5.3 6.8 33.5 85.7 97-7 100.0 
.o .6 .o .o .o .o .3 .o .o 

53.2 57.4 63.0 66.2 82.8 52.7 9.6 1.0 .o 
38.3 35.1 28.4 24.6 8.6 9.6 3.7 .8 .o 

1.1 ,6 .4 4.4 3.7 10,1 15.0 5.6 8.7 
.o ·9 .8 ·9 1.8 2.1 5.3 2.5 8.7 
.o .3 1.2 .o .o 1.6 1.7 1.5 .o 

1.1 3.3 5.5 6.2 7.4 19.2 30.6 15.2 26.1 

5:3 4.2 4.3 5.3 4.3 6.9 4.3 4.1 .o 
_... 1.1 ,0· .8 .4 .o 1.1 2.3 .8 4.4 

-.o .3 .o .4 .6 1.1 .o .o 4.4 
7.4 5.1 5.8 7.5 6.1 12,2 9·0 5.6 21.8 

3.2 .o 1.2 .9 1.8 1.6 .o .o .o 
.o .6 1.2 .o .6 .5 .o .o .o 

2.1 2.1 3.5 2.2 3.1 4~3 1.3 .3 .o 
9.6 7.4 11t.o 7-5 12.3 15.4 4.0 .8 .o 

T:ltal 

1985 

100.0 

29.8 
34.3 
16.9 
6.8 
5.1 
5.8 

18.8 
65.7 
5.9 

1.1 

39.1 
.2 

41.5 
16.6 

5.4 
2.1 

.9 
12.4 

4.6 
·9 
.3 

7.2 

.7 

.4 
2.1 
7.6 
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Imber or Respondents 

:rcent ot Total Respondents 

L! Space Heater in 
:1 tcben Range 

'ter Heaters: 
IJas 

Automatic 
;icnautomatic 

Electric .. 
:n 
:; ~ Water Heater ':::· 
!!:t Water Furnished_b). Landlord 

~nges: 

Gas 
'f:lectric 
1 

1to~atic Selt-Clean 
1r c~ntinuous Clean Oven: 
}as 
E:lectric 

t'r 1ierators: 
:tn~le Door ~Manual Defrost) 
Single Door Auto•atic Defrost) 
F.e!'rigerator-Freezer (Tvo Outside 
:~:rs-Co~pletely Frost-Free) 

~e!'rigerator-Freezer (Tvo Outside 
Doors-Only Refrigerator Frost-Free) 

p~rate Food Freezer 

. ectronic ("Microwave•) Oven 

,ntral Refrigerated-
.ir·C:oling Systems: 
'}~s 

::lectric 
~~oling Furnished by Landlord 

( 

APPLIAWCI BA~UBA~IOW BY ~HBRM-USI BLOCX 
~O~AL GAS CUS~OMBRS 

AWWUAL IWCOME UP ~0,$5,000 
(!his ~abulation Represents Percent ot Custo•ers Havins the Appliances) 

AVERAGE MONTHLY USB • ~HBRNS - ~VELVB MOWTHS PIRIOD 
0-2.0 2.1-~.o ~.1-2.0 2·1-17.0 17.1-2li.o 2li.1-~o.o ~o.~-2o.o 

9 .. 336 257 228 163 188 301 

... 7 16.9 12.9 11.5 8·.2 9·5 15.2 

3.2 2.7 3.1 10.1 9.8 20.2 15.6 

6.4 a.o 15.6 31.1 63.8 70.7 85 ... 
.o .3 .a 1.8 1.2 1.6 1.7 
.o .o 1.2 ... .6 .o 1.3 

29.8 39-9 .. 2.8 36.4 28.8 16.0 3.0 
.o .6 2.3 ·9 .o .5 .3 

63.8 52.7 .. 0.1 34.2 11.7 9.0 6.6 

92.6 98.8 96.1 94.7 92.6 96.3 90.0 
5.3 ·9 3.1 4.4 7.4 3.2 9.6 

1.1 2 ... 5.8 ..... 4.9 4.3 4.0 
2.1 .6 .o 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 

72 ... 63.1 56.0 59.2 5 ... 6 65 ... 56.8 
12.8 17.6 18.7 . 26.3 '19.0 16.0 25.9 

12.8 25.6 38.9 29.8 33.1 36.7 30.2 

8.5 12.2 14.0 18.9 20.9 . 18.6 17.9 

4.3 5 ... 9.0 13.6 18.4 9.0 11.3 

1.1 .3 ... ·9. 1.2 1.1 1.0 

.o .o .o .o .o .o ·1 
.4.3 .6 2.3 5.3 1.2 2.7 6.0 
1.1 .3 ... .o .o ·~ .o 

( 
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Sheet 2 ot .. 

20 .1-2oo. o - onr--2oo 

395 23 

19.9 1.2 

5.3 "·" 
93·7 91.3 

.5 .o 
1.0 .o 
.a .o 
.5 .o 

2.0 8.7 

88.9 91.3 
10.1 8.7. 

5.6 21.7 
3.0 .o 

59.3 52.2 
19.2 30 ... 

34.7 47.8 

16.7 26.1 

13.7 13.0 

.8 .o 

1.0 .o 
8 ... 8.7 

.o .o 

fu..!L 
1985 

100.0 

8.4 

51.8 
1.0 

.7 
22.4 

.7 
24.4 

93.6 
5.8 

4.5 
1.3 

59.9 
20.2 

31.6 

16.3 

10.8 

.8 

.3 
4.2 
.2 



umber of Respondents 

ercent of Total Respondents 

~~m Air Conditioners: 
Living Room 

Jne 
T..-o 

Total * 
Bedroom 

One 
Til-::> 
Three or More 

n Total * 

" ~Any Other Location 
':ne 
T•o 
Three or More 

Total * 
:t~l .3oom Air Conditioners * 

:!-.u!::idifiera 

~na: 

Attic Exhauat Fan 
L~rie Window Fan 
Floo-r F·aa 

.ott.es \·lashers: 
!'·~ll:r .1-.utomatic 
:: :nauto~::atic 
:e.undr:r 3oom 

I 

.st!-.es Dryers: 
:;9:3 

:::le::tric 
Laundry Room 

. ~:-. · .. ;e.shers: 
~u:.lt-In 
?:;rtable 

:u~~er ot appliance• per 100 reaidences. 

APPLIANCE SATURATION BY THERM-UBE BLOCK 
TOTAL GAS CUSTOMERS 

ANNUAL INCOME UP TO $5,000 
(This Tabulation Represents Percent ot Customers Having the Appliances) 

AVERAGE MONTHLY USE - THERMS - TWELVE MONTHS PERIOD 
0-2.0--- 2,1-~.o 5.1-2.0 2·1-17.0 17.1-2l),o 2li,l-~O.O ~0.1-20.0 

94 336 257 228 163 188 301 

4.7 16.9 12.9 11.5 8,2 9.5 15.2 

33.0 33.3 30.4 26.3 27.0 28.7 30.2 
1.1 .6 .4 ·9 1.8 .o 2.7 

35.1 34.5 31.1 28.1 30.7 28.7 35.6 

25.5 17.9 22.6 20.2 22.7 22.9 20.3 
2.1 .3 3.1 .4 3.7 3.7 2.7 

.o .o .8 .4 .6 1.1 1.3 
29.8 18.5 31.1 22.4 31.9 33.5 29.6 

2.1 5.7 7.8 7.9 9.2 11.7 7.6 
2,1 .3 1.2 .4 .6 1.1 2.0 
1.1 ·3 .4 .o .6 .o .3 
9.6 7.2 11.3 8.8 12.3 13.8 12.6 

74.5 60.1 73.6 59.2 74.8 76.0 77.7 

1.1 1.5 2.3 1.8 3.7 6.9 9·0 

2.1 2.1 3.1 4.8 8.0 4.8 5.0 
24.5 27.6 33.5 36.8 34.4 35.1 32.9 
33.0 32.7 30.0 36.0 35.0 31.4 29.2 

24.5 27.7 47.1 54.8 61.4 59.0 62.1 
4.3 4.8 5.8 10.5 6.8 10.6 10,0 

18.1 13.1 5.1 1.8 1.8 1.6 .7 

4.3 3.0 10.5 9.2 17.2 20.2 17.6 
4.3 3.0 5.8 7.5 7.4 9.0 11.6 

14.9 11.0 3.5 2.2 .6 1.6 .3 

2,1 1.2 2.3 3.5 3.7 4.3 4.0 
3.2 1.2 2.3 ·9 4.3 4.3 3.7 
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20.1-200.0 Over-200 T-otal 

395 23 1985 

19.9 1.2 100,0 

26.8 26.1 29.3 
.8 8.7 1.1 

28.4 43.5 31.5 

22.0 13.0 21.1 
5.8 17.4 3.0 

.5 8.7 .7 
35.2 73.9 29.3 

8.9 8.7 7.9 
1.0 4.4 1.1 

.3 4.4 ,4 
11.6 30.5 11,0 

75.2 147.9 71.9 

8.4 4.4 4.8 

10.1 13.1 5.5 
28.9 26.1 31.7 
29.9 26.1 31.6 

69.6 78.3 53.1 
10.1 4.4 8.1 

.o .o 4.3 

' '24.8 34.8 14.5 
11.7 26.1 8.2 

.o .o 3.5 

7.1 17.4 3.9 
2.5 8.7 2.7 
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY ) 
: ss. 

COUNTY OF ESSEX ) 

I, George Clarkson, being first duly sworn, do 

hereby depose and say that the foregoing constitutes my 

prepared supplemental testimony in this proceeding, that the 

answers to the questions therein stated are my answers to 

such questions and are true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge, information, and belief. 

I ask that the attached be considered as my sworn 

testimony in this proceeding. 

Sworn and subscribed to ) 

before me this 20th day ) 

of February, 1976. ) 

Muriel I. Yobs 
Notary Public Of 
My Commission 8' 19 79 

(SEAL} 
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STATEMENT OF ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY BEFORE THE COMMITTEE 

ON TRANSPORATION AND COMMUNICATIONS OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF NEW 

JERSEY REGARDING PUBLIC UTD.I1.Y RATES. /~!JG 1 :~ 1976 

My name is Joseph T. Kelly, Jr. I reside at 41 South Tallahassee 

Avenue, Atlantic City, New Jersey. I am a Registered Professional Engineer 

and Attot~ey at Law in the State of New Jersey and am Manager of Economic 

Services for the Atlantic City Electric Company. 

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you and state the 

position of the Atlantic city Electric Company in regard to public utility 

rate design. Over the past three years, there has been increasing agitation 

for a restructuring of electric utility rates to achieve certain social 

purposes~ One of these purposes ha~ been to pro,ride reduced utility costs 

to the poor and the senior citizen on fixed income. The method seized upon 

to provide this relief has been termed a life-line rate; namely, a low cost 

for the essential use of electricity. There have been many problems set 

forth in taking this approach to assist those who need. A most obvious 

problem is that there is no data available which indicates conclusively that 

only those in need are low users of electric service. There is much evi

dence, particularly in the Atlantic City Electric Company territory, which 

would lead us to believe that the opposite is the case. The Company has 

many seasonal accounts - customers who take service on a year-round basis 

and yet only avail themselves of that during the sununer months and on week

ends through the spring and fall. These customers have a second home at the 

shore and, therefore, are clearly not in need. In the four rate cases which 

the Company has carried forth in the last ~our years, testimony and positions 

advocated by rate counsel have indicated that the rate structure of the 

Company should be such as to impose a high ~ost of energy during the summer 
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months in order that these seasonal customers carry a greater proportion of 

their share of the cost of providing service to them. As a result of this 

position, acceded in by the Company, the differential in the summer trailing 

block for energy and winter trailing block for energy has increased from .5¢ 

to 1.6¢. Where the ratio of summer trailing block cost to winter trailing 

block cost was 1.4 in 1972, it is now 1.97. In addition to this seasonal 

approach to the rate design for residential customers, there is a separate 

rate structure for customers who take service for short periods of time. As 

a result of the separate rate structure, these short-time customers pay an 

additional charge for energy through the short period which they take 

service. 

In examining the possible numbers of customers who might be 

affected, either to their advantage or to their disadvantage, by various 

life-line proposals, we have attempted to quantify numbers of customers in 

various use groupings. The Company has not, in the past, been active in 

customer survey work due to a lack of funds for this particular activity. 

Over the past four years, there has been some customer saturation study work 

conducted but we did not feel that we were free to request income data from 

these customers. We noted with pleasure the Public Service effort in this 

direction which has been carried out in the past year and should another 

customer survey be undertaken, I am sure that we will seek this data as well. 

The analysis of customer use for August, 1975 and December, 1975 shows that 

customers using less than 150 kilowatt hours in August represented 12.7% of 

the residential customers and 2% of the customers had no use at all. In 
• 

December of 1975, the residential customers using less than 150 kilowatt 

hours were 20.3% of the customers, or one in five, while 7% had no use at all. 
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Twenty-six per cent of the customers in August, 1975 used less than 300 kilo- · 

watt hours while in December, 34.6% used less than 300 kilowatt hours. 

Working with 1970 census data and a 1970 saturation study, we have 

estimated that the Company could have as many as 50,000 customers who are 

senior citizens. This is about 22% of the customers in the residential 

class in 1970. Information supplied by the New Jersey Food Stamp Administra-

tion office would indicate that approximately 31,500 households would be 

eligible for food stamps within the Company territory. There is undoubtedly 

some overlapping between those eligible for food stamps and those who are 

senior citizens~ With some estimate of an overlap between the two classes, 

we could say that the total number of senior citizens and food stamp eligible 

households could number as much as 70,000. Since the load distribution data 

indicates about 30,000 customers using less than 150 kilowatt hours in the 

month of August and about 52,000 customers using less than 150 kilowatt hours 

in December. It must be clear that there are large numbers of customers who 

would be considered senior citizens or needy who use more than 150 or 300 

kilowatt hours. 

The next question becomes that of the source of funds to make up 

the revenue requirement which is distributed to these recipients through the 

adoption of a life-line concept. I am sure that you, as well as I, have 

read the proposals which say "soak the large users". This phrase refers both 

to residential and commercial and industrial customers who use larger amounts 

of electricity than those using the small amount of electricity considered 

basic to the continuation of life. We cannot, in good conscience, accept the 

position that the cotnmercial and industrial customer should bear the burden. 

These customers, over the past five years have experienced large increases in 
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their energy costs. These large increases have been such as to have a number 

of customers seriously considering the transfer of their operations to other 

states. This is not an idle threat but a serious problem. One of our 

largest industrial customers has closed down two of its production lines and 

removed the production line equipment from the plant and from the state. 

The jobs represented by the manning of those two lines have been lost to our 

customers in the area and this job loss is going to be very difficult to 

replace. We are continually pressed by commercial and industrial customers 

to develop ways to reduce their energy costs. 

The cost allocation studies which the Company has had to file in 

its rate proceedings have consistently indicated that the large industrial 

and commercial customers of the Company have been paying more than their 

fair share of the revenue requirement of the Company for the service rendered 

to them. As a result, the rate counsel's experts have recommended that the 

increased revenue be recovered from the other classes of service rather than 

from these large commercial and industrial customers. Even so, the impact of 

the rate increases and of the increased cost of fuel to the Company has 

resulted in a doubling of the energy cost to the industrial customer while 

the residential customer increase has been 80%. 

To say that the large residential customer must pick up the revenue 

given to the poor and senior citizen through rate redesign is also difficult 

to support. I have already alluded to the fact that many of the poor and 

senior citizens are large users of electricity so proposals to transfer this 

cost to large users would impact on the very class of customers that it is 

desired to assist. Further, I have cited the existence of a large number of 

small users who require no assistance - so any criterion of assistance to 
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poor and senior citizen which is determined on the basis of the use of 

electric energy is virtually certain to penalize many in need of assistance 

while benefiting those who require no assistance. 

Another aspect of the problem as you hear it stated is that elec-

tricity costs so much. Data gathered by the Company and shown in an 

attached exhibit indicates that in the period between 1949 and 1975 the 

actual income per capita based on current dollars has increased by more 

than the factor of 2. The electric bill as a per cent of per capita income 

has decreased from 8.4% of income in 1949 to 5.4% income in 1972. This 

decrease in per cent of income has occurred in spite an increase in average 

customer use of about 500% counteracted by a decrease in cost per kilowatt 

~ur in today's dollars by a factor of 2. While the average cost per kilo

Ttt hour with the residential customer has been cut in half, the average 

cost per kilowatt hour to industrial customers has increased by 10%~The 
impact on the industrial customer has been severe. While it cannot be 

denied that the cost of electric service has had an impact on the cost of 

living, the part it plays is not nearly so significant as we would be led 

to believe in some of the articles and letters that we read. This is not 

to say that there are not individuals who are truly suffering today - no one 

can look around and deny that. 
·l( 1\ The Company position with regard to assistance has been the same 
I 

over the last three years. Rate design for social purposes opens a Pandora's 

box which will create havoc. If assistance is required, and we readily 

admit that there are those who need assistance, it should come through legis-

lative action supported by tax dollars. The state, through its various 

agencies, has the information to channel assistance to those in need. The 
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utility industry cannot get that information and does not have it. The shot-

gun approach to assistance based on use can hurt those in need and assist 

those who have no need. As a result, we strongly recommend that the e~ergy 

" 
• stamp program be adapted to provide assistance for the energy needs regard-

less of source. 

Another aspect of the problem is that many customers use other 

sources of energy than electricity or gas which are not readily amenable to 

some life-line approach. The coal and oil industries have not been in the 

past the subject of complete state regulation. This is not to say that such 

regulation cannot be enacted but it would certainly affect the marketing of 

coal and oil within the state were such a program to be adopted. 

In considering the impact of various proposals to provide a subsidy 

through rate redesign based solely on use, the affect on the trailing block 

in the residential class could be as much as 1¢ per kilowatt hour. As of 

June 30, 1976, the Atlantic City Electric Company had 37,586 customers served 

with full electric heat in their residences. The average kilowatt hours per 

customer account with electric heat exceeds the average of the customer with-

out electric heat by some 8,000 kilowatt hours per year. An increase in 

charges to the electric heat customer of 1¢ per kilowatt hour for this excess 

use would result in an $80.00 per year increase on an average bill of 

$570.00 per year or approximately 14%. As I indicated earlier, many senior 

citizens are living in homes with electric heat. They have appeared in our 

rate cases. They have told us of being unable to have sufficient heat in • 

their homes as a result of the cost of electric energy. To place this 

greater burden upon them would be devastating. To say that the only cost 

increases for heat, however, have been for electric heat would be erroneous. 
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If you will forgive a personal note, I heat my own home with oil and my oil 

bill last year was higher than any previous oil bill by some 15% and I 

decreased my usage of oil by at least 25%. My heating experience with oil 

heat parallels that of many of our customers who have electric heat. I, too, 
• 

am paying more and using less. 

At the Atlantic City Electric Company, we feel there are really two 

questions involved: What do people requiring assistance actually use as far 

as energy requirements are concerned? and, What would satisfy their basic 

needs now and in the future? We do not have answers to these questions and 

we are convinced that the answers would differ from company to company and 

state to state and even within our own Company service area. While the 150 

kilowatt hour per month criteria might be valid in an urban area where gas 

or oil is used for heating, it would clearly be insufficient in a rural area 

where gas is not available and electricity might be used for heat. 

If we might be aware of actions that have taken place in other 

states - California has enacted a life-line statute with a result that 

utility companies are faced with as many as 70 different rate classifications 

within their territories. Such a distribution of rate classifications 

creates administrative havoc. It is extremely difficult to keep track of 

customers with so many different rate applications. In our initial rate case 

in 1972, we were commended for going from 22 separate rate classifications, 

many with small numbers of customers, to 4 main rate classifications. The 
• 

administrative problems experienced with so many different rates in our own 

Company have been largely eliminated and customer information is more readily 

available. In the state of Maine, the legislature enacted a statute re-

quiring a life-line rate with a deftnite stipulaticn as to the source of the 
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money to make up the subsidy given to the customers to be served. The 

customers receiving increased charges to cover this deficit are objecting 

strenuously to paying the additional charge. Indeed, some of the customers 

have deducted that surcharge from their bills, refusing to pay it. The 

experience in both states indicates that there are real problems in shifting 

away from rates based upon cost. We sincerely believe that the energy stamp 

approach is the most defensible method for providing assistance to those in 

need. 
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Exhibit "B" 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Number of Households That Have. Been Certified 
for Food Stamp Program (October 1 75) 

ATLANTIC COUNTY 8,477 

* BURLINGTON COUNTY 550 

* CAMDEN COUNTY 4,025 

CAPE MAY COUNTY 1,352 

CUMBERLAND COt:JNTY 6,872 

*GLOUCESTER COUNTY 2,938 

* OCEAN COUNTY 794 

SALEM COUNTY 1, 806 

TOTAL 26,814 

>:' Counties estimated on basis of percentage of 
population served by ACECo • 
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Exhibit; "C" 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COHPANY 

Estimated Number of Senior Citizens (65 Years of Age and Over) 
in Atlantic Elcctrtr. SPrvice Area 

ATLANTIC 28,262 

BU:P..LINGT0:-1 2,220 

CJ\J,IDE~ 7' 26/1 

CAPE HAY 12,13[1 

ClP.I3T:RLK:D 7,515 

OCEA'L~ 3,759 

GLOUCI:STER 11,1~20 

SALEH _1_,. 603 

TOTAL 78, lRl 
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J:xhibit n 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Customer Use Data 

Average Income 1975 1972 1969 1959 1949 
per Capita $3,828 $3,064 $1,345 $ -=n4 

*(a) $4,927 $4,495 $2,480 $1,633 

Avg. Kwhr. /Res. Cust. 7,018 7,008 6,072 3,583 1,745 

Avg. Cost/Kwhr. Res. 4.69¢ 2.96¢ 2.38¢ 2. 77¢ 3.47¢ 

*(a) 4.69¢ 3. 81¢ 3.49¢ 5.11¢ 7.83¢ 

Avg. Cost/Kwhr. Ind. 3.37¢ 1.82¢ 1.24¢ 1.40¢ 1.49¢ 

*(a) 3.37¢ 2.34¢ 1.82¢ 2.58¢ 3.36¢ 

Ratio Incl./Res. .72 .61 .52 .51 .43 

E1ec. Bill as % of 
Income (6,000 Kwhr./Yr.) 4.6 4.7 12.4 28.8 

(Average troc) 5.4 4.7 7.4 8.4 

* Current dollars 

• 
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A GUIDE TO 'l'HE PERPlEXED UTILITY RATE PAlER - or - "TO BUilD> 00. NOT TO BUII..Dtt - . -- - - ------
by Claire J. Schiff ?\.. 

The cost-plus contract has 
become linked in the public mind 
with defense contracts--where a 
guaranteed per cent profit over 
arrl above costs to the manufact
urer, is part of the contractual 
arrangement with the government. 

'Vhat most people do not rea
lize, is that electric and gas 
utili ties are not only given a 
monopoly (a franchise to sell 
power in a given area wi. th no 
competitor), but that also their 
regulators, the public utility 
commissions--Who are the agencies 
that grant them their rate in
creases--have agreed to the prin
ciple that the utility must make 
at least an 8% or 9% return for 
its stockholders on their in
vestment. The '!'air, reasonable" 
return assures a good credit rat
ing. With good credit ratlngs 1 

companies can sell their bonds 
at low interest rates. 

Since low interest rates re
duce the cost of financing, this 
has made sense ••• as lq u what 
the utili ties were financing ( i. 
e., added generating povrer) was 
sound, solid investment in a sure 
market. 

The figure that follows is 
a simple breakdown of what a 
u~ -~~ ty' s rates are computed on. 

*** 
The quibbling between the 

Public Utility C0111nissiona and 
the utility cOTflt'&llies happene when 
the Commission questions haw the 
company derived its figures (costs, 
expenses, etc.). Auditing some 

R-.e S 1 c:\ e n i 

... 

ffiOFITS - distributed~ 
in form of dividends 
to stockholders -

J."Reaso~ble
return" -

. ~976 -8%-9% 

FINANCING- Interest} 
costs on bank loans, 
company bonds 

OPERA.TING EXPENSES -
Salaries, Yaintemnc 
fuel, insUE"ance, 
es1 legal and 
tants fees. Losses 
from strikes, shut
downs, accidents. 
Security. Advertis 

CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
(borrowed from s 
holders) Facili ties1 

plant, equi~ent1 
real estate. Shares 
or ownership in othe 
companies. 

RATES 
MtET 

ASSURE 
AU. 

'lltESE 
OB

LIGA-
. TIONS 

CAN 
BE 
MET 
BY 
THE 

tmLITY 

In a good year a co.pany' s profits 
can exceed expected levels. Dividends 
can be increased, bonuses awarded1 or 
new ventures can be undertaken (mer
gers, acquisition of real estate, seed 
money tor long-range expaDSion.) 

In a bad year, a c0lllp&Zl7 may be 
forced to declare no dividend, as Con 
Fd had to in 1974. Beca\18e this rocks 
"investor confidence" in utilities, 
special goverlllllellt subsidies and tax 
arrangements are made. (In Con Ed 1 s 
case, New York State Power Authority 
purchasfid the uneconomical n11elear 
plants at Indian Point, while Con Ed 
still operates them. 

times shows up accounting which is 
questionable. For instance 1 Virginia 
Electric Power Company was showri to haye 
charged itself a much higher price for 
coal !'rom its sub8idiary, when it had 
access to the same coal at a lower 
price. 

\\eis to E:d.LA.c•.:.h0n _g_,v- fn.;,,.-'-',_.v.,ellrPr~:-+ec-h·:"~ 
P. 0 · Bo~~o :2. o ·3 

5u.rnm\t 1\LJ~ o7q_ o I 
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The rate base on which utili
ties' rates are comouted is the ca
pital inTestment made in the com
pany. It follows that the larger 
the capital investment, the great
er the revenue Which the comQ!ssion 
allows the compan,- to recOYer in 
rates. This alone serYes as a 
built-in mechanism tor expansion. 

Recently, ratepayers have ques
tioned whether they ought to be '!l&Y
ing tor company advertising or lob
bying (especially where these con
flict with ratepayers' interests). 
The New Jersey Public utilities Com
mission and others have raled that 
certain advertising shollld be borne 
by stoclcholders instead of by rate
payers. ibis is a step in the 
right direction, but in the loq 
run this is probabl7 outweighed b7 
the tact that, it this dils too 
deeply into di rldends, the utili ties 
can argue that their stock prices 
are down, their credit rating is in 
danger • When this happen, PUCe or
dinarily consider it sufficient rea
son to allow rate increases to cover 
it. 

FUEL ADJUSTUENT CIAmE 
since the Arab oil boycott, oil 

prices have q Ulldrupled, coal prices 
have dollbled, aDd gas has been in 
short supply in winter, !orcin« com
panies to pay biger prices. (This 
tactic on the part or the gas sup
pliers is like an emplo,ee who wanta 
a raise, workin« only haU' a da:r1 

plus overtime for which be is paid 
time and a halt.) 

Utilit:r rates had not antici
pated the jDtp in tael costa, so 
hblic Utility Commissions gaTe gas 
and electric companies the prirl
lege o:t "passing throagh" their fuel 
costs w1 tho•t harln« to come to the 
commissions to prOTe the added ex
pense. This is called the autCIIII&t
ic "fuel adjustment". 

Althoagh it cuts out saae work 
for the PUCs which ·are usually lmder-

-2-

staffed and overloaded with applica
tions for rate increases, the fuel ad
jutment claue has res.U.ted in al.Joost 
doubling electric and gas bills for 
cetomers. Hence the growing rate
payers' rebellion. 

Auditing of the fuel adj.atment 
charges has disclosed cheating on the 
part or some companies, whicn applied 
the same extra oil cost charge to all 
their electricity sales--e"Yen though 
part or that electricitywas generat
ed not fraa oil-tired, b•t from their 
nuclear, plants. 

It is plain that ver7 close watch
ing or this fuel cost pass-thro~h is 
samething lltUity customers should in
sist ons the added allditing starr will 
more than pay for itself in savings to 
the cutomers. 

RATE STRUCTURE 
LOng betore the Arab boycott, con

serYattonists were sayin« that it was 
wasteful of resources and polluting to 
the enviroDDI8nt to charge lower rates 
to cutomers who used more· electricit:r 
or gas. ibe)" said it eneour&~ed waste
fulness and penalized thrift. 

~ example was the llholesale rates 
1n all-electric bllildin«s 1 or where 
lights coW.d onl7 be turned ott by a 
master awi tch, as in the World Trade 
Center.' , 

i'he7 pointed Ollt that these whole
sale rates might haw made sense in the 
~ast, when companies found they could 
lower the~ rates all aro111ld thro~h 
a larger total voll11M of sales.; also, 
when oil and gas seemed to g-ash forth 
girl!J! DO hint of dimin.ish!D« sapplJ'J 
and before scientists had shown a link 
between power plants, polllltion aDd 
higher rates o:t respiratory disease. 
But tbe7 no longer make sense. 

J,IQiB COSTS MORE, NOT. 
The situation has OhaD!8d eco

nomically, too. Electricity generated 
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from new plants is costing compan
ies three and four times more than 
from their older existing plants. 
(Real costs, not after accelerated 
deOreciation of the new plants in 
their tax returns. ) The cUl'Te of 
costs-per-kilO"Ratt now tends to !O 
u~ with additional kilowatts gener
ated. 

EIECTRICA.LLY-HEATED H01.1F.S lEAST EF
FICIENT. Homes and buildin&s 
heated by electric radiant heat are 
cheaper to buy than those with furn
aces. Bllilders eed to tell home 
bayers that wholesale electric rates 
would keep heating and cooling costs 
within normal ranges. 

Bltt the new philos o,hy of not 
wasting oil or gas (fossil tv.els 
used directly by the home owner or 
indirectly in producing electricity 
tor utili ties) sp\11'Ted the Pa.blic 
Utility Commissions to consider el
iminatin« wholesa1e rates. 

The Arab boycott created a 
scarcity which made incenti ns to 
waste illo!ical, as well. When the 
New York State Pnblic Serrlee, Com
mission raised Wholesale rates dur
~ the oil boyeott, the reaction 
from all-electric homeowners was 
predictable. 

(Because radiant electric heat 
is one of the least efficient ways 
to heat a space from an energy 
Tiewpoint, char!ing the _E:!! cost 
came as an anexpeeted blow to cu
tomers spoiled by artificially low 
rates.) 

Haneawners who were then sm
denly billed $200 and more per 
month for heatiJll costs, descended 
in wrath upon the Ptlblic Serri.ce 
Commissioners and picketed their 
hearing. Their revolt paid off
temporarily• (gOTernment &«eneies 
·asual.ly back down in the .face of 
or!aniZed resistance from middle
and -.pper-income UOllp81 as then 
all-electric homeowners are.) 

But the wholesale ratepayers' Tictory 
may only be temporary. More and more 
rulings in different states are phas
ing out rates that encour&«e consump
tion. These new rulings are placing 
less of the burden on small users 
through "Lifeline" rates-( char!ing a 
customer a sma.ll per-kilowatt-hour 
cost for the first 300 to 500 kwhrs 
11Bed per month; with a gradually in
creasing rate for lar!er cans~tion.) 

They're also agreeinl to requests 
from •tility companies to charge high-
er prices duri~ peak-ee hours (i.e., 
mid-day) and much lower per kilowatt 
charges at ni!ht and early morning; and 
peak-seasons (i.e., SUDIIler air-condition
ing) at higher rates than the rest ot 
the year. 

MOst homeowners will be able to 
adapt with little diseomfort-except 
for the all-electric homeowners. '!hey 
will be hit hard. They might eTen find 
it pays to conTert to oil hot water 
heat, and/or perhaps to install solar 
hot water collectors-redacing their 
hot water heating costs by 80%. 

In North Jersey last year a home
owner l'lh.o had done this was billed by 
the electric company at a higher per 
kilowatt rate becaue he was no longer 
consuming enough to warrant the whole
sale price. He l)etitioned the Pablic 
Utility Commission to disapprOTe the 
higher rate, claimi.n« he shouldn't be 
penalized for conserving ener«Y• The 
PUC aueed aDd disallowed the higher 
rate for a trial period. 

What is the long-range outlook? 

While nat or inTerted rate struc
tves would make carrying charges near
ly impossible for many cetcmers llvin« 
in all-electric homes, there may be a 
distin!ttion between pre-boycott am 
post-boycott buildings. 

Older all-electric homes and build
ings may be continued on chea-.er rates 
simply because poll tici.ans (the PUCs are 
political appointees of the go.,-ernors) 
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won't take the chance of alienat-
ing so many people who were, in 
effect, "sold a bill of goods" when 
they bought their homes in pre-boycott 
days. In a sense, they are "stuck'' 
and some compromise will probably be 
struck with them. 

But, all agree that over the 
next decade, wasteful consumption will 
have to be curbed. Thus, new aJ.l
electric homes and baildi~may be 
banned. Or they may be billed at 
close to the smaller users' rates. The 
rate structure would be flatter, am 
not benefit the large user. The pur
pose of this would be to discourage 
the construction of all-electric, high 
energy consuming homes and buildings 

based on a p. Ten TOll.'lllle of sales. It 
the Tolume decreases, they should get 
higher rates to make 11p the differ
ence. 

Utilities will certainly make 
more money i.t they can build more 
plants, because the more they invest 
in capital outlays, the higher their 
rate base, 8.IId the bi~~er the amount 
they would be entitled to recei Te 

tr011 the ratepayers. 

Sinoe future high coats of ener
!1' will force ratepayers to eonsene, 
one can question it utilities' present 
estimates of htve deiiiiDd are too 
high. 

in the future. CkJe can eaail.y write a seenario 
1~ " !..e -hc·-P tor the tutve: utility OYerinTeStil?J 

ELECTRIC DEMAND AND FUTURE NEEDS '!.Sicf 17 will mean higher rates tor at! cu• 
Past 7 .6% growth rates of.' elec- tciii'erswhether they cciii""erTe" or-

t.ric demand aver each prerlou de- not,...with Dl1leh higher rates tor ~e 
cade, according to the architect Rich- lJSers. 
ard G. Stein, were moeUy due to in
creased construction of all-electrie 
homes.. El.eotrlc utili ties haTe been 
basing htve estimates of the natian' s 
ele ct.ric "need" "'pClll aaaUlptiODS that 
s•ch construotion will·' oanti.Due. 
This is one reaa>n why conservation
ists say that the utilities' claims 
are seli'-eerrlng and would be self
fulfilling prophesies. 

They- wollld then "pr~• they 
sho..:l.d bUJ.d; mare·tplante~to gener
ate the additional electricity they 
say will be needed. 

Overestimating wollld lead to 
OTerlndlding. 

Ordinarily, OYerbUlding would 
be lUIWise, bllt e'l'en it f1ltl2re demand 
doesn't materialize as the utilities 
predict, they have a recourse to 
justify higher rates ~a71 

An example of how this works 
was when, during the Arab boycott, 
rates jumped and cauaed people to 
cat 'back on electric and gas ue. 

Utili ties' sales of ene~y 
dropped, aDd they arg1III!Kl sl1Ccess
.tal..l.y', that exi.stin« rates had been 

PROJBCT ""RATEPAlm INDEPEl'I)ENCB" ?? 
It wo111d seem the ODly hope lor 

the ratepayer is to reduce his de
pemency upon the •t1.llty for his 
eneru needs. 

By inwa~ in ins'Cll.ation tar 
his hCDe or blli.lding1 pluging all 
leaks of air, he can 11 Te ani work 
as ocat:ortabl71 whUe 'buyi.Dg less 
.frOIIIl the utility. 

By making an additional inTest
men.t in solar hot water collectors 
he can redu• his hot water heati.tls 
costs by 80%. He will 8e plur;ged 
into the s1m 1 s .tree enerQ" npply. 

It he invests in additional 
plumbing and stora«e1 he can tiBe 
his hot water to prOT.I.de Sllpplemen
tal heat and cooling tor his house. 

The amount be needs to pu-cbue 
!rOll the lltility will drop radical
ly. 

Certain archi teets and e~
eers are special.isi.n« in assisting 
h<D!t and b•1lding owners to do this 
most etfieienUy • 
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RESOLUTION 

CITIZENS AGAINST RATE INCREASE (CARI) 

WHEREAS CARI is a Jersey City based organization comprised of 

bloc~~associations, social service groups and critically impacted an~ 

concerned consumers of Public Service Electric and Gas Company, re-. 

presentatives of citizens and consumers who are subjected to discrimin

atory, unfair and unilateral abuses and hardships imposed upon consumers and 

customers by the Public Service Electric and Gas Co.; and, 

WHEREAS significant numbers of consumers are on fixed incomes such 

as Social Security, Welfare, pension or other limited fixed income and· 

must pay an inordinate percentage of their income to the Public Service 

Electric and Gas Co. for basic essentials of life as supplied by utility :-: ···

services or face termination of service because of unff.;.ir, and discrimi::1·

atory and·· arbitrary practices of the Public Service Electric and Gas Co.; 

and 

WHEREAS P.S.E. & G. is a monopoly without ccHnpetition in the Hudson 

County area, resulting in exorbitant profits at the expense of citizens 

least able to pay exorbitant rates approved by the Public Utilities Commiss

ion without fair representation c~ said Commission of consumers most affect

ed by the a.toresaid ar·bitrar;y practices; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'I' RESOLVED by CARI and the consumers they re-

present that: 

1. P.S.E. & G. Co. be made accountable to consumers. 

2. The books and records of P.S.E. & G. Co. be opened to the public 

for inspection. 

3 •. An independent, impartial accounting. firm provide .a profit and 

loss and cost analysis before any rate increases are granted to the Public 

Service Electric and Gas Co. 
76x 
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4. The State of New Jersey provide for inspectors to verify the 
... "":"~ "':"·· . . --,. ........ -

functioning of gas and eleotrt6.:.~~, on a regularly scheduled basis. 

5. The Office of the Public Advocate be enlisted to devise means to 

prevent unfair rate increases and otherwise protect consumers. 

6. The State of New Jersey pass legislation providing lower rates 

for citizens and families with fixed incomes of less that Five Thousand 

($5,000.00) Dollars& 

7. The Open Public Meetings Act be made applicable to the Public 

Utilities Commission and that meetings be held in the evenings for the 

benefit of working consumers& 

8. ·The State of New Jersey pass legisle.tion that Utility services 

shall not be discontinued without a bearing afforded the consumer, and 

that said legislation provide that no person shall be denied utility ser

vices because of financial inability to pay for said services provided that 

such financial inability is not the result of intentional actions of the 

• consumer. 

• 

9. The County of H1· :.son and all municipalities within the County take 

official action to support tt::u:; Resolution. 

10. All minimum charges be abolished for utility services and consumers 

shall pay only for actual use of gas and electricity& 

11. The membership of the ::? ;blic Utilities Commission be increased to 

include representatives of recognized citizen and minority groups • 

12. A consumer representative of the County of Hudson and each County 

in the State be appointed to the Public Utilities Commission, and that this 

representative group be empowered to appoint a civilian advocate as a mem-
' 

ber of said Commission. 

1~. The State of New Jersey consider the formation of a Public Agency, 

empowered to sell stocks and bonds to the general public, to take over the 

operation of the Public Service Electric and Gas Company. 
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14. The Public Utility Commission~order that all rates and prices 

be rolled back to levels in effect on June 1, 1974, and that no further 

increases be granted until the membership of the Public Utilities Commiss-

ion iD ·~8structurcd as above set forth. 

15. Upon the failure of State Officials and the State Legislature 

to take appropriate action for the protection of consumers, as above 

set forth, the Public Advocate institute legal action on behalf of the 

class of citizens discriminated against by the Public Service Electric 

and Gass Co. , and that a Receiver be appointed o:1 behalf of said citizens 

of Hudson County until such time as reasonable laws, rules am regulations 

concerning public utility services are passed and promulgated by tbe 

State and the Public Utility Commission. 

16. A certified copy of this resolution shall be sent to the 

Governor of tbe State of New Jersey and all appropriate State, 6ounty 

and Local elected and appointed officials. 

I certify the above resolution was passed unamimously at a meeting 

of CARI held on the ~ ~ day of )1 /) y 

~j.£;'<-- --m, nt ~ 
ELLA M. tiWtENcf' 'd ~ 
Chairperson of CARI 
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6~~ )/Jt~Hl1J11 
{J;MM<Jil'iY ft'4.p~ ?~ 

OhMb~) N.~. 
MR. CHAIRMAN AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS ON BEHALF OF THE CAMDEN COUNTY 

COUNCIL ON ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, THE PEOPLE OF SOUTH JERSEY AND NEW 

JERSEY AS A WHOLE, WE ARE DELIGHTED TO BE GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO 

SPEAK BEFORE YOU TODAY, TO EXPRESS THE CONCERNS OF ALL RESIDENTIAL 

USERS OF PUBLIC SERVICE GAS & ELECTRIC. ALL USERS OF ELECTRICITY 

HAVE EXPERIENCED SUBSTANTIAL INCREASES IN THEIR ELECTRICITY BILLS. 

BILLS FOR CUSTOMERS HAVE INCREASED ON AVERAGE OF 115% THE PAST 18 

MOS. THOSE LIVING IN ALL-ELECTRIC HOMES-ONCE THE PROMTIONAL DARLING 

OF THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY-HAVE SEEN THEIR MONTHLY BILLS 

DOUBLE AND EVEN TRIPLE. INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL CONSUMERS WATCH 

THEIR BILLS RISE, DESPITE ACTUAL REDUCTIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF ELECT

RICITY CONSUMED. THE HARDEST HIT IS THE LOW-INCOME USER. LOW INCOME 

USERS SPEND ABOUT TWO TO THREE TIMES THE PERCENTAGE OF THEIR LIVING 

EXPENSES ON ELECTRIC BILLS AS DO HIGH-INCOME FAMILIES. BECAUSE ELE-

CTRICITY IS USED PRIMARILY FOR BASIC NEEDS-HEATING, COOKING AND 

LIGHTING-THE LOW-INCOME CONSUMER HAS LITTLE ABILITY TO REDUCE HIS OR 

HER BILL BY REDUCING USAGE. ALL THE MORE TROUBLESOME IS THAT THE 

INCREASE IN COSTS COMES AT A TIME WHEN MANY ARE LEAST ABLE TO ABSORB 

IT-A TIME OF RAISING PRICES GERERALLY, HIGH UMEMPLOYMENT, AND CUT-BACKS 

IN BOTH FEDERAL AND STATE SOCIAL SERVICES. THUS, WHILE THE INCREASED 

COST OF ELECTRICITY ARE TROUBLESOME TO ALL, THEY ARE PARTICULARLY 

DIFFICULT FOR LOW-INCOME CONSUMER, IN SOME INSTANCES CAUSING SEVERE 

HEATH PROBLEMS\RESLOCATION. 
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IT IS EVIDENT THAT HOW WE UTILIZE OUR FUELS AND CAPTIAL, HOW 

WE ALLOCATE THE COSTS OF GENERATING, TRANSMITTING AND DISTRIBUTING 

ELECTRICITY, HOW WE DEFINE THE RESPECTIVE RIGHTS OF CONSUMERS, STOCK= 

HOLDERS, IS A MATTER AFFECTING THE HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AS WELL AS 

THE POCKETBOOKS-OF CONSUMERS ACROSS THE COUNTRY. WHILE ALL CONSUMERS 

HAVE A VITAL INTEREST, DECISION~ IN THESE MATTERS HAVE BEEN THE 

PROVINCE OF A LIMITED FEW: THE REGULATORS, THE LARGE INDUSTRIAL, 

COMMERCIAL AND MUNICIPAL CUSTOMERS. 

IN AN EFFORT TO PROMOTE BROADER PARTICIPATION BY CONSUMERS, 

THE CAMDEN COUNTY OFFICE ON ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY HAS FORMULATED A 

STATEP1ENT OF POSITION. THE STATEMENT OF POSITION REFLECTS THE BASIC 

PHILOSOPHY THAT ALL CONSUMERS BENEFIT FROM POLICIES PROMOTING THE 

EFFICIENT UTILZATION AND FINANCIAL STABILITY OF THE UTILITY, AND 

THAT ALL CONSUMERS HAVE A RIGHT TO ASSISTANCE IN OBTAINING ELECTRICITY 

NECESSARY TO SUPPORT BASIC DAILY ACTIVITIES. 

LIFELINE IS JUST THE BEGINING BECAUSE IT SAYS FOR EVERYBODY

THIS IS NOT JUST FOR POOR PEOPLE. IF ANYONE SHOULD THINK THAT LIFE 

LINE IS JUST FOR POOR PEOPLE, LIFELINE IS JUST FOR SENIOR CITIZENS: 

WRONG. LIFELINE IS GOING TO BE FOR EVERYBODY. IF IT HELPS THE PERSON 

ON A FIXED INCOME A LITTLE BIT MORE, GOOD. IF IT'S BETTER FOR SOMEBODY 

THAT IS POOR, GREAT. IF THE SENIOR CITIZENS NEED IT MORE THAN THE 

JUNIORS, WONDERFUL. IT'S GOING TO BE FOR EVERYBODY. 
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WE ARE FOR ELECTRICITY AND GAS FOR EVERYBODY. ONCE AGAIN 

I QUOTE " LIGHT AND HEAT ARE BASIC HUMAN RIGHTS AND MUST BE MADE 

AVAILABLE TO ALL THE PEOPLE AT LOW COST FOR MIMIMUM QUANTITIES." 
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TESTIMONY PRESENTED AT A HEARING ON ESCALATING PUBLIC UTILITY 
RATES CONDUCTED BY THE ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION 
AND COMMUNICATIONS ON AUGUST 12, 1976 AT TRENTON, NEW JERSEY. 

My name is Meyer Fine. I reside at 45 Underwood Drive, West Orange, 

New Jersey. The testimony I would like to present is on behalf of the Community 

Relations Committee of the Jewish Community Federation of Metropolitan New Jersey. 

The Federation is a philanthropic organization which provides health, education, 

cultural and welfare services for some 90,000 Jews residing in metropolitan New 

Jersey, to be more specific, in Essex County, and in parts of Hudson, Union and 

Morris Counties. Among our clients are families with low incomes and also a 

substantial number of senior citizens. These clients, like other low income 

families are severely pressed by the unabated inflation. Their every dollar is 

ear-marked for fixed living costs, rent, food, clothing, medical and utility 

costs - which are constantly rising. There is little room in their restricted 

budgets for so-called optional spending. The few options in discretionary spend-

ing when available to them, take the form of "What shall I give up this week". 

Less food next week in order to buy a much needed pair of shoes? give up a lip-

stick or face powder in order to pay for medication or eye glasses? In other 

words, constantly facing the necessity - practically on a daily basis - of 

having to give up one necessity in order to pay for another. 

A fixed cost for each of these clients is the cost for heating and 

lighting. Studies of utility rates paid by low income families have discovered 

that there is a direct correlation between income and utility consumption. The 

larger the income, the greater the use of utilities by the families. This was 

a major finding of a study conducted by the Department of Health, Education and 

Welfare in 1974. Reasoning from this premise, it seems clear to us that those 

in limited financial circumstances are, in fact, helping the nation to conserve 

its limited energy supplies. 
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Another study has shown that in the last three years, energy consump-

tion by residential users has not increased, and, in fact, dropped 5% last year. 

Simultaneously, the utility companies are requesting an increased rate to pay 

for the construction of new energy plants. This request for increased energy 

i capacity raises the question - for whom is this energy intended? We can only 

i .. conclude that it is required by commercial and industrial users. If this is 

indeed so, we ask why there is such an inequitable rate scale affecting residential 

' 
users on the one hand and industrial and commercial users on the other. We were 

recently advised that the rate for large businesses and industrial corporations 

is $.013 per kilowatt hour whereas residential users are paying in the neighbor-

hood of $.06 per kilowatt hour. It seems to us, therefore, that there is a matter 

of justice and equity involved here. It seems grossly unfair for residential users 

to carry this comparatively higher rate for energy consumption. In fact, this 

very point was made in a study conducted by Dr. Eugene Coyle of Berkeley. Dr • .. 
Coyle in a study he made for the California State Legislature concluded that 

• residential users were subsidizing industrial users to the extent of $60,000,000 

• 

• 

per year. 

In order to ease the unfair burdens of energy consumption, we recommend 

the adoption of the "Lifeline Utility Rate" concept. If adopted, this concept 

would offer a lower rate for those who use 500 kilowatt hours or less, with 

comparable reduced rates for gas users. Those using between 500 kilowatt hours 

and 1200 kilowatt hours be also given a discount, but one smaller than that ac
' 

corded to those using 500 or less kilowatt hours. 

What we are recommending is a shift of the energy costs burden from 

those in limited financial circumstances and who .also happen to be in the lower 

income category - to residential consumers who use large quantities of energy 

and who are in a better position to pay and also to commercial and industrial 

energy consumers. We do not have any formulation to suggest as to how this 
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shift should be spelled out in terms of actual rate costs. This is a matter 

which should be addressed by the Public Utility Commission, its staff and consul

tants. 

The economic well being of New Jersey's citizens is a primary respon

sibility of the Legislature, one that cannot be shunted off to regulatory agencies. 

In closing, our organization wishes to commend this Committee for its interest 

and concern in this vital matter of energy costs and urges it to continue its 

investigation with the hope and expectation that it will draft the legislation 

necessary to redress the inequities of the current utility rate structure in 

New Jersey. 
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August 12, 1976 
~y name is Allen Goldberg. I live at )) Pettyridge ~d., Gr8veville, 

N.J., and I'm here to present my views on energy price structuring as wel~ 
as other aspects of the energy sbt •• n,c.,~.z,-<.r S 

I fully support Assembly Bill #Al8)0, a rate restructuring bill, pop
ularly called "Lifeline". The present situation of electricity pricing 
was originally constructed with the purpose of encouraginc creater use of 
electricity by large energy users. This was done by setting lower rates 
for large users than for small users. We now have a situation where the 
small users are in effect subsidizing the large users. 1 feel that this 
is an inequity which "Lifeline" Bill #Al830 seeks to correct. 

Gas and electricity, by their nature, are not commodities that one can 
do without or post-pone if the price is too high. A family today ~ust have 
heat and light no matter what the price. It is true some small savings can 
be affected but by and large the demand is constant and is not affected by 

price. Consequently, if the electric rates go up, that bill must be paid 

even at the expense of something else. ~&AS 

~nacting "Lifeline" will make it public policy that electricity is a 7 
NOI nt::tLY ctrrzfttf ~,:_ H-ANtut;Vrsc) 

basic human right that must be made available to tne wh~·le populRtio~at a 
reasonable rate. 

I also favor greater public control in energy matters. I thin~ that 
~ memeers of the Board of ~ublic utility Corr~iasioners should be elected not 

appointed. This would represent an exten•ion of democracy and is fully 
• con sis tent with our form of government end his tory. 'l'he 1'. u. c. r~. if 

elected, would be more sensitive to the public ·and more responsive to the 
public feelings. 

For exa~~le, on ~ay 11, 1976, I sent to a ~r. dalph C. Caprio of the 
P.L.C., page 65 from a book, "How to Challenge Your 1lectric Ltility," 
written by tw:organ and Jerabek in 1974, in which the authors mention that 
the ~.J. Board of fublic Ltility Commissioners were considering inverted 

• rates, where Wcharges would increase as power use increases.t I asked wh,·at 
happened to this consideration? Nas it completed and may I have a copy of 

•it? I received a form letter thanking me for my letter but completely 
ignoring the substance of my letter. I wrote ag~in on June 11, 1976, but 
never received any answer. If the P.U.C. Board was elected, I and the 
public , would have recourse to get answers from an organ of government 
that doesn't respond to questions from the public. 

I also feel that the public thru its elected officials should develop 
its own energy plans and projections. I think it is inadequ~te in this day 
and age that the putlic should have to rely on private utility companies to 

t project fu.ture state energy needs as a basis for rate requests and the 

_ St'a.te of liew Jersey not to have ac independent form of verif:iin-'1: hi~hlY 



suspect estimates. l unaerstana. tne .Public Aa.vocate's Otrice nas hired an 
independent engineering firm to audit Public Service's projections. This 
is money already spent and could form the basis of an ~11 ar0und estimate 
of future st~te energy needs organized under the direction of the State 
Legislature. If war is too dangerous to~ left in te hands of the generals, 
then public energy needs are too important to be left in the hands of 
private utility companies. 

If this is so, then the public should not only control but own the 
utility companies outright. If the utility company's stockholders are not 
satisfied with a 7i% rate of return on equity and insist on higher rate 
increases at the expense of suffering and hardships on the public than the 
State of ~ew Jersey sho~ld buy the private owaers out and run the utility 
companies for the benefit of the public. Governaent statistics show time 
and time again that publicly owned utilities are much more efficier.t and 

charge substantially less for their ~ates. 
Here is a COEY of a book I've ~,written in 1918, by a Albert U. Todd 

•=cttf'111A 111 f..t'-'ueft (.'....... uPf(,f{€~ ' 
called ••rr.un:fcipal Ownershl-p". In it he wri tea, "the first municipal gas 

works in America antedate the Civil War. In 1852, the city of 3ichmond, 
Virginia, constructed a municipal gas works ••• " Public ovmership of energy 
producing systems is an old American tradition and publically owned utilities 
in this state should be seriously considered~ the ~.J. State Legislature. 
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TESTIMONY BEFORE THE ASSEMBLY 

By: David Grossman, President; Essex County Council of Seniors 

Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens' campaign for Lifeline Rate Re-

form. We have taken this leadership role for one reason only. That 

is because we know that this reform plan will benefit the greatest 

number of our seniors. 

A strong Lifeline plan will relieve most of us from the op-

pressive utility costs that we are now forced to pay under the 

threat of loss of service. 

We are here to say again, as we have said so many times to 

the PUC, that Lifeline is the best first step we can take toward 

a sane energy policy. 

Other relief methods such as utility stamps, time-of-day 

pricing, etc., will make better sense if they are implemented as 

later steps after a·~ifeline plan is drafted and established by 

the PUC. 

These could apply to those seniors and needy not helped 

by Lifeline, e.g. tenants in buildings that are on a single meter. 

But don't be fooled into thinking it's Lifeline or these 

other plans. The greatest number of needy seniors will be helped 

by a strong Lifeline plan. That is not opinion, that is our ex-

perience as seniors in Northern New Jersey. 
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You as our elected 

the voters, should be less 

scientific jargon of the 

groups to protect them. 

the needs of those who put you 

In this belief, we urge 

-2-

by 

e pressures and pseudo

by special interest 

to 

are to protect them. 

the creation of a 

strong Lifeline Reform Program to relieve the average user of the 

crushing burden of today's utility costs. 
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